
GOSPORT BOROUGH 
COUNCIL meeting

AGENDA
 

Wednesday, 5 February 2020
6.00 pm

Public Document Pack





1

Notice is hereby given that a MEETING of the COUNCIL OF THE BOROUGH OF 
GOSPORT will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, TOWN HALL, GOSPORT, PO12 
1EB on WEDNESDAY the FIFTH DAY of FEBRUARY 2020 at 6PM, AND ALL MEMBERS 
OF THE COUNCIL ARE HEREBY SUMMONED TO ATTEND TO CONSIDER AND 
RESOLVE THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS –

1.  To receive apologies from Members for their inability to attend the Meeting 

2.  To confirm the Minutes of Meetings of the Council held on 18th December 2019 
(copy herewith) 

3.  To consider any Mayor's Communications. 

4.  To receive Deputations in accordance with Standing Order No 3.4 and to answer 
Public Questions pursuant to Standing Order No 3.5, such questions to be 
answered orally during a time not exceeding 15 minutes. 

(NOTE: Standing Order No 3.4 requires that notice of a Deputation should be 
received by the Borough Solicitor NOT LATER THAN 12 O’CLOCK NOON ON 
MONDAY, 3 FEBRUARY 2020 and likewise Standing Order No 3.6 requires that 
notice of a Public Question should be received by the Borough Solicitor NOT 
LATER THAN 12 O’CLOCK NOON ON MONDAY, 3 FEBRUARY 2020).

5.  Questions (if any) pursuant to Standing Order No 3.3. 

(NOTE: Members are reminded that Standing Order No 3.3 requires that Notice of 
Question pursuant to that Standing Order must be received by the Borough 
Solicitor NOT LATER THAN 12 O’CLOCK NOON ON TUESDAY, 4 FEBRUARY 
2020).

6.  NOTICE OF MOTION 

It was reported that Councillor Pepper had given notice of the following Motion in 
accordance with Standing Order 3.2, as included within the agenda. 

Climate Change Motion 2020

7.  Consideration of recommendations by Boards of the Council: 



2

BOARD DATE

            
     
     Community Board                                 22 January 2020 
     Policy and Organisation Board                      5 February 2020 

8.  To receive the following Part II minutes of the Boards of the Council: 

BOARD DATE  

Community Board 
Policy and Organisation Board

22 January 2020
4 February 2020 To follow

9.  Medium Term Financial Strategy and Budget (Revenue and Capital) 2020/2021 

To consider the report of the Borough Treasurer. 

10.  Public Space Protection Order (Control of Dogs) 

To consider the report of the Borough Solicitor and Monitoring Officer. 

11.  Local Council Tax Support Scheme for Gosport 

To consider the report of the Head of Benefits, Procurement and Insurance 

12.  Election of Mayor and Deputy Mayor 2020/21 

In accordance with Standing Order No 2.4 the Borough Solicitor has written to 
Group Leaders and Members of the Council inviting them to submit Member 
nominations for the selection of Mayor-Elect and Deputy Mayor-Elect for the next 
Municipal Year. One nomination has been received by the Borough Solicitor, 
Councillor Z Huggins for Mayor-Elect and one nomination has been received by 
the Borough Solicitor, Councillor M Hook  for Deputy-Mayor Elect for the 
2020/2021 Municipal Year.

DAVID WILLIAMS
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

TOWN HALL
GOSPORT

28 January 2020



3

FIRE PRECAUTIONS

(To be read by the Mayor if members of the public are present)

In the event of the fire alarm being activated, please leave the Council Chamber and 
Public Gallery immediately. Proceed downstairs by way of the main stairs or as 
directed by GBC staff, follow any of the emergency exit signs. People with disability 
or mobility issues please identify yourself to GBC staff who will assist in your 
evacuation of the building.

This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you 
are consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded. 

MEMBERS ARE REQUESTED TO NOTE THAT:

(1) IF THE COUNCIL WISHES TO CONTINUE ITS BUSINESS BEYOND 9.30PM THEN 
THE MAYOR MUST MOVE SUCH A PROPOSITION IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
STANDING ORDER 4.11.18

(2) MOBILE PHONES SHOULD BE SWITCHED OFF OR SWITCHED TO SILENT FOR 
THE DURATION OF THE MEETING



This page is intentionally left blank



1

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE COUNCIL
HELD ON 18 DECEMBER 2019 AT 6.00 pm

Attendance:

The Mayor (in the Chair)

Councillors Mitchell, Hook, Ms Ballard, Bateman, Mrs Batty, Beavis, Burgess, Carter, 
Chegwyn, Mrs Cully, Earle, Farr, Mrs Furlong, Mrs Hook, Mrs Huggins, Hylands, Jessop, 
Mrs Jones, Miss Kelly, Mrs Morgan, Murphy, Philpott, Mrs Prickett, Raffaelli, Scard, 
Blackman, Casey, Hammond, Herridge, Hutchison, Johnston, Pepper and Westerby

Also in attendance: Honorary Alderman Dickson and Honorary Alderman Kimber.

APOLOGIES

Apologies for inability to attend the meeting were received from Councillor Foster-Reed and 
Honorary Freeman O’Neill. 

MINUTES

COUNCIL RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 9 October 2019 be 
confirmed and signed. 

MAYOR'S COMMUNICATIONS.

The Mayor invited Sarah Hirom to address the Council and present a certificate for the 
Borough’s renewed ‘Fairtrade Status’. 

The Mayor congratulated Debbie Gore on her appointment as Assistant to the chief 
Executive. 

The Mayor also advised that the open doors project supporting the homeless would be 
being held in January and that a fundraising fashion show would be held on the 24 January 
at HMS Sultan.

DEPUTATIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH STANDING ORDER NO 3.4 AND PUBLIC 
QUESTIONS PURSUANT TO STANDING ORDER NO 3.5 

There were none

QUESTIONS (IF ANY) PURSUANT TO STANDING ORDER NO 3.3.

There were none. 

CONSIDERATION OF RECOMMENDATIONS BY BOARDS OF THE COUNCIL:

PROPOSALS FOR THE REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 2



2

Consideration was given to a recommendation by the Policy and Organisation  Board at its 
meeting held on 20 November 2019.

COUNCIL RESOLVED: 

That the changes as set out in the report be approved.

TO RECEIVE THE FOLLOWING PART II MINUTES OF THE BOARDS OF THE 
COUNCIL:

COUNCIL RESOLVED: That the following Part II Minutes be received:

 Economic Development Board: 13 November 2019
 Policy and Organisation Board : 20 November 2019

The Meeting concluded at 6.20 pm

The Mayor.



Motion to Council 

Proposer Martin Pepper
Seconder Murray Johnston

Council notes:

that the impacts of climate breakdown are already causing serious damage around 
the world;

that the ‘Special Report on Global Warming of 1.5°C’, published by the 
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change in October 2018, (a) describes the 
enormous harm that a 2°C average rise in global temperatures is likely to cause 
compared with a 1.5°C rise, and (b) confirms that limiting Global Warming to 1.5°C 
may still be possible with ambitious action from national and sub-national authorities, 
civil society and the private sector;

that all governments (national, regional and local) have a duty to act, and local 
governments that recognise this should not wait for their national governments to 
change their policies;

that strong policies to cut emissions also have associated health, wellbeing and 
economic benefits;

and that, recognising this, Gosport Borough Council has already established a 
Climate Change Working Group to develop a strategy to tackle climate change;

Council therefore resolves to:

1. Declare that ‘Climate Change is real’ and requires urgent action;

2. Prioritise the work of the Climate Change Working Group;

3. Incorporate the CCWG Strategy in its approaches to planning decisions;

4. Ensure that political and chief officer/section head leadership teams embed this 
work in all areas and take responsibility for reducing, as rapidly as possible, the 
carbon emissions resulting from the Council’s activities;

5. Take steps to proactively include young people in the process, ensuring that they 
have a voice in shaping the future;
6. Develop a Citizens’ Assembly in order to involve the wider population in this 
process. This group would help develop their own role, consider the latest climate 
science and expert advice on solutions and to consider systematically the climate 
change impact of each area of the Council’s activities;

7. Establish a Climate Change Partnership group, involving Councillors, residents, 
young citizens, relevant experts, businesses, Citizens Assembly representatives and 
other relevant parties. It will also recommend ways to maximise local benefits of 
these actions in other sectors such as employment, health, transport and the local 

Agenda Item 6



economy;

8. Report on the level of investment in the fossil fuel industry that our pensions 
plan and other investments have, and review the Council’s investment strategy to 
give due consideration to climate change impacts in the investment portfolio;

9. Work with, influence and inspire partners across the borough, county and region 
to help deliver this goal;

10. Call on the UK Government to provide the powers, resources and help with 
funding to make this possible, and ask our MP to do likewise.



REPORT TO:  COUNCIL  

DATE OF MEETING: 5 FEBRUARY 2020

REPORT BY: COUNCILLOR BURGESS  (CHAIRMAN OF THE COMMUNITY  
BOARD)

At its meeting on 22 January 2020 the Community Board considered a
report Borough Treasurer and Housing Services Manager requestion consideration of 
the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan Financial Model including the 
revised 2019/20 budget and the 2020/21 budget including recommendations on rent 
levels for the next year. .

BUSINESS PLAN FINANCIAL MODEL UPDATE AND COUNCIL DWELLING 
RENTS 2020/2021

RECOMMENDATION: 

  
That the Community Board recommend to Council that: 

 The revised HRA Business Plan Financial Model extract (Appendix A) 
and associated 2019/20 Revised Budget and 2020/21 Budget (Appendix 
B) is agreed.

 That Council Dwelling rents increase  by CPI(1.7%@sept 2019) plus 1% 
.This is the first year of the five year policy  programme as detailed in the 
new national rent policy introduced in February  2019.

 The rent for older style garages is increased in line with inflation, as 
agreed in the Garage Renewal strategy and rent for non GBC tenants 
who have garages is increased by £1 per week.

Agenda Item 7

mailto:1.7%25@sept


PART I MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY BOARD 

Consideration was given to a report of the Borough Treasurer and the 
Housing Services Manager considering the Housing Revenue Account 
(HRA) Business Plan Financial Model including the revised 2019/20 budget 
and the 2020/21 budget including recommendations on rent levels for the 
next year.

Coucillor Mrs Batty left the room and took no part in the discussion or 
voting thereon.

Members thanked officers for their report and complimented them on the 
clarity of the appendices. 

In answer to a Member’s question the Board was advised that the £900,000 
was allocated to the Council’s 200-250 void properties. 

RESOLVED:

That the Community Board recommend to Council that: 

 The revised HRA Business Plan Financial Model extract (Appendix A) 
and associated 2019/20 Revised Budget and 2020/21 Budget (Appendix 
B) is agreed.

 That Council Dwelling rents increase  by CPI(1.7%@sept 2019) plus 1% 
.This is the first year of the five year policy  programme as detailed in the 
new national rent policy introduced in February  2019.

 The rent for older style garages is increased in line with inflation, as 
agreed in the Garage Renewal strategy and rent for non GBC tenants 
who have garages is increased by £1 per week.

mailto:1.7%25@sept


                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

Board/Committee: COMMUNITY BOARD
Date of Meeting: 22 JANUARY  2020
Title: BUSINESS PLAN FINANCIAL MODEL UPDATE 

AND COUNCIL DWELLING RENTS 2020/2021
Author: BOROUGH TREASURER AND  HOUSING 

SERVICES MANAGER
Status: FOR RECOMMENDATION TO FULL COUNCIL

Purpose

This report considers the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan 
Financial Model including the revised 2019/20 budget and the 2020/21 
budget including recommendations on rent levels for next year. 

It also provides updates for members on the latest information with regard 
to policy changes that impact directly on local authority housing finance 
services.

Recommendation

That the Community Board recommend to Council that: 

 The revised HRA Business Plan Financial Model  extract (Appendix A) 
and associated 2019/20 Revised Budget and 2020/21 Budget 
(Appendix B) is agreed.

 That Council Dwelling rents increase  by CPI(1.7%@sept 2019) plus 
1% .This is the first year of the five year policy  programme as detailed 
in the new national rent policy introduced in February  2019.

 The rent for older style garages is increased in line with inflation, as 
agreed in the Garage Renewal strategy and rent for non GBC tenants 
who have garages is increased by £1 per week. 

1.0 Background

1.1

           

1.2

The delivery of Housing is a key priority for the Council. The 
Housing Revenue Account resources are focused on delivering 
the efficient management and maintenance of existing council 
owned stock alongside building and acquiring new affordable 
housing.
The Council’s housing stock is comprised of 3114 tenanted and 
308 leasehold properties as at 31 December 2019 and a rent roll 
of £14.5m for 2020/21.

mailto:1.7%25@sept


        
1.3

1.4

The government’s decision to reduce rents in social housing for 4 
years from 2016/17 had a significant impact on the budgeted 
reserve levels previously anticipated in the HRA business plan.

The impact of the 1% rent reduction was a net loss of income of 
£6,068,000 between 2016/17 and 2019/20.The total rent loss over 
the 30years of the model was calculated at £40,000,000.A new 
policy statement was issued in 2019 replacing the rent reduction 
one as detailed below.

The Government published a policy statement on rents for Social 
Housing in February 2019.The paper announced key changes to 
rent policy from April 2020 onwards.The new rent standard will 
apply to all registered providers including Local Authorities and 
there is specific provision included for local authority information  
requirement as follows.
“Local Authority registered providers shall communicate with the 
Regulator in an accurate and timely manner.This includes all data 
and information required by the Regulator in respect of compliance 
with this standard.Where material issues that relate to non-
compliance or potential non-compliance with the rent standard are 
identified by local authorities,they are expected to communicate 
these to the Regulator promptly.”

1.5

1.6

1.7

In advance of the rent standard coming into effect local 
authorities will be given the opportunity to submit data in a pilot 
year to ensure the transition to regulation of local authority rents 
goes as smoothly as possible and that any potential data issues 
can be identified and addressed in advance of the regulatory role 
starting.

For social rents ,the principle of formula rents (to reflect 
size,value and location of property) continues to be applied.
Affordable rents (upto 80% of market levels including service 
charges) for new property supported by grant or retained 
receipts.
Where a property is re-let during the final year –the average 
weekly rent in the final year since the property was last re-let is to 
be applied (referred to as the 2020 limit ).

Gosport Borough Council has continued to use the formula rent 
guidance for social rents and has monitored this on a property, 
by property basis.
We have also applied the 80% market rental level for all of our 
affordable rented properties as detailed in the guidance.

2.0 Budget Commentary



2.1

2.2

An extract from the HRA Business Plan Financial Model detailing 
the predicted income and expenditure levels for the next 5 years 
has been included for reference at appendix A. Items that warrant 
specific mention are detailed in Paragraphs 2.2 and 2.3.

The Revised HRA budget for 2019/20 shows an overall decrease 
in expenditure of £200,000 and a decrease in budgeted income of 
£6,000 leading to an increase in the budgeted surplus of  
£194,000. The following adjustments have been made to the 
2019/20 budget :

1. Garage income  received shows an  increase of £30,000
2. Additional management costs increase of £333,000
3. Increase in Repairs and maintenance of £191,000
4. Reduction in capital funding of £698,000 

 

2.3                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  The budget for 2020/21 shows an increase in rental income of 
£263,000 due to the 2.7% rent increase as detailed in the 
recommendations above. A reduction in management costs of  
£139,000. Capital funding is increased by £395,000 to £3,688m 
due to increased investment in our Housing stock.
Below is a summary of some of the major points extracted from 
the financial model.

a)  Investment in HRA stock in the revised 2019/20 budget is 
£7.5m and there is a predicted surplus at the end of the year 
of  £261,000.For 2020/21 budgeted investment in the stock 
is increased to £7.9m and a predicted surplus at the end of 
the year of  £224,000.

b)  Commitments over the next two years for spending 1-4-1 
RTB receipts total £3.45m of which £2.4m has to be funded 
from reserves and £1.05m from the receipts.It is hoped that 
this will be used to start a new build programme that is 
detailed in the Capital Programme.The investment in new 
build properties is budgeted at £7.6m over the next 3 years.

c) The HRA Business Plan has loans of approximately £11m 
which are due for repayment between March 2020 and 
March 2023. Decisions on whether to repay or refinance 
maturing loans are taken as they fall due. As at 31st March 
2019 the HRA has borrowed £6.977m from the general fund 
(under borrowed) to fund it’s capital expenditure as opposed 
to borrowing from the PWLB or the markets. It is estimated 
that the HRA will remain approximately £7m under borrowed 
during this period. Being under borrowed gives the HRA the 
flexibility to fund capital expenditure without entering into 
long term commitments.



d) The long term sustainability of the HRA Business Plan was 
helped by the commitment to return to the CPI +1% rent 
increase for 5 years from 2020 and a 5 year extract is 
included at appendix A.

2.4

2.5        

 8 properties have been purchased off the open market exercising 
delegated Authority under Paragraph 2.7 of Part 3, Schedule 10 
of the Council’s Constitution.  The properties consisted of one 2 
bedroom masionette, four 2 bedroom houses, one 2 bedroom 
bungalow, one 3 bedroom house and one 4 bedroom house. The 
total cost of these properties was £1,512m and was funded 30% 
by 1-4-1 retained receipts and 70% from reserves.  The properties 
were deemed as meeting our current Housing Needs. 

It is proposed that the Council embark on a programme of building 
new affordable rented properties within the Borough.The draft 
capital programme reflects this from 2020/21.This will be funded 
initially 30% from 1-4-1 RTB receipts and 70% from the reserves 
currently held in our Major Repairs/New Build/Loan Repayment 
Reserve.It is anticipated that £1m will be spent in 20/2021 and a 
further £2.5m in 2021/22 with upto £4m in 2022/23.

3.0 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) (see Appendix B)

3.1 The revised Repairs and Maintenance budget for 2019/20 is 
£4,715,000 an increase of £191,000 on the original budget.  The 
Repairs and Maintenance budget for 2020/21 is £4,754,000. 

3.2 It is anticipated that the HRA balance will remain at its current level 
of £991,000 for 2019/20, with a surplus of £261,000 to be 
transferred to the Major Repairs Reserve/New Build/Loan 
Repayment Reserve. 

3.3 It is anticipated that the HRA balance will continue to remain at 
£991,000 for 2020/21. A surplus of approximately £224,000 is 
budgeted to be transferred to the Major Repairs/New Build/Loan 
Repayment Reserve in 2020/21. The increased commitment to 
building new homes and requirement to utilise our additional 1-4-
1 receipts necessitates the need for reserve levels to be 
maintained.

4.0 HRA Capital Programme

4.1 The original  HRA Capital Programme for improvements to 
housing stock in  2019/20 was £4,000,000 and the revised budget 
for 2019/20 is £3,300,000 a reduction of £700,000.The budget for 



2020/21 is £4,000,000 this is an increase on the original budget of 
2018/19 of  £700,000.

4.2 The revised HRA Capital programme has also set aside 
£1,458,000 in 2019/20 for the purchase of properties and a further 
£2,470,000 in 2020/21 for new build.

5.0 Rent Level Proposals

5.1 From April 2020 rents will start to increase again at the rate of CPI 
plus 1% (2.3d).  The current CPI rate used will be 1.7%

5.2 The average social housing rent for secure tenants is currently  
£77.91 per week this excludes  hostels and the affordable rented 
properties. This is set to increase to £80.02 for 2020/21. Hostels 
are are due to increase from £160.06 to £164.38 and affordable 
rents from £143.71 to £147.60. 
An analysis of the numbers of different stock types and 
corresponding new rental levels is detailed in Appendix C.

5.3 Rents will increase by £2.11 a week on average for the social 
housing tenants, £4.32 for Hostels and £3.88 for affordable 
properties.Over the last ten years rents have reduced four times 
and the average increase is £1.95 per week during this period. It 
is proposed that service charges for tenants will continue to be 
determined at a level that enables the Council to recover the cost 
of the services provided.

5.4

6.0

6.1

6.2

It is proposed to increase rent levels for older style garages in line 
with inflation as previously agreed in the Garage Renewal strategy 
and to increase the charge for non GBC tenants by a further £1 
per week. New style garages will remain at their current rent level 
for GBC tenants.
 
Capital Improvements/Repairs and Maintenance 

A breakdown of the expenditure on capital improvements and 
repairs and maintenance is included at appendix D to this report.
  
The table included at appendix D splits the expenditure into its 
capital and revenue headings and details the main areas of 
expenditure under each heading. The work priorities have been 
identified by the stock condition surveys undertaken.

7.0 Risk Assessment

7.1 Self-financing means that much of the risk involved with the 
upkeep, maintenance and management of council housing has 
moved from Central Government to Local Authorities. Therefore 



the maintenance of the Major Repairs/New Build/Loan Repayment 
Reserve is considered essential. 

This reserve provides for the future funding of HRA projects, 
including new build programmes, safeguarding non-insurable 
risks and allowing the Council to take the opportunity to carry out 
any special debt repayment (potentially leading to discounts) 
should the economic conditions favouring such measures arise; 
and is in addition to the HRA Working Balance.

7.2 The government’s decision to allow rents to increase rents in 
social housing for 5 years at CPI plus 1% from April 2020 has 
improved the budgeted reserve levels previously anticipated in the 
HRA Business Plan. Revenue account balances will continue to 
be maintained at their current levels but funds that had been 
budgeted to be transferred to the Major Repairs/New Build/Loan 
Repayment Reserve will be amended by the amounts as detailed  
in Appendix A.

8.0 Other Properties

8.1 There is one other property (Park Lodge) where the rent level is 
assessed in line with HRA properties. The proposal is to increase 
the rent of this property in line with HRA properties.

9.0 Conclusion

9.1 This Report summarises the HRA budgets for 2019/20 and 
2020/21 as well as the proposed rent increase.

Financial Services 
comments:

As set out in the report

Legal Services comments: The Council is under a duty to set a 
budget which prevents a debit balance 
arising on the Housing Revenue 
Account

Crime and Disorder: Not applicable
Equality and Diversity: No direct implications
Service Improvement Plan 
implications:

The HRA Business Plan is a Service 
Improvement Plan item

Corporate Plan: More effective performance 
management, which includes making 
the best use of our assets, is a strategic 
priority in the Corporate Plan.

Risk Assessment: As detailed in paragraph 7.



Background papers: Garage Strategy (June 2009) /HRA 
Business Plan 2012-2042(Jan 2012) 
Business Plan Update Council Dwelling 
Rents 2019/20. 

Appendices/Enclosures:
Appendix A HRA 30 Year Business Plan extract
Appendix B HRA Budget
Appendix C Rent Analysis Extract
Appendix D  Repairs Budget

Report Author/ Lead Officer: Tim Hoskins Group Accountant Housing



APPENDIX A

  HRA 30 YEAR BUSINESS PLAN EXTRACT  
 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 Totals
 REV      
Rental income 13,568,000 13,780,000 14,152,000 14,450,000 14,430,000 70,380,000
Service chgs 693,600 745,000 750,000 750,000 750,000 3,688,600
Voids/Write Offs -220,000 -220,000 -240,000 -240,000 -240,000 -1,160,000
Garages 295,000 295,000 295,000 295,000 295,000 1,475,000
Other Income 376,400 373,000 370,000 370,000 370,000 1,859,400
  
Total Income 14,713,000 14,973,000 15,327,000 15,625,000 15,605,000 76,243,000
  
General 2,212,000 2,167,000 2,200,000 2,250,000 2,300,000 11,129,000
Special 2,034,000 2,011,000 2,040,000 2,070,000 2,100,000 10,255,000
Repairs 4,715,000 4,754,000 4,800,000 4,850,000 4,900,000 24,019,000
Other Expenditure 312,000 239,000 250,000 260,000 270,000 1,331,000
  
Total Expenditure 9,273,000 9,171,000 9,290,000 9,430,000 9,570,000 46,734,000
  
Interest Received 54,000 52,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 256,000

Capital Expenditure -3,293,000 -3,688,000 -3,300,000 -3,500,000 -3,500,000
-

17,281,000
  
Net Operating 
Income 2,201,000 2,166,000 2,787,000 2,745,000 2,585,000 12,484,000
  
Prudential borrowing 0
Loan Interest 1,897,000 1,900,000 1,920,000 1,960,000 1,990,000 9,667,000
loan repayment  
Debt management 42,000 42,000 45,000 48,000 50,000 227,000
 MRR/New Build 262,000 224,000 822,000 737,000 545,000 2,590,000
  
Total Appropriations 2,201,000 2,166,000 2,787,000 2,745,000 2,805,000 12,484,000
  
Annual Cashflow  
Opening Balance  
Closing Balance       

Extra rent week in 2019/20
Rent increases start 2020/21 at  CPI +1% for 5 years.(CPI 1.7% in model)



APPENDIX B

BUDGET REVISED BUDGET
2019/20 2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000 £000
HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

Expenditure

Repairs & Maintenance 4,524 4,715 4,754
Supervision  & Management 3,926 4,246 4,177
Rents ,Rates,Taxes and Other Charges 331 312 239
Depreciation,Impairment and 
Revaluation 3,992 3,293 3,688
Debt Management Costs 42 42 42

Total Expenditure 12,815 12,608 12,900

Income

Dwelling Rents (14,017) (14,042) (14,305)
Non Dwelling Rents (265) (295) (295)
Charges For Services and Facilities (437) (376) (373)

Total Income (14,719) (14,713) (14,973)

Net Cost Of Services (1,904) (2,105) (2,073)

Interest Payable & Similar Charges 1,900 1,897 1,900
Interest & Investment Income (50) (53) (52)

NET HRA SURPLUS FOR YEAR (54) (261) (225)

HRA Balance

Balance B/fwd 991 991 991
Transfer to from HRA
Balance C/F 991 991 991

NEW BUILD RESERVE
Balance B/Fwd (3,258) (3,312) (3,573)
Transfer (to)or from HRA (54) (261) (225)
Balance C/Fwd (3,312) (3,573) (3,798)



 APPENDIX C
Stock Count as at 11th December 2019

Type /bedroom  1 2 3 4 5 Total
        
Bedsit  12     12
Bungalow  315 65 10   390
Flat  929 61 17   1007
House  10 302 826 79 1 1218
House with extra ground floor bedroom   2 19 2  23
House with garage attached on curtiledge    13   13
Maisonette  23 103 57 2  185
Sheltered Bedsit  13     13
Sheltered Bungalow  38     38
Sheltered Flat  125 6    131
Hostels  72 8 4   84
Total       3114

Average rent by bedroom size

Type /bedroom  1 2 3 4 5 Total
        
Bedsit  62.70     62.70
Bungalow  77.03 85.56 94.32   78.90
Flat  71.09 83.97 86.99   72.14
House  77.44 88.37 93.39 100.78 97.73 92.50
House with extra ground floor bedroom   87.82 100.96 107.17  100.36
House with garage attached on curtiledge    96.43   96.43
Maisonette  73.29 82.59 86.03 96.55  82.64
Sheltered Bedsit  59.62     59.62
Sheltered Bungalow  72.05     72.05
Sheltered Flat  64.18     64.18



APPENDIX D

Ref Revenue Budget 
20/21

1 Responsive Repairs (Inc Hostels and Major Responses) £2,020,000
2 Voids £900,000
3 Bulk Waste £120,000
4 Lifts Replacement and Repairs £20,000
5 Estate Improvements (Inc Tennant Led Fencing & OAP Redecs) £45,000
6 Cyclical (Inc Gas Servicing, External Painting, Compliance, PET, Equipment Testing & Keys £1,112,000

 Total £4,217,000

Ref Capital Budget 
20/21

7 Asbestos (Survey & Removals) £50,000
8 Fire Risk Assessment (Inc Associated Works & Testing £50,000
9 Disabled Aid & Adaptions (Inc Major Repairs) £400,000

10 Contingent Major Repairs (Inc Professional Fees) £725,000
11 Energy Efficiency (Inc wall installation) £5,000
12 Estate Capital (inc Additional Parking & Env Improvements ) £25,000
13 Roof Works (Inc Guttering) £0
14 Window and Doors £75,000
15 Kitchen & Bathrooms £1,000,000
16 Electrical Upgrades (Including Smoke Alarms) £400,000
17 Heating Upgrades £500,000
18 Sheltered Scheme Improvements £0

 Total £3,230,000



This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO:  COUNCIL  

DATE OF MEETING: 5 FEBRUARY 2020

REPORT BY: COUNCILLOR HOOK (CHAIRMAN OF THE POLICY AND 
ORGANISATION BOARD) 

At its meeting on 4 February 2020 the Policy and Organisation Board will consider three 
reports of the Borough Treasurer advising the Board of the Capital Strategy 2020/21, 
the Investment Strategy 2020/21, and the Treasury Management Strategy and MRP 
Policy.

The recommendations of the Board reports are as follows: 

CAPITAL STRATEGY REPORT 2020/21

Recommendation:
That the Policy and Organisation Board recommended Council approve:

The Capital Strategy for 2020/21

INVESTMENT STRATEGY REPORT 2020/21

Recommendation:

The Policy and Organisation Board recommend that Full Council to approve the 
Investment Strategy as detailed in this report

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY AND MRP POLICY 

Recommendation:

Policy and Organisation Board recommend Council to approve:

 Minimum Revenue Provision Policy, as identified in 2.1

 The Treasury Management Strategy, as identified in 2.2

The reports are attached as appendix a and the resolutions of the Board will be 
presented to the Council meeting, in hard copy, on the 5th February 2020.



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

Report to: POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD

Meeting date: 4th February 2020

Title: CAPITAL STRATEGY REPORT 2020/21

Originator: BOROUGH TREASURER

Status FOR RECOMMEDATION TO COUNCIL 

Purpose

The approval by full Council of the Capital Strategy is requirement of the Prudential code for 
Capital Finance in Local Authorities (Prudential Code), and the Treasury Management in the 
Public Services Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes (Treasury 
Management Code) which were updated in December 2017.

Recommendations

That the Policy and Organisation Board recommended Council approve:

 The Capital Strategy for 2020/21

1.0 Introduction

1.1 This capital strategy gives a high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital 
financing and treasury management activity contribute to the provision of local public 
services along with an overview of how associated risk is managed and the 
implications for future financial sustainability. 

1.2   The report covers the following broad areas

1.2.1 Capital Expenditure and Financing (2.0)
1.2.2 Treasury Management (2.1)
1.2.3 Revenue Budget Implications (2.2)
1.2.4 Knowledge and Skills (2.3)

2.0 Capital Expenditure and Financing

Capital expenditure is where the Council spends money on the acquiring, creating, 
enhancing or adding life or value to an existing tangible or intangible fixed asset, that 
will yield benefits to the council for a period of more than one year. This will include 
spending on assets owned by other bodies, and loans and grants to other bodies 
enabling them to buy assets.



- 2 -

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a ring-fenced account which ensures that 
council housing does not subsidise, or itself be subsidised, by other local services. 
HRA capital expenditure is recorded seperately.

The planned capital expenditure between 2019/20 and 2022/23 is set out in the table 
below.

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Actual Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

General Fund Services 2,130.0 3,535.0 6,150.0 3,668.0 3,254.0
HRA 3,687.0 4,758.0 5,000.0 5,840.0 7,390.0
Total 5,817.0 8,293.0 11,150.0 9,508.0 10,644.0

Capital Expenditure

The capital strategy has 3 core aims: 

Aim 1 - To support a medium term outlook: 

 Allocating known resources to Capital Investment for current and future years, 
ensuring that in years where capital resources are limited, critical investment can 
continue to be made

 Aligning known resources and spending, ensuring that we do not apply uncertain 
or forecast resources to current investment, thus leaving potentially unfunded 
obligations in the future 

 Smoothing out any significant gaps between capital investment needs and 
capital resources available by utilising contributions from revenue

Aim 2 - To maximise the capital resources available and the flexibility of their 
application: 

 Setting aside capital funding for "match funding" opportunities, where these are 
aligned with the council's strategic objectives in order to take advantage of 
"free" funding 

 Reviewing contractually uncommitted schemes against newly emerging capital 
investment priorities 

 Avoiding ring-fencing of capital resources, except where such ring fencing is 
statutory 

 Using prudential borrowing for "invest to save" schemes, schemes which 
generate income or schemes which enhance the economy of the Borough

Aim 3 - Targeted capital investment: 



- 3 -

 Annual review of all contractually uncommitted capital schemes which rely on 
non-ring-fenced funding to ensure that they remain a priority in the context of 
any newly emerging needs and aspirations

 Investment in programmes of a recurring nature that are essential to maintain 
operational effectiveness 

 Invest in specific schemes that:
o Have a significant catalytic potential to unlock the regeneration of the 

borough
o Are significant in terms of the council strategies that they serve 
o Are significantly income generating or efficiency generating 
o If not implemented would cause severe disruption to service delivery

For 20/21 onwards, the capital programme comprises a balanced set of proposals 
which: 

• Ensure the medium term resilience of essential core services
• Continue to improve Council Housing, maintaining the affordability of good 

quality homes for residents, including investment in building new housing stock
• Provide substantial investment into the Borough Economy to:

o Re-develop the Waterfront and stimulate economic activity
o Enhance the Town Centre and assocaited heritage assets in the Town 

Centre area
o Promote the visitor economy 

• Continued investment in digital technology to support the customer experience 
with the Council.

Governance : For large scale schemes, the Council will follow a full business case 
process which will include the review of an alignment with the Council's strategic 
objectives, the economic case for the borough, the financial case for the Council and 
involve a full options appraisal and financial apprasial with appropriate risk 
sensitivities.  All such business cases will be prepared by appropriately qualified staff 
with expert advice as necessary and follow a proper approval and decision making 
process.

Additionally, Service managers bid annually to include projects in the Council’s capital 
programme in accordance with the Council’s Core Aims. The final programme is 
presented to Full Council in February each year.

All capital expenditure must be financed, either from external sources (government 
grants and other contributions), the Council’s own resources (revenue, reserves and 
capital receipts) or debt (borrowing, leasing). The planned financing of the above 
expenditure is as follows.



- 4 -

Capital Financing 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Actual Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

External Resources 1,154.0 1,183.0 2,739.0 1,658.0 1,523.0
Local Resources (excl. borrowing) 4,663.0 5,812.0 5,976.0 6,923.0 8,757.0
Borrowing 0.0 1,298.0 2,435.0 927.0 364.0

Debt is only a temporary source of finance, since loans and leases must be repaid, 
and this is therefore replaced over time by other financing, usually from revenue which 
is known as minimum revenue provision (MRP). Alternatively, proceeds from selling 
apital assets (known as capital receipts) may be used to replace debt finance.

The Council is required to set aside prudent revenue provision for debt repayment 
(MRP) where borrowing or credit arrangements are used to finance General Fund 
capital expenditure. The Council’s policy is to calculate MRP on expenditure that is 
funded by unsupported prudential borrowing by reference to the asset’s useful life 
using the annuity method, starting in the year after the asset becomes operational. 
Updated guidance from the MHCLG in February 2018 introduced a maximum useful 
life of 50 years for MRP purposes including any expenditure incurred on investment 
properties that provide a revenue stream, except where a longer life is supported by 
an opinion from a suitably qualified professional adviser.

The Council’s cumulative outstanding amount of debt finance is measured by the 
capital financing requirement (CFR). This increases with new debt-financed capital 
expenditure and reduces with MRP repayments and capital receipts used to replace 
debt. The CFR is expected to increase by £2.252m during 2020/21. Based on the 
above figures for expenditure and financing, the Council’s estimated CFR is as follows 
and which takes into account an initial assessment of the potential implications of the 
new accounting standard IFRS 16 concerning the requirement to capitalise operating 
leases over 12 months old).

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Actual Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

CFR - Non Housing 19,918.0 21,216.0 23,468.0 23,730.0 23,357.0
CFR - Housing 61,789.0 61,789.0 61,789.0 61,789.0 61,789.0
Total CFR 81,707.0 83,005.0 85,257.0 85,519.0 85,146.0
Net movement in CFR 0.0 1,298.0 2,252.0 262.0 (373.0)
Movement in CFR is represented by
Net financing need for the year 0.0 1,298.0 2,435.0 927.0 364.0
* Less MRP/VRP/other movements 0.0 0.0 (183.0) (665.0) (737.0)
Movement in CFR 0.0 1,298.0 2,252.0 262.0 (373.0)

Capital Financing Requirement

2.1 Treasury Management 



- 5 -

Treasury management is concerned with keeping sufficient but not excessive cash 
available to meet the council’s spending needs, while managing the risks involved. 
Surplus cash is invested until required, while a shortage of cash will be met by 
borrowing, to avoid excessive credit balances or overdrafts in the bank current 
account. The council is typically cash rich in the short-term as revenue income is 
received before it is spent, but cash poor in the long-term as capital expenditure is 
incurred before being financed. The revenue cash surpluses are offset against capital 
cash shortfalls to reduce overall borrowing. 

Due to decisions taken in the past, the council currently has £70m borrowing at an 
average interest rate of 2.87% and £14.8m treasury investments at an average rate of 
0.78%.

Borrowing Strategy: The council’s main objectives when borrowing is to achieve a 
low but certain cost of finance while retaining flexibility should plans change in future. 
These objectives are often conflicting, and the council therefore seeks to strike a 
balance between cheap short-term loans (currently available at around 1%) and long-
term fixed rate loans where the future cost is known but higher (currently 2.3 to 3.0%).

Projected levels of the council’s total outstanding debt (solely borrowing) are shown 
below, compared with the capital financing requirement.

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Actual Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

External Debt 73,500.0 76,000.0 80,000.0 83,000.0 83,000.0
Other Long Term Liabilities 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Gross Debt at 31 March 73,500.0 76,000.0 80,000.0 83,000.0 83,000.0
CFR 81,707.0 83,005.0 85,257.0 85,519.0 85,146.0
Under / (over) borrowing 8,207.0 7,005.0 5,257.0 2,519.0 2,146.0

Portfolio Position

Statutory guidance is that debt should remain below the capital financing requirement, 
except in the short-term.  As can be seen from table above, the council expects to 
comply with this in the medium term.

Affordable borrowing limit: The Council is legally obliged to set an affordable 
borrowing limit (also termed the authorised limit for external debt) each year: In line 
with statutory guidance, a lower “operational boundary” is also set as a warning level 
should debt approach the limit.

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
89.8 95.3 97.7 98.0

Authorised limit

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
82.1 86.1 89.1 89.1

Operational boundary



- 6 -

Treasury Investment Strategy : Treasury investments arise from receiving cash 
before it is paid out again. Investments made for service reasons or for pure financial 
gain are not generally considered to be part of treasury management. 

The Council’s policy on treasury investments is to prioritise security and liquidity over 
yield, that is to focus on minimising risk rather than maximising returns. Cash that is 
likely to be spent in the near term is invested securely, for example with the 
government, other local authorities or selected high-quality banks, to minimise the risk 
of loss. Money that will be held for longer terms consideration is given to investing in 
higher yielding investments particularly pooled funds to balance the risk of loss 
against the risk of receiving returns below inflation.  For both near-term and longer-
term investments held in pooled funds, an external fund manager makes decisions on 
which particular investments to buy and the Council may request its money back at 
short notice.

Investment levels are expected to range from £10m to £17m with up to £4m being 
invested in long term pooled funds.

Risk management: The effective management and control of risk are prime 
objectives of the Council’s treasury management activities. The treasury management 
strategy therefore sets out various indicators and limits to constrain the risk of 
unexpected losses and details the extent to which financial derivatives may be used to 
manage treasury risks.

Governance: Decisions on treasury management investment and borrowing are 
made daily and are therefore delegated to the Borough Treasurer (S151 Officer) and 
staff, who must act in line with the treasury management strategy approved by 
Council. The Policy and Organisation board is responsible for scrutinising treasury 
management decisions.

2.2 Revenue Budget Implications
Although capital expenditure is not charged directly to the revenue budget, interest 
payable on loans and MRP are charged to revenue, offset by any investment income 
receivable. The net annual charge is known as financing costs; this is compared to the 
net revenue stream i.e. the amount funded from Council Tax, business rates and 
general government grants. The proportion of financing cost to net revenue stream is 
set out below.

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Actual Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate

Non-HRA 3.8% 3.6% 3.8% 5.6% 6.4%
HRA 34.4% 33.9% 33.3% 32.2% 31.4%

%

Sustainability: Due to the very long-term nature of capital expenditure and financing, 
the revenue budget implications of expenditure incurred in the next few years will 
extend for up to 50 years into the future. The Borough Treasurer (S151 Officer) is 
satisfied that the proposed capital programme is prudent, affordable and sustainable 
because:

 Any prudential borrowing undertaken has been considered having regard for 
the Cipfa prudential code.



- 7 -

 Prudential borrowing undertaken has been for "Invest to Save Schemes" only

 The timing of borrowing decisions have been taken on the basis of the 
expected optimum time to minimise the overall cost of borrowing - determined 
on a net present value basis and informed by expert external advisors forecasts 
of interest rate projections

 The council has a robust Medium Term Financial Strategy to support the 
delivery of its future savings requirements

2.3 Knowledge and Skills
The council employs professionally qualified and experienced staff in senior positions 
with responsibility for making capital expenditure, borrowing and investment 
decisions. For example, the Borough Treasurer and S151 officer is a qualified 
accountant as is the Head of Accounts. 
Where council staff do not have the knowledge and skills required, use is made of 
external advisers and consultants that are specialists in their field. The council 
currently employs Arlingclose Limited as treasury management advisers. This 
approach is more cost effective than employing such staff directly, and ensures that 
the council has access to knowledge and skills commensurate with its risk appetite.

3.0 CONCLUSION
The capital strategy report ensures the Council complies with CIPFA’s latest 
prudential code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities. 

Financial implications: As contained in the report.

Legal implications: It is a legal requirement that a capital strategy 
report is considered by the Council prior to the 
start of the financial year

Service Improvement 
Plan implications:

Corporate Plan:

This report is required in order that to fulfil 
statutory requirements associated with the 
achievement of both service improvement plan 
and corporate plan targets.

Risk Assessment: As contained in the report

Background papers:

Author:  Borough Treasurer



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Report to: POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD 

Meeting date: 4th February 2020

Title: INVESTMENT STRATEGY REPORT 2020/21

Originator: BOROUGH TREASURER

Status FOR RECOMMENDATION TO FULL 
COUNCIL 

Purpose

The approval by full Council of an Investment Strategy is a requirement of the Prudential 
code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (Prudential Code), and the Treasury 
Management in the Public Services Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes 
(Treasury Management Code) which were updated in December 2017.

Recommendations

The Policy and Organisation Board recommend that Full Council to approve the Investment 
Strategy as detailed in this report

1.0 Introduction

1.1 The Authority invests its money for two broad purposes:

 because it has surplus cash as a result of its day-to-day activities, for example 
when income is received in advance of expenditure (known as treasury 
management investments); and

 to earn investment income (known as commercial investments where this is 
the main purpose).

1.2 This investment strategy meets the requirements of statutory guidance issued by the 
Government in January 2018. 



2

2.0 Treasury Management Investments 

The Authority typically receives its income in cash (e.g. from taxes and grants) before 
it pays for its expenditure in cash (e.g. through payroll and invoices). It also holds 
reserves for future expenditure. These activities, plus the timing of borrowing 
decisions, can lead to a cash surplus which is invested in accordance with guidance 
from the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). The balance 
of treasury management investments is expected to fluctuate between £10m and 
£17m during the 2020/21 financial year.  

Contribution: The contribution that these investments make to the objectives of the 
Authority is to support effective treasury management activities. 

Further details: Full details of the Authority’s policies and its plan for 2020/21 for 
treasury management investments are covered in a separate document, the treasury 
management strategy.

3.0 Commercial Investments: Property

Contribution: As outlined in last year’s Capital Strategy, the Council has a portfolio of 
historic portfolio of properties that we now lease out, in part for income generation 
purposes.  We have not, in this financial year, procured any new properties to add to 
this portfolio.  The value of the existing portfolio is detailed in the table below.  The 
Council is currently reviewing its commercial property portfolio to determine how it can 
enhance revenues (and, if not, is disposal is a viable choice).  This review will include 
understanding where it would be financially advantageous to procure new property 
assets.

Property held for investment purposes 
Property held for 

Investment Purposes
Value at 

31/3/2019 
£000’s

Property portfolio 6,089

TOTAL 6,089

Security: If we did decide to undertake a procurement process then we would seek to 
provide security for the investment in the following way:

 In accordance with government guidance, the Authority considers a property 
investment to be secure if its accounting valuation is at or higher than its purchase 
cost including taxes and transaction costs. 

 We undertake regular fair value assessment of the Authority’s investment property 
portfolio and we would use this to determine if the underlying assets provide 
security for capital investment. 

 Should the year end accounts preparation and audit process value these 
properties below their purchase cost, then an updated investment strategy will be 



3

presented to full council detailing the impact of the loss on the security of 
investments and any revenue consequences arising therefrom.

Risk assessment: The Authority assesses the risk of loss before entering into and 
whilst holding property investments by undertaking regular rent reviews on its portfolio, 
utilising expert property advice (particularly for material holdings) and ensuring 
investments are made supported in investment appraisal techniques to quantify 
potential risks and opportunities. 

Liquidity: Compared with other investment types, property is relatively difficult to sell 
and convert to cash at short notice, and can take a considerable period to sell in 
certain market conditions. To ensure that the invested funds can be accessed when 
they are needed, for example to repay capital borrowed, the Authority maintains a 
range of short-term liquid investments to access as required.

4.0 Proportionality 

The Authority is partially dependent on investment activity returns to achieve a 
balanced revenue budget. The table below shows the extent to which General Fund 
expenditure is dependent on achieving the income from investments over the lifecycle 
of the Medium Term Financial Plan. Should it fail to achieve the expected income, the 
Authority’s contingency plans for continuing to provide these services are to keep 
under review service costs and to maintain financial resilience via its Reserves.

Proportionality of Investments

2018/19 
Actual 
£000's

2019/20 
Forecast 

£000's

2020/21 
Budget 
£000's

2021/22 
Budget 
£000's

2022/23 
Budget 
£000's

General Fund Net 
Expenditure 9,303 10,600 10,152 10,765 11,337

Commercial Property 
Investment Income 477 491 523 523 523
Proportion % 5.13% 4.63% 5.21% 4.86% 4.61%
The proportion is the investment income divided by the General Fund service net 
expenditure as shown in the budget book and forward projections

5.0 Capacity, Skills and Culture

Elected members and statutory officers:  Investment decision making is largely the 
responsibility of the Accounts team.  The Borough Treasurer, the Head of Accounts 
and the Group Accountant are qualified accountants.  The team also utilise expert 
third-party advice regarding investment decision making and have appointed 
Arlingclose as its Treasury Management advisor.  The team regularly utilise nvestment 
appraisal techniques to quantify investment options and their opportunities and risks.    



4

Commercial deals: Any commercial deals must be submitted to the Head of Accounts 
for approval as well as to the Council’s Borough Solicitor.  

Corporate governance: The Policy & Organisation Board can request reports 
regarding the Council’s investment processes, as can the Standards & Governance 
Committee.  Investments can also be reviewed by the Council’s Audit team and also 
by our External Auditors.

Financial implications: As contained in the report.

Legal implications: It is a legal requirement that an Investments 
Strategy Report is considered by the Council 
each year.

Service Improvement 
Plan implications:

Corporate Plan:

This report is required in order that to fulfil 
statutory requirements associated with the 
achievement of both service improvement plan 
and corporate plan targets.

Risk Assessment: As contained in the report

Background papers:

Author:  Borough Treasurer



- 1 -

Report to: POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD

Meeting date: 4th February 2020

Title: TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY & 
MRP POLICY

Originator: BOROUGH TREASURER

Status FOR RECOMMENDATION TO FULL 
COUNCIL

Purpose

This report outlines the Council’s policy for charging unfinanced capital expenditure to 
revenue (MRP) together with the expected treasury operations for this period. It fulfils a key
legislative requirement.

Recommendations

Policy and Organisation Board recommend Council to approve:

 Minimum Revenue Provision Policy, as identified in 2.1

 The Treasury Management Strategy, as identified in 2.2

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 Overview

1.1.1 Treasury management is the management of the Council’s cash flows, borrowing and 
investments, and the associated risks. The Council has borrowed and invested 
substantial sums of money and is therefore exposed to financial risks including the 
loss of invested funds and the revenue effect of changing interest rates.  The 
successful identification, monitoring and control of financial risk are therefore central 
to the Authority’s prudent financial management. 

Treasury risk management at the Council is conducted within the framework of the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the 
Public Services: Code of Practice 2017 Edition (the CIPFA Code) which requires the 
Council to approve a treasury management strategy before the start of each financial 
year. This report fulfils the Council’s legal obligation under the Local Government Act 
2003 to have regard to the CIPFA Code.

Investments held for service purposes or for commercial profit are considered in a 
different report, the Investment Strategy, which accompanies this report.

1.2 Reporting requirements



- 2 -

1.2.1 The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main reports 
each year, which incorporate a variety of polices, estimates and actuals. 

1.2.2 Minimum Revenue Provision and Treasury Management Strategy (this report) - 
which covers:
 a Minimum Revenue Provision Policy (how residual capital expenditure is charged 

to revenue over time);
 the Treasury Management Strategy (how the treasury management investments 

and borrowings are to be organised) including treasury indicators; 

1.2.3 A Mid Year Treasury Management Report – this will update members with the 
progress of the capital position, amending prudential indicators as necessary, and 
whether the treasury strategy and investment strtegies are meeting their objectives or 
whether any policies require revision

1.2.4 An Annual Treasury Report – this provides details of a selection of actual prudential, 
investment and treasury indicators and actual treasury and investment operations 
compared to the estimates within the strategy. 

The latter two reports are combined and jointly reported in September.

1.3 Annual Minimum Revenue Provision Statement
1.3.1 The Council’s policy for calculating the annual amount charged to the revenue budget 

to repay capital expenditure financed by debt is set out in para 2.1.

1.4 Treasury Management Strategy for 2020/21

1.4.1 The strategy for 2020/21 (set out in section 2.2) includes the following areas:

 Economic Outlook and prospects for interest rates (para 2.2.1)
 Borrowing strategy (para 2.2.2) 
 Policy on borrowing in advance of need (para 2.2.3)
 Debt rescheduling (para 2.2.4)
 Investment strategy (Treasury Management Investments) (para 2.2.5)
 Treasury indicators which limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council (para 

2.2.6)
 Other Items (para 2.2.7)

1.4.2 These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the 
CIPFA Prudential Code, the CLG MRP Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury Management 
Code and the CLG Investment Guidance.

2.0 REPORT



- 3 -

2.1 MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION (MRP) POLICY STATEMENT

2.1.1 Background

Where the Council finances capital expenditure by debt, it must put aside resources to 
repay that debt in later years.  The amount charged to the revenue budget for the 
repayment of debt is known as Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP). 

The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to have regard to the Ministry of 
Housing, Communities and Local Government’s Guidance on Minimum Revenue 
Provision (the MHCLG Guidance) most recently issued in 2018.

The broad aim of the MHCLG Guidance is to ensure that capital expenditure is 
financed over a period that is either reasonably commensurate with that over which 
the capital expenditure provides benefits, or, in the case of borrowing supported by 
Government Revenue Support Grant, reasonably commensurate with the period 
implicit in the determination of that grant. 

The 2018 updated guidance introduced a maximum useful life of 50 years for MRP 
purposes including any expenditure incurred on investment properties that provide a 
revenue stream, except where a longer life is supported by an opinion from a suitably 
qualified professional adviser.

There is no requirement on the HRA to make a minimum revenue provision.

2.1.2 Policy Statement

 For unsupported capital expenditure MRP will be determined by charging the 
expenditure over the expected useful life of the relevant asset as the principal 
repayment on an annuity with an interest rate by reference to the relevant PWLB 
rate at 31st March , starting in the year after the asset becomes operational. MRP 
on purchases of freehold land will be charged over 50 years.

 For assets acquired by leases, MRP will be determined as being equal to the 
element of the rent or charge that goes to write down the balance sheet liability.

 No MRP will be charged in repect of assets held within the Housing Revenue 
Account.

2.2 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

2.2.1 Economic Outlook and prospects for interest rates

The Council uses Arlingclose Limited as its treasury advisor and the following is their 
view of the economic outlook and interest rates 

Economic background: The UK’s progress negotiating its exit from the European 
Union, together with its future trading arrangements, will continue to be a major 
influence on the Council’s treasury management strategy for 2020/21. The General 
Election has removed some uncertainty within the market, however following the 



- 4 -

expected Withdrawal Bill, uncertainties around the future trading relationship with the 
EU remain.

GDP growth rose by 0.4% in the third quarter of 2019 from -0.2% in the previous three 
months with the annual rate falling further below its trend rate to 1.1% from 1.2%. 
Services, construction and production added positively to growth, by 0.5%, 1.2% and 
0.1% respectively, while agriculture recorded a fall of 0.1%. Looking ahead, the Bank 
of England’s Monetary Policy Report (formerly the Quarterly Inflation Report) forecasts 
economic growth to pick up during 2020 as Brexit-related uncertainties dissipate and 
provide a boost to business investment helping GDP reach 1.6% in Q4 2020, 1.8% in 
Q4 2021 and 2.1% in Q4 2022.

The headline rate of UK Consumer Price Inflation remained the same in November 
2019 at 1.5% year-on-year, the same as October 2019, however continuing to fall 
from highs of 2.1% in July and April 2019 as accommodation services and transport 
continued to contribute to a level of inflation below the BOE target of 2%. Labour 
market data continues to be positive. The UK international labour organisation 
unemployment rate continues to hold at historic lows at 3.8%, its lowest level since 
1975. The 3-month average annual growth rate for pay excluding bonuses rose to 
3.5% in November 2019 providing some evidence that a shortage of labour is 
supporting wages.  However, adjusting for inflation this means real wages were only 
up by 0.9% in October 2019 and only likely to have a moderate impact on household 
spending.

Domestic inflationary pressures have abated, as domestic gas and electricity price 
freezes have taken effect until 2020. The price of oil has fallen through the year, 
despite a rise in prices in December 2019. The limited inflationary pressure from real 
wages will likely keep inflation below the Bank of England target of 2%. The Bank of 
England maintained Bank Rate to 0.75% in November following a 7-2 vote by the 
Monetary Policy Committee. Despite keeping rates on hold, MPC members did 
confirm that if Brexit uncertainty drags on or global growth fails to recover, they are 
prepared to cut interest rates as required. Moreover, the downward revisions to some 
of the growth projections in the Monetary Policy Report suggest the Committee may 
now be less convinced of the need to increase rates even if there is a Brexit deal.

The US economy has continued to perform relatively well compared to other 
developed nations; however, the Federal Reserve has started to unwind its monetary 
tightening through 2019. The Federal Reserve has cut rates three times to 1.5% - 
1.75%, to stimulate growth as GDP growth has started to fall (to 2.1%). 

The fallout from the US-China trade war continues which, risks contributing to a 
slowdown in global economic activity in 2019. Recent suggestions have been an initial 
compromise and potential unwinding of tariffs; however, this can change quickly. Slow 
growth in Europe, combined with changes in leadership at the ECB and IMF has led to 
a change of stance in 2019. Quantitative easing has continued and been extended. 

Credit outlook: The recent Bank of England stress tests assessed all seven UK 
banking groups. The tests scenarios include deep simultaneous recessions in the UK 
and global economies that are more severe overall than the global financial crisis, 
combined with large falls in asset prices and a separate stress of misconduct costs. 
All seven banks passed the test on both a CET1 ratio and a leverage ratio basis. 



- 5 -

Major banks have steadily increased their capital for many years now. However, there 
are a number of shortcomings in the Bank’s approach; timeliness as the results are 
over 11 months of out date when they are published, being based on end-2018 
balance sheets; ringfencing, as the tests ignore the restrictions on transferring capital 
between ringfenced “retail” banks and non-ringfenced “investment” banks within the 
larger groups and; coverage – the tests should be expanded to cover a wider range of 
UK banks and building societies. 

The Bank of England will seek to address some of these issues in 2020, when Virgin 
Money/Clydesdale will be added to the testing group and separate tests will be 
included of ringfenced banks.

Challenger banks hit the news headlines in 2019 with Metro Bank and TSB Bank both 
suffering adverse publicity and falling customer numbers.

Looking forward, the potential for a “no-deal” Brexit and/or a global recession remain 
the major risks facing banks and building societies in 2020/21 and a cautious 
approach to bank deposits remains advisable.

Interest rate forecast: The Authority’s treasury management adviser Arlingclose is 
forecasting that Bank Rate will remain at 0.75% until March 2023.  The risks to this 
forecast are deemed to be weighted to the downside, particularly from government 
policy around Brexit and the transitionary period and the continuing global economic 
slowdown.  The Bank of England, having previously indicated interest rates may need 
to rise if a Brexit agreement was reached, stated in its November Monetary Policy 
Report and its Bank Rate decision (7-2 vote to hold rates) that the MPC now believe 
this is less likely even in the event of a deal.

Gilt yields have risen but remain at low levels and only some very modest upward 
movement from current levels are expected based on Arlingclose’s interest rate 
projections.  The central case is for 10-year and 20-year gilt yields to rise to around 
1.10% and 1.40% respectively over the time horizon, with broadly balanced risks to 
both the upside and downside.  However, short-term volatility arising from both 
economic and political events over the period is a near certainty. For the purpose of 
setting the budget, it has been assumed that new treasury management investments 
will be made at an average rate of 1.41%, and that new long-term loans will be 
borrowed at an average rate of 2.35%.



- 6 -

Interest rate forecasts :

Bank 
Rate %

PWLB Borrowing Rates %
(including certainty rate adjustment)

5 year 10 year 20 year 50 year
Mar-20 0.75 2.30 2.55 3.00 3.00
Jun-20 0.75 2.30 2.60 3.05 3.05
Sep-20 0.75 2.35 2.60 3.05 3.05
Dec-20 0.75 2.35 2.65 3.05 3.05
Mar-21 0.75 2.35 2.65 3.10 3.10
Jun-21 0.75 2.40 2.70 3.10 3.10
Sep-21 0.75 2.40 2.70 3.10 3.10
Dec-21 0.75 2.45 2.75 3.15 3.15
Mar-22 0.75 2.45 2.75 3.15 3.15
Jun-22 0.75 2.50 2.80 3.15 3.15
Sep-22 0.75 2.55 2.85 3.20 3.20
Dec-22 0.75 2.55 2.90 3.20 3.20
Mar-23 0.75 2.55 2.90 3.20 3.20
Average 
rate 0.75 2.42 2.72 2.68 3.10

 
2.2.2 Borrowing Strategy

The Council expects to hold £76 million of loans at 31/3/20, an increase of £2.5 million 
on the previous year, as part of its strategy for funding previous years’ capital 
programmes. The value of loans are expected to increase to £83 million by the end of 
2022/23 as a result of new borrowing and use of existing resources which internally 
fund the planned capital programme.

The Council may borrow to pre-fund future years’ requirements, providing this does 
not exceed the authorised limit for borrowing which is £95.3 million for 2020/21. This 
strategy is prudent as forecasts are for only a modest increase in interest rates, 
investment returns remaining low and counterparty risk remaining relatively high.

Objectives: The Council’s primary objective when borrowing money is to strike an 
appropriately low risk balance between securing low interest costs and achieving cost 
certainty over the period for which funds are required. The flexibility to renegotiate 
loans should the Council’s long-term plans change is a secondary objective.

Strategy: Given the significant cuts to public expenditure and in particular to local 
government funding, the Council’s borrowing strategy continues to address the key 
issue of affordability without compromising the longer-term stability of the debt 
portfolio. With short-term interest rates currently much lower than long-term rates, it is 
likely to be more cost effective in the short-term to either use internal resources, or to 
borrow short-term loans instead. By doing so, the Council is able to reduce net 
borrowing costs (despite foregone investment income) and reduce overall treasury 
risk. This means that the capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement), 



- 7 -

has not been fully financed with loan debt as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, 
balances and cash flow has been used as a temporary measure 

The benefits of internal and short term borrowing will be monitored regularly against 
the potential for incurring additional costs by deferring borrowing into future years 
when long-term borrowing rates are forecast to rise modestly. 

At 31st March 2020 the Council expects to be underborrowed by £7 million, this will 
reduce to around £2 million by 31st March 2023. 

The Council will undertake a ‘cost of carry’ and breakeven analysis to determine 
whether to  borrow additional sums at long-term fixed rates in 2020/21 with a view to 
keeping future interest costs low, even if this causes additional cost in the short-term.

The Council has previously raised the majority of its long-term borrowing from the 
PWLB but the government increased PWLB rates by 1% in October 2019 making it 
now a relatively expensive options. The Council will consider borrowing any long-term 
loans from other robust sources including banks, pensions and other local authorities.

In addition, the Council will include within it’s debt portfilio more short-term loans 
(normally for up to one year) to reduce treasury cost in  a low interest rate 
environment and cover unexpected cash flow shortages.

The approved sources of long term and short term borrowing are:

 Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) and any successor body
 Banks or building societies authorised to operate in the UK
 Money Market Loans
 Any other UK public body e.g. other Local Authorities
 UK public and private sector pension funds
 Internal funds – the cash held in internal funds can be used short term to 

fund capital expenditure or the repayment of debt, thus delaying the 
need to borrow externally

2.2.3 Policy on borrowing in advance of need

The Council may from time to time borrow in advance of need, where this is expected 
to provide the best long term value for money and the Council can ensure the security 
of such funds. The Borough Treasurer may do this under delegated power where, for 
instance, a sharp rise or fall in interest rates is expected meaning borrowing early at 
fixed interest rates will be economically beneficial or meet budgetary constraints. 
Whilst the Borough Treasurer will adopt a cautious approach to any such borrowing, 
where there is a clear business case for doing so borrowing may be undertaken to 
fund the approved capital programme or to fund future debt maturities.

The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs purely in order to 
profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow in 
advance is expected to be within forward approved Capital Financing Requirement 
estimates. Exceptionally, should a new Capital Invesment opportunity arise in the year 
where it would be appropriate to finance through borrowing and where it could be 



- 8 -

demonstrated that borrowing in advace of need would provide value for money the 
Council may borrow beyond its forward approved Capital Financing Requirement 
estimates.

2.2.4 Debt rescheduling

The PWLB allows authorities to repay loans before they mature and either pay a 
premium or receive a discount according to a set formula based on current interest 
rates. The authority may take advantage of this and replace some loans with new 
loans, or repay loans without replacement, where this is expected to lead to an overall 
cost saving or a reduction in risk.  

Any rescheduling undertaken will be reported to Policy and Organisation Board. 

2.2.5 Investment Strategy (Treasury Management Investments)
The Council holds invested funds, representing income received in advance of 
expenditure plus balances and reserves held.

In the past 12 months, the Council’s investment balance has ranged between £10m 
and £17m and similar levels are expected to be maintained in the forthcoming year.

Objectives: The CIPFA  Code requires the Council to invest its funds prudently, and 
to have regard to the security and liquidity of its investments before seeking the 
highest rate of retrun or yield. 

Security
Liquidity

Yield

The Council’s objective when investing money is to strike an appropriate balance 
between risk and return, minimising the risk of incurring losses from defaults and the 
risk of receiving unsuitably low investment income. Where balances are expected to 
be invested for more than one year, the Council will aim to achieve a total return that 
is equal or higher than the 3 month LIBID rate.

Given the increasing risk and very low returns from short-term unsecured bank 
investments, the Council aims to diversify into higher yielding asset classes during 
2020/21, this is especially the case for an estimated amount of £4m which is expected 



- 9 -

to be available for longer term investments. The balance of the  Council’s surplus 
cash will be invested in short-term unsecured bank deposits, deposits with other local 
authorities and money market funds. This diversification will represent a continuation 
of the current strategy.

Approved Counterparties: The Council may invest surplus funds with any of the 
counterparty types in the table below, subject to the cash limits (per counterparty) and 
the time limits shown.

Credit Rating Banks / 
Building 
Societies 
Un Secured

Banks / 
Building 
Societies 
Secured

UK Government / 
Local Authorities

Corporates Registered 
Providers

UK GOVT n/a n/a Unlimited
5 years

n/a n/a

AAA £2m
2 years

£3m
5 years

£3m
5 years

£2m
5 years

£2m
5 years

AA+ £2m
2 years

£3m
5 years

£3m
5 years

£2m
5 years

£2m
5 years

AA £2m
2 years

£3m
5 years

£3m
5 years

£2m
5 years

£2m
5 years

AA- £2m
2 years

£3m
3 years

£3m
5 years

£2m
3 years

£2m
5 years

A+ £2m
2 years

£3m
 3 years

£3m
5 years

£2m
3 years

£2m
5 years

A £2m              
13 months

£3m
2 years

£3m
5 years

£2m
2 years

£2m
5 years

A- £2m
6 months

£3m
13 months

£3m
5 years

£2m
13 months

£2m
5 years

None None None £3m
5 years1

None None

Pooled Funds Local Authorities Property Fund £4m
Money Market Funds £3m per fund

Other Pooled Funds (Long Term) £2m per fund

Credit Rating: Investment limits are set by reference to the lowest published long-
term credit rating from a selection of external rating agencies. Where available, the 
credit rating relevant to the specific investment or class of investment is used, 
otherwise the counterparty credit rating is used. However, investment decisions are 
never made solely based on credit ratings, and all other relevant factors including 
external advice will be taken into account.

The Council has determined that it will only use approved counterparties from the UK 
or a foreign country with a sovereign rating of AA or higher for direct investment.
No country limit will apply to investments in UK banks or building society. It is 
recommended that an aggregate limit for Investments outside the UK be applied of 

1 Not all Local Authorities are credit rated by the credit rating agencies; however from a credit perspective Local 
Authorities are considered low risk. 



- 10 -

£8million and that in order to minimise the sytemic credit risk of investments in any 
region it is recommended that a £4million limit be applied to the following geographical 
areas where investments can be made in foreign countries.

 Asia & Australia
 Americas
 Eurozone
 Continental Europe outside the Eurozone

Banks / Building Societies Unsecured: Accounts, deposits, certificates of deposit 
and senior unsecured bonds with banks and building societies, other than multilateral 
development banks. These investments are subject to the risk of credit loss via a bail-
in should the regulator determine that the bank is failing or likely to fail.

Banks / Building Societies Secured: Covered bonds, reverse repurchase 
agreements and other collateralised arrangements with banks and building societies. 
These investments are secured on the bank’s assets, which limits the potential losses 
in the unlikely event of insolvency, and means that they are exempt from bail-in. 
Where there is no investment specific credit rating, but the collateral upon which the 
investment is secured has a credit rating, the higher of the collateral credit rating and 
the counterparty credit rating will be used to determine cash and time limits. The 
combined secured and unsecured investments in any one bank / building society will 
not exceed the cash limit for secured investments.

Government / Local Authorities: Loans, bonds and bills issued or guaranteed by UK 
government, regional and local authorities. These investments are not subject to bail-
in, and there is generally a lower risk of insolvency, although they are not zero risk. 

Corporates: Loans, bonds and commercial paper issued by companies other than 
banks and registered providers. These investments are not subject to bail-in, but are 
exposed to the risk of the company going insolvent.  Loans to unrated companies will 
only be made as part of a diversified pool in order to spread the risk widely.

Registered Providers: Loans and bonds issued by, guaranteed by or secured on the 
assets of Registered Providers of Social Housing and registered social landlords, 
formerly known as Housing Associations.  These bodies are tightly regulated by the 
Regulator of Social Housing (in England) and, as providers of public services, they 
retain the likelihood of receiving government support if needed.  

Pooled Funds: Shares or units in diversified investment vehicles consisting of  any of 
the above investment types and property. These funds have the advantage of 
providing wide diversification of investment risks, coupled with the services of a 
professional fund manager in return for a fee.  Short-term Money Market Funds that 
offer same-day liquidity and very low or no volatility will be used as an alternative to 
instant access bank accounts, while pooled funds whose value changes with market 
prices and/or have a notice period will be used for longer investment periods. 

Bond equity and property funds offer enhanced returns over the longer term, but are 
more volatile in the short term.  These allow the Council to diversify into asset classes 
other than cash without the need to own and manage the underlying investments. 



- 11 -

Because these funds have no defined maturity date, but are available for withdrawal 
after a notice period, their performance and continued suitability in meeting the 
Council’s Investment objectives will be monitored regularly.

Operational bank accounts: The Authority will incur operational exposures, through 
operation of it’s current account with National Westminster Bank (credit rating below 
A-). These are not classed as investments, but are still subject to the risk of a bank 
bail-in, and balances will therefore be kept below £750,000 which may for operational 
reasons be occassionally exceeded. 

Risk Assessment and Credit Ratings: Credit ratings are obtained and monitored by 
the Councl’s treasury advisers, who will notify changes in ratings as they occur. 
Where an entity has its credit rating downgraded so that it fails to meet the approved 
investment criteria then:

 no new investment will be made
 any existing investment that can be recalled or sold at no cost will be, and
 full consideration will be given to the recall or sale of all other existing 

investments with the affected counterparty

Where a credit rating agency announces that a credit rating is on review for possible 
downgrade so that it may fall below the approved rating criteria, then only investments 
that can be withdrawn (on the next working day) will be made with that organisation 
until the outcome of the review is announced.

Other Information on the Security of Investments : the Council understands that 
credit ratings are useful, but not perfect, predictors of investment default. Full regard 
will therefore be given to other available information on the credit quality of the 
organisations, in which it invests, including credit default swaps, share prices, 
information on government support for banks and reports in the quality financial press 
and analysis and advice from the Authority’s treasury management adviser. No 
investments will be made with an organisation if there are substantive doubts about its 
credit quality, even though it may otherwise meet the above criteria.

2.2.6 Treasury Management Code Indicators 

2.2.6.1 Interest Rate Exposures 
This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to interest rate risk. The upper 
limits on one-year revenue impact of a 1% rise or fall in interest rates will be:

Interest rate exposures 2020/21
£'000

Limits on one-year revenue impact of a 1% rise in interest rates (285)
Limits on one-year revenue impact of a 1% fall in interest rates 285

The impacts of a change in interest rates is calculated on the assumption that 
maturing loans and investments will be replaced at current rates.
2.2.6.2 Maturity Structure of Borrowing
This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to refinancing risk. The upper 
and lower limits on the maturity structure of borrowing will be:



- 12 -

2020/21 2020/21
Lower Upper

Maturity structure of borrowing 
Under 12 months 0% 30%
12 months to 2 years 0% 25%
2 years to 5 years 0% 25%
5 years to 10 years 0% 25%
10 years and above 35% 55%

(NB Time periods start on the first day of each financial year)

2.2.6.3 Principal Sums Invested for Periods Longer than 364 days
The purpose of this indicator is to control the Council’s exposure to the risk of 
incurring losses by seeking early repayment of its investments. The limits on the long-
term principal sum invested to final maturities beyond the year end will be:

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
Estimate Estimate Estimate

£m £m £m
Principal sums invested > 364 days 6.0 6.0 6.0

Maximum principal sums invested
>365 days

2.2.7 Other Items

2.2.7.1 Investment Training
The training needs of the officers involved on treasury management are identified 
through the annual personal review process, and additionally when the responsibilities 
of individual members of staff change. Staff attend relevant training courses, seminars 
and conferences.
Member training and briefing sessions have taken place in September 2011 (delivered 
by officers), January 2012 (delivered by Capita) and most recently in February 2015 
(delivered by Capita). 

2.2.7.2 Treasury management consultants
The Council have appointed Arlingclose Limited as its external treasury management 
advisors and they provide a range of services to the Council including: 

• Investments advice
• Borrowing advice
• Technical support on treasury matters and capital finance issues
• Economic and interest rate analysis
• Training and briefing sessions

The contract with Arlinclose commenced July 2016 for an initial period of 3 years with 
an option to extend for a further year. The option to extend has been taken.
The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions 
remains with the organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not 
placed upon our external service providers.



- 13 -

2.2.7.3 Policy on Apportioning Interest to the HRA
On 1st April 2012, the Council notionally split each of its existing long-term loans into 
General Fund and HRA pools the later included £57million borrowed on the 28th 
March 2012 to make a payment to the Government under the HRA Self Financing 
scheme. In the future, new long-term loans borrowed will be assigned in their entirety 
to one pool or the other. Interest payable and other costs/income arising from long-
term loans (e.g. premiums and discounts on early redemption) will be 
charged/credited to the respective revenue account. Differences between the value of 
the HRA loans and the HRA’s underlying need to borrow will be charged an interest 
from the General Fund equivalent to the General Funds average interest on 
borrowing. HRA balance sheet resources available for investment will result in a 
notional cash balance which will receive the Council’s average interest rate on 
investments.  

2.2.7.4 Markets in Financial Instruments Directive:
The Council has opted up to professional client status with it’s providers of financial 
services, including advisers, banks, brokers and fund managers, allowing it access to 
a greater range of services but without the greater regulatory protections afforded to 
individuals and small companies. Given the size and range of the Council’s treasury 
management activities, the S151 Officer believes this to be the most appropriate 
status.

3.0 CONCLUSION
The effect of the proposals set out in this report is to allow the Council to effectively 
and efficiently manage cash balances in line with the relevant CIPFA and CLG 
guidance. The low risk nature of the Council’s current policy is consistent with the 
current economic climate. 

Financial implications: As contained in the report.

Legal implications: It is a legal requirement that an annual Treasury 
Management report is considered by the 
Council.

Service Improvement 
Plan implications:

Corporate Plan:

This report is required in order that to fulfil 
statutory requirements associated with the 
achievement of both service improvement plan 
and corporate plan targets.

Risk Assessment: As contained in the report

Background papers:

Author:  Borough Treasurer



This page is intentionally left blank



Community Board
22 January 2020

1

A MEETING OF THE COMMUNITY BOARD
WAS HELD ON 22 JANUARY 2020

Councillor Hook

Councillors  Mrs Batty, Burgess, Casey, Earle, Farr, Hammond, Mrs Hook, Mrs Huggins, 
Hutchison, Hylands, Jessop, Mrs Morgan, Murphy, Pepper (Substituting for Mitchell) and 
Westerby

24. SOLENT ARMED FORCES COVENANT INFORMATION SHARING PLATFORM 
AGREEMENT 

Consideration was given to the Head of Policy and Community Safety seeking approval to 
access and use an information sharing platform between members of the Solent Armed 
Forces Covenant Partnership.

Members welcomed the report and hoped that the good work of the covenant would 
continue. 

Members welcomed that the agreement fell within the lines of GDPR and recognised that it 
would be beneficial for veterans that an agreement in place would ensure they did not have 
to repeat their stories, which would potentially trigger stress for them. 

A partnership with Southampton, Portsmouth, and the Isle of Wight would also ensure 
greater availability of services and facilities and would allow for a greater sharing of 
information and support across channels. 

RESOLVED: That the board approve the Council as a signatory to the partnership 
information sharing framework and to the operational agreement and provides delegated 
authority to the Head of Corporate Policy & Community Safety in consultation with the 
Borough Solicitor to finalise and agree the necessary documentation. 

25. EASTERN SOLENT COASTAL PARTNERSHIP 

Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Streetscene seeking Board approval to 
refresh and update the Eastern Solent Coastal Partnership Agreement from 2012.

Members acknowledged that flooding did not take into account boundaries and that it was  
sensible to belong to the partnership and benefit from the support it provided. 

Members felt the work of the ESCP was important and that the existing work they had 
undertaken in Seafield, Parham Road and Anglesey was invaluable. 

RESOLVED: That the Board approve entering into the updated Eastern Solent Coastal 
Partnership Agreement as further detailed in this report.

26. SOCIAL AND AFFORDABLE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME 

Agenda Item 8



Community Board
22 January 2020

2

Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Housing outlining a proposal for the 
Council to undertake a building programme of new social and affordable housing within the 
Borough; with an initial aim of building 100 houses in the next three financial years, subject 
to land availability and planning permission.

Members acknowledged that the proposal would provide 31 much needed houses as the 
waiting list for those with housing needs was currently over 1000. 

In answer to a Member’s question, the Board was advised that the properties would be 
eligible for right to buy but that subject to the right to buy affordability rules it would 
potentially not be for 15 years. 

The Board was also advised that there would be specific units allocated to specific disability 
needs including family sized accommodation that would exempt the properties from being 
available under the right to buy scheme. 

A member questioned whether it would be appropriate to use the green space proposed at 
Tukes Avenue, as it was felt that the spaces should be retained and that previously the land 
had been considered for a road extension but the retention of the area as open space had 
been deemed a more appropriate use. 

It was suggested that land close to Lapthorn Close, Prideaux-Brune Avenue and Maynard 
Close would be more appropriate.  

A Members advised that he was grateful for the identification of other potential sites and 
advised that there was a significant difficulty with many potential tenants wishing to stay in 
areas where existing family was located and that this was particularly the case with families 
in Bridgemary. 

It was accepted that difficult decisions may need to be made with regard to the use of any 
land for the construction of additional properties, but recognised the need for such 
properties was significant in the Borough. 

Members expressed a desire to see the wider communities consulted with regard to the 
proposals and ensure that the relevant additional services required for the increase in 
properties was provided and also that it was important that Ward Councillors were 
consulted on the decision.

In answer to a Member’s question it was confirmed that any proposals would still need to be 
granted planning permission and that affordable housing was determined as 80% of the 
average rent for the Borough. 

RESOLVED: 

That the Board approves:

 The principle of a programme to build social and affordable housing on Council 
owned land; initially over the next three years but with a long-term objective to build 
more, as set out in this report;



Community Board
22 January 2020

3

 Associated capital costs to be added to the Capital Programme (for approval by Full Council 
on 5th February 2020) of £7.5m; and

 Officers to develop associated delivery mechanisms and, in particular, seek to appoint both 
project management and construction development providers to enable work to commence 
in the new financial year.

  

27. BYLAWS 

Consideration was giving to a report of the Boroughs Solicitor and Monitoring Officer 
seeking approval for a review of the current Council Byelaws. 

Members were advised that there were 52 byelaws and that many of them were out of date. 

In answer to a Members question, the Board was advised that there were currently PDFs of 
23 of them that could be provided but the rest would need to be documented before they 
were available. 

It was recognised that the proposed review was a significant piece of work and that it would 
take some time to undertake. 

RESOLVED: That the review of the existing byelaws in force so as to ensure that they are 
relevant and enforceable be approved 

28. ANY OTHER ITEMS 

There were none.

29. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

RESOLVED: That in relation to the following items the public be excluded from the meeting, 
as it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the 
proceedings, that if members of the public were present during these items there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information within Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to 
the Local Government Act 1972, and further that in all circumstances of the cases, the 
public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information, for the reasons set out in the report

30. REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE CONTRACT EXTENSION 

Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Housing advising the Board of the 
outcome of the Asset Management Services (Lot1) and Gas and Electric Services (Lot 4) 
contract review; and obtain the recommendation of a five year extension to the existing 
Contract Period, from 1st April 2021 to 31st March 2026.  

RESOLVED: That the recommendation in the report be approved. 



Community Board
22 January 2020

4

31. PART B ITEM REPORT TO FOLLOW 

Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Streetscene seeking Board approval to 
form a Direct Services Organisation to enable the delivery of services relating to the 
Boroughs Parks and Open Spaces. 

RESOLVED: That the Board approve the formation of a Direct Services Organisation 
(“DSO”) to deliver grounds maintenance services across the Borough. 

CHAIRMAN

Concluded at 18:38



1

Board/Committee: FULL COUNCIL
Date of Meeting: 5 FEBRUARY 2020
Title MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY & BUDGET 

(REVENUE & CAPITAL) 2020/21
Author: BOROUGH TREASURER
Status: FOR DECISION

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT
1.1 The Council is required to set a "Balanced Budget" and to maintain adequate levels 

of Reserves.  The primary purpose of this report is to set the Council's overall 
Budget for the forthcoming year 2020/21 (both Revenue & Capital) and the 
associated level of Council Tax necessary to help fund the Budget.

1.2 The report also considers the overall financial position both for 2020/21 and 
forecasts for future years and looks at the future outlook for both spending and 
funding and the likely consequences for Council services moving forward.

1.3 In that context, wider recommendations are made regarding the levels of reserves to 
be maintained in order to maintain the overall financial health of the Council in the 
medium term and guard against future uncertainty.

1.4 In particular, this report is set out in five sections:

(a) A Medium Term Financial Strategy covering our financial aims over the 
forthcoming three years in context of the economic and financial context for 
Local Authorities and for Gosport;

(b) The Budget for 2019/20 (revised) and for 2020/21, including 
recommendations for Council Tax for 2020/21;

(c) Estimated reserves over the period 2019/20 to 2023/24;
(d) The statement of the Section 151 Officer on the robustness of the budget 

in compliance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003; and
(e) The Capital Programme 2020/21 to 2023/24 (and associated Prudential 

Indicators), which should be read in the context of supporting reports 
covering the Council’s Capital Strategy, Investment Strategy and Treasury 
Management Strategy.

1.5 In summary, the report outlines the overall current and medium term financial 
position of the Council’s General Fund, recommends a Budget for 2020/21 that 
maintains the financial health and resilience of the Council and proposes an 
associated increase in Council Tax for 2020/21 of £5 (paragraph 2.4).  The financial 
position of the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and recommendations for rent and 
service charge levels for 2020/21 is subject to a separate report.

1.6 To assist the Council in their consideration of the Budget proposals, all Members 
have been issued with a draft Budget Book for 2020/21 which incorporates all 

Agenda Item 9



2

General Fund, Housing Revenue Account and Capital Budgets and provides an 
analysis by Board, Service and Capital Scheme.   

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the following be approved:

2.1 A Revised General Fund Budget for 2019/20 of £10,603,120 as set out in Appendix 
A;

2.2 A General Fund Budget for 2020/21 of £10,282,110 as set out in Appendix A and 
broken down in C;

2.3 Any variation arising from the final Local Government Finance Settlement be 
accommodated by a transfer to / from the Revenue Financing Reserve;

2.4 That the level of Council Tax be increased by £5 per annum for a Band D property 
for 2020/21;

2.5 It be noted that the Borough Treasurer Officer has determined that the Council Tax 
Base for the financial year 2020/21 will be 27,039.1 [item T in the formula in Section 
31 B(1) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as amended (the “Act”)];

2.6 That the following amounts be now calculated by the Council for the financial year 
2020/21 in accordance with Section 31 and Sections 34 to 36 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992:

(a) £45,185,476 Being the aggregate of the amounts which the 
Council estimates for the items set out in Section 
31A(2) of the Act.

(b) £38,946,216 Being the aggregate of the amounts which the 
Council estimates for the items set out in Section 
31A(3) of the Act.

(c) £6,216,200 Being the amount by which the aggregate at 2.6 (a) 
above exceeds the aggregate at 2.6(b) above, 
calculated by the Council in accordance with Section 
31A(4) of the Act as its Council Tax requirement for 
the year. (Item R in the formula in Section 31B(1) of 
the Act.

(d) £230.75 Being the amount at 2.6 (c) above (Item R), all 
divided by Item 2.5 above (Item T), calculated by the 
Council, in accordance with Section 31B(1) of the 
Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax for the 
year.

(e)    Valuation Bands (Gosport Borough Council)



3

A B C D E F G H
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

153.83 179.47 205.11 230.75 282.03 333.31 384.58 461.50

Being the amounts given by multiplying the amount at 2.6 (d) above by the number 
which, in the proportion set out in Section 5(1) of the Act, is applicable to dwellings 
listed in a particular valuation band divided by the number which in that proportion is 
applicable to dwellings listed in Valuation Band D, calculated by the Council, in 
accordance with Section 36(1) of the Act, as the amounts to be taken into account 
for the year in respect of categories of dwellings in different valuation bands.

2.7 That it be noted that for the financial year 2020/21 Hampshire County Council is 
proposing the following amounts for the precept to be issued to the Council in 
accordance with Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, for each of 
the categories of the dwellings shown below:

 Valuation Bands (Hampshire County Council)

2.8 T

hat it be noted that for the financial year 2020/21 the Hampshire Police & Crime 
Commissioner is consulting on the following amounts for the precept to be issued to 
the Council in accordance with Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992, for each of the categories of the dwellings shown below:

Valuation Bands (Hampshire Police & Crime Commissioner)

A B C D E F G H
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

140.97 164.47 187.96 211.46 258.45 305.44 352.43 422.92

2.9 That it be noted that for the financial year 2020/21, we estimate that Hampshire Fire 
and Rescue Authority will propose the following amounts for the precept issued to 
the Council in accordance with Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992, for each of the categories of the dwellings shown below:

Valuation Bands (Hampshire Fire & Rescue Authority)

A B C D E F G H
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

46.04 53.71 61.39 69.06 84.41 99.75 115.11 138.13

A B C D E F G H
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

857.52 1000.44 1143.36 1286.28 1572.12 1857.96 2143.80 2572.56



4

2.10 That having calculated the aggregate in each case of the amounts at 2.6(e), 2.7, 2.8 
and 2.9 above, the Council, in accordance with Sections 31A, 31B and 34 to 36 of 
the Local Government Finance Act 1992 as amended, hereby sets the following 
amounts as the amounts of Council Tax for the financial year 2020/21 for each of 
the categories of dwellings shown below: 

Valuation Bands (Total Council Tax)

2.11 The Borough Treasurer be given delegated authority to implement any variation to 
the overall level of Council Tax arising from the final notification of the Hampshire 
County Council, Hampshire Police & Crime Commissioner and Hampshire Fire and 
Rescue Authority precepts.

2.12 The Council determines in accordance with Section 52ZB of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992 that the Council’s basic amount of Council Tax for 2020/21, which 
represents a £5 increase, is not excessive in accordance with the principles 
approved by the Secretary of State under Section 52ZC of the Act.

2.13 As the billing authority, the Council has not been notified by a major precepting 
authority (Hampshire County Council, the Police and Crime Commissioner for 
Hampshire or the Hampshire Fire & Rescue Authority) that its relevant basic amount 
of Council Tax for 2020/21 is excessive and that the billing authority is not required 
to hold a referendum in accordance with Section 52ZK of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992. 

2.14 Members have had regard for the Statement of the Section 151 Officer in 
accordance with the Local Government Act 2003 as set out in the report.

2.15 The Capital Programme 2019/20 to 2022/23 as set out in Appendix D is approved.

2.16 That the Prudential Indicators as set out in Appendix E are approved

2.17 That the Pay Policy Statement 2020/21 as set out in Appendix F is approved

Members should note that:

The Section 151 Officer has a duty to report to Members on the Robustness of the 
Estimates and the Adequacy of Reserves (as described in Section 7).  Accordingly, 
any amendments put before the Council for consideration must also include a 
written Statement by the Section 151 Officer.

In accordance with statue, the Budget Report is required to incorporate a number of 
specific recommendations.  Amendments may require those recommendations to be 

A B C D E F G H
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

1,198.36 1398.09 1597.82 1797.55 2197.01 2596.46 2995.91 3595.10



5

altered and therefore need to be precisely written in order to have legal effect and be 
capable of adoption by the Council.  

Due to the requirements set out above, it is necessary for any amendment to be 
discussed in sufficient time to be drafted by the Section 151 Officer so that it 
includes the Section 151 Officers Statement alongside precisely worded 
recommendations that the Council can properly consider and have legal effect. 

3. MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY

3.1 The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is designed to meet the following 
overall aim:

 "In year" expenditure matches "in year" income over the medium term whilst 
providing sustainable high quality public services, improving the overall 
prosperity of residents and businesses and ensuring adequate financial 

resilience”

3.2 Over the next 3 years, the Council has a forecast budget deficit to remedy 
amounting to £1.7m.  This compares to a forecast deficit of £1.4m from February 
2019 and reflects two strategic issues: 

i) Loss of income from the decision by Hampshire County Council (HCC) to 
withdraw recycling income from collection authorities and

 
ii) The potential outcome of the Fair Funding review and Business Rate 

"reset" due to be implemented in 2021/22 which will likely result in 
reduced Government funding generally for District Councils as well as the 
removal of retained business rates growth (i.e. the annual uplift in 
business rate income retained since 2013/14).

3.3 The environment in which the MTFS and Budget is set is characterised by the 
following factors:

i) Broader economic performance and projections forward;
ii) Public Finance and Funding projections; and
iii) Factors that influence our spending base.

3.4 Economic Projections.  How the UK economy is performing (both on its own and in 
the context of broader global performance) shapes Government decisions on the 
total amount of public service spending it will undertake and against which priorities, 
as well as private sector confidence in making local investment decisions.  GDP 
growth rose by 0.4% in the third quarter of 2019 from -0.2% in the previous three 
months with the annual rate falling further below its trend rate to 1.1% from 1.2%. 
Whilst the economy is growing albeit at a slower rate (and, it should be noted that 
unemployment remains historically low, the employment rate is 76%) any longer-
term slowdown or recession will put pressure on the Government to review spending 
patterns against its tax returns.  However, economic sentiment has improved since 
the General Election result of 12 December 2019 and the removal of the political 
uncertainty that has been a characteristic of Westminster politics over the last two 
years. Looking ahead, the Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Report (formerly the 
Quarterly Inflation Report) forecasts economic growth to pick up during 2020 as 



6

Brexit-related uncertainties dissipate and provide a boost to business investment 
helping GDP reach 1.6% in Q4 2020, 1.8% in Q4 2021 and 2.1% in Q4 2022.

3.5 Public Finance and Funding Projections.  This report deals with the implications of 
the Provisional Local Government Finance settlement (announced on 20 December 
2019) at paragraph 5.1 but as yet, until there has been a Comprehensive Spending 
Review (which is likely to take place over the summer of 2020), there are no specific 
concrete long-term funding projections for that can be made.  Not least as reforms to 
how Local Government finance is operated, managed and ultimately distributed 
formed a key part of the Conservative Party manifesto and this will presumably draw 
upon the Fair Funding Review that has been underway and subject to consultation 
over the last few years.  What is clear, however, is there are likely to be more 
funding opportunities for the Council regarding infrastructure investment, Town 
Centre investment and other manifesto priorities that seek to ‘level up’ the 
performance of the UK.  

3.6 Over the past 9 years (since 2011/12), Central Government funding to Councils has 
reduced by over 40% in real terms.  Future assumptions for both funding and 
spending for the Council is summarised below and described in more detail later in 
the report (paragraph 5.2).

i) Government Grants (Local Government Finance Settlement) - Expected to 
remain static at an average of £0.4m from 2021/22 through to 2023/24; albeit 
having to absorb the loss of Revenue Support Grant (RSG) funding as of this 
financial year (2019/20);

ii) Business Rates - Forecast to reduce from £3.7m in 2019/20 to £3.2m in 
2023/24 relating mainly to the impact of losing all Business Rate Growth from 
2013/14 onwards (amounting to £0.7m) arising from the potential impact of 
the Fair Funding Review and the Business Rate Reset (to be introduced as 
part of the introduction of the 75% Business Rate Retention scheme); and

iii) Council Tax - Assumed to increase from £6.1m in 2019/20 to £6.8m in 
2023/24 based on a £5 increase in Band D Council Tax for 2020/21 and the 
same increase thereafter over the time period of the MTFS; alongside modest 
forecast growth in the Council Tax Base. 

3.7 Council Spending Projections. The cost of steady state services continues to grow.  
The largest component of the Council’s costs is staff costs, which is forecast to grow 
by 2.5% per annum.  Within this cost base; there has been a windfall regarding 
employer pension costs (over the next three years) as the Hampshire Pension fund 
is no longer in deficit following actuarial review in the summer of 2019.  Additional 
payments budgeted to address this particular issue are now no longer required.  
However, the actuarial review also highlighted the fact that our workforce average 
age is getting progressively older which, in turn, requires additional proportions of 
regular employer pension contributions to be made.  This is a long-term issue for our 
cost base.  

3.8 A further issue is the recent decision by Hampshire County Council to make savings 
by stopping the payment of recycling credits to Hampshire collection authorities.  
This will commence in April 2021 and will create £290k of pressure per annum for 
Gosport Borough Council, equivalent to 60% of the MTFS annual deficit reported to 
Council in February last year.  Other main spending areas, including premises, 
supplies and services expenditure are based on actual inflation experienced for 



7

2019/20 and then CPI thereafter. Pay inflation more generally in the economy 
continues to grow, currently at 3.6%, and this will provide upward pressure on 
general inflation and, therefore, the cost of our contracts.

Impact on Gosport

3.9 There are a number of conclusions pertinent to Gosport that can be drawn from 
these factors:

i) It would be prudent to assume that core funding from central Government is 
unlikely to increase in the near term, not least as work is completed to reform 
the overall Local Government Funding system, which could see a reduction in 
Business Rates retained  by District Councils.  However, we need to be alive 
to other forms of grant funding (e.g. for infrastructure projects) that could be 
available.  These are of a capital nature and whilst will not alleviate pressures 
on the Revenue Budget in the short-term, could over time help raise 
prosperity generally in the Borough and reduce the pressure on Council 
services;

ii) Other funding streams (i.e. Council Tax) will also remain relatively static and 
are unlikely to increase materially; as developer sentiment remains cautious 
regarding both residential and economic growth; and

iii) Our cost base will continue to grow and at a rate, in the near-term, that will be 
faster than corresponding funding increases as inflation becomes an 
increasing factor and we have to contend with no waste recycling income. 
Examining our approach to Fees and Charges is therefore a key activity for 
2020/21

3.10 As such, our assessment of the future financial deficit over the three financial years 
beginning 2021/22 is outlined in the table below:

Financial Year 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
Deficit £k 544 1,008 1,713

Response (Strategy)

3.11 The Council has a strong track record of being able to live within its means, make 
savings and secure financial resilience.  For instance, key General Fund reserves 
(comprising the Stability and Resilience Reserve, Revenue Financing Reserve and 
the General fund Balance) have built prudently over time and currently stand at just 
under £7m.   Adequate reserves are a necessary requirement of financial resilience 
enabling any in-year deficits between funding and spending to be “smoothed out” 
over time as well as enabling investments to be made that will improve the financial 
sustainability of the Council in the future.  Given the widely expected substantial 
funding reductions to District Council’s over the coming years and the Council’s 
known future cost pressures, the adequacy and targeted use of reserves has never 
been more important.  

3.12 In overall terms, the reduction in funding coupled with the increased costs to the 
Council are expected to result in an overall budget deficit of £1.7m by 2023/24.  The 



8

Administration’s strategy to meet this challenge is a multi-faceted approach to 
maintain a stable financial position and undertake targeted investment in services to 
improve sustainability and safeguard resilience.  

3.13 The Revenue Budget and Capital Investment proposals include a wide range of 
potential actions that can either generate savings or grow income.  Looking forward, 
the Administration’s financial strategy will:

 Continue to pursue efficiency by operating zero based budgeting and 
undertaking regular contract reviews; for instance reducing our banking 
costs by almost 25% for Budget 2020/21;

 Develops partnership working to realise savings and service resilience; 
which will see further savings in the Environmental Health Partnership with 
Fareham in 2020/21;

 Enhances income generation from existing or new investments such as the 
property portfolio and financial investments; our capital investment in the 
Alver Valley will deliver new rental streams next Financial Year with a new 
café and also the year after with a new Garden Centre; and

 Invest in the Borough for regeneration to stimulate employment and also to 
increase funding by improving the Business Rate Base and the Council Tax 
Base for the Council; this will also positively improve prosperity for the 
Borough generally and reduce the dependency on Council Services.
 

The Budget for 2020/21 has been constructed undertaking this approach and over 
£0.5m of savings have been identified, more than meeting the previous MTFS 
annual deficit target; with additional work underway to identify further opportunities 
over the coming three years.

4 REVISED BUDGET 2019/29

4.1 The Budget for 2019/20 as set out in Appendix A has been revised upwards from 
£10,447,000 to £10,603,120. This, however, reflects ‘carry forwards’ of unspent 
budget from 2018/19 due to slippage in spending which will now take place in 
2019/20. Excluding carry forwards, the underlying budget position for 2019/20 
represents a saving of just over £300k.

4.2 The key changes between the Original Budget 2019/20 and the proposed Revised 
Budget 2019/20 are as follows:

Expenditure 2019/20

Board and service expenditure has been revised upwards from £10,447,000 to 
£10,603,120, an increase of £156,120.

The key increases in spending / reduction in income include:

 £75,000 of special maintenance activity for Gosport play areas;

 £30,000 to improve and install new signage across the Borough;



9

 £120,000 to support Flood Prevention defences in the Borough, notably in 
Stokes Bay;

 £60,000 to enable development of a Borough Economic Development Strategy 
and related initiatives; and

 £55,000 for the Borough Local Development Plan.

 These expenditure items total £340,000 and have been offset by reductions in 
spending in the following areas:

 £175,000 reduced net expenditure for Housing Benefits, which reflects a more 
general trend of reduced Housing Benefit claims as Universal Credit is rolled 
out.

Funding 2019/20

Funding has remained almost constant, falling slightly from £10,464,670 to 
£10,429,540, a minor reduction of £35,130. 

Reserves 2019/20

The projected position for our key reserves, based on the Revised Budget, is 
detailed in the table below:

Reserve Amount at 31/03/2019

£k

Projected 31/03/2020

£k

General Fund Balance 890 1,000

Revenue Financing Reserve 4,104 3,713

Stability & Resilience Reserve 2,028 2,060

5. PROPOSED BUDGET 2020/21

Funding – The Provisional Local Government Finance settlement 2020/21

5.1 The key announcements from the Provisional Local Government Finance 
Settlement,     announced on the 20 December 2019, which are relevant to Gosport 
are as follows:

 The basic Council Tax referendum principle of a 2% increase is confirmed (or a 
higher limit of either 2% or £5 for all shire District Councils for a Band D 
property);



10

 The Queen’s Speech confirmed the Conservative Party manifesto 
commitment to undertake a fundamental review of business rates, with the 
suggestion of additional relief for high street premises and small businesses;

 The Business Rates Settlement Funding Assessment (SFA) has been 
increased by 1.6% (i.e. Revenue Support Grant and Business Rate Retention 
funding);

 The New Homes Bonus will continue for another year but there is a clear 
signal from Government that it intends to phase out the current system by 
2023-24; in favour of a ‘more targeted’ system which the Government will 
consult on during Spring; and

 Continuation and enhancement of funding for the Flexible Homelessness 
Support Grant and the Homelessness Reduction Grant, equating to a £60k 
increase of this (ring-fenced) funding for the Council.

5.2 The table below details the key funding streams from Government:

Funding Stream 2019/20
(Current Year)

Forecast 
2020/21 Difference

Revenue Support Grant £0.0m  £0.0m £0m

New Homes Bonus £0.27m £0.08m £0.19m
Benefits Administration Grant £0.38m £0.37m £0.01m
Total Government Grants £0.65m £0.45m £0.20m

5.3 All other previous funding from Central Government is routed through the level of 
Business Rates that the Council is able to retain.  Whilst Government funding 
remains a meaningful amount for the Council (at £0.45m), it has become a small 
proportion of the overall funding for the Council1 (at 4%).

5.4 For 2020/21, the Council will receive £85,470 in New Homes Bonus funding and the 
Council is currently estimating £371,100 in Benefits Administration Grant. 

5.5 The final grant settlement should be available by the end of January / early February 
and it is recommended that any variation should be accommodated by a transfer to / 
from the Revenue Financing Reserve. Other key forms of funding are Business 
rates and Council tax and our assessment of future revenue streams from both are 
outlined below.

Business rates - 2020/21 & future forecasts

5.6 The Retained Business Rates system is extremely complex and subject to a 
significant degree of inherent risk.

5.7 In broad terms, the Council currently retains 21% of all Business Rates received and 
this is characterised by a complex formula which includes the following:

1 Including Council Tax, Business Rates and Benefits Administration Grant



11

i) An initial starting point of 40% retention of all business rates received;

ii) Reduced by a fixed amount "tariff" which increases annually by the rate of 
inflation;

iii) Any growth in Business Rates (above a pre-determined baseline2) is reduced 
by a "levy" of 50%;

iv) A "safety net" set at 7.5% below a pre-determined baseline3 below which 
retained Business Rates will not fall (set at £2,317,061 for 2020/21); and

v) A General Fund grant reimbursement under Section 31 of the Local 
Government Act 2003 to compensate local authorities for business rates 
foregone as a result of the government’s nationally determined additional 
business rate reliefs (e.g. for small business).

In overall terms therefore, the Council currently retains 21% of Business Rates4 
amounting to £3,899,870 for 2020/21, with any additional Business Rates received 
above this being received at 20% (i.e. the Council's 40% share reduced by the levy 
of 50%).  There has been an increase in the Settlement Funding Assessment of 
1.6% (the first increase in over a decade) which has increased the council’s baseline 
funding level for Business Rates by the same amount.   

5.8 In 2017/18 the National Non Domestic Rate system was subject to a re-valuation.  
This revised both the rateable values and the multiplier.  The entire re-valuation is 
financially neutral at a national level, with the increase in rateable values overall 
offset by a reduction in the multiplier.  

5.9 The Retained Business Rates system for Local Authorities is likewise intended to be 
financially neutral.  This however, will not be the case and there will inevitably be 
"winners" and "losers" across the country.  The key risk, which exists and will remain 
for future years until all appeals are resolved is the extent to which successful 
appeals are greater or less than the assumed allowance for appeals contained 
within the new multiplier set by Government.

5.10 A particular factor for Local Authorities has been a recent challenge by NHS Trusts 
in the Midlands regarding the rates they pay and that they should be treated as 
charitable bodies (thereby receiving a rates discount, potentially backdated).  A 
recent High Court ruling (12th December 2019) found in favour of Local Authorities, 
however, the Trusts can still appeal against this decision and this issue therefore 
remains a financial risk to the Council.

5.11 As outlined above, the estimation of business rate receipts is extremely complex, 
with the potential to be volatile and with many of the factors outside this Council’s 
control.  In particular, the Valuation Office Agency will both determine whether a 
rating appeal is successful and the level of reduction granted with the Council having 
no right of challenge. 

2 Known as the Business Rates Baseline, set in 2013/14 and increased by inflation each year
3 Known as the Business Rates Baseline, set in 2013/14 and increased by inflation each year
4 After deducting the "tariff"



12

5.12 Forecasts for future retained Business Rates will be affected significantly by the 
review of the system announced in the Queen’s Speech.  We will continue to 
assume that reforms will follow the path signalled, i.e. the introduction of the Fair 
Funding Review and accompanied by a 75% Business Rates Retention scheme 
both taking effect for the financial year 2021/22.  In summary, the Fair Funding 
Review will determine the overall level of general Government funding that the 
Council will retain from the 75% Business Rate Retention system.  The introduction 
of the 75% Business Rate Retention system will be accompanied by a “Reset” which 
will remove all currently retained growth in Business Rates since 2013/14 (currently 
amounting to £0.7m) and allocate this funding based on relative need across all 
local authorities through the Fair Funding Review.  In effect, the critical issue for the 
Council is the extent to which any business rates growth removed will be 
redistributed back to Gosport for “Need”.  At a national level, all expectations are 
that there will be a net re-distribution of funding away from District Councils in favour 
of Unitary and County Councils to recognise the pressures on both Adults and 
Children’s Social Care.

5.13 Other variables, as mentioned, include the level of successful appeals, the level of 
mandatory reliefs awarded and future inflation levels.  Future forecasts of retained 
business rates over the next 3 years have been based on the following:

 No real growth in the Business Rate base;

 Uplifts in Business Rates due to increases in the rate of inflation (as 
estimated by the Office for Budget Responsibility);

 A full Business Rate Reset, meaning that business rate growth since 2013/14 
amounting to £0.7m is no longer retained from 2021/22 onwards; and

 Successful appeals will amount to 4.7% of the Business Rate Base.

Financial Year 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
Business 
Rates £k 3,899 3,302 3,284 3,249

5.14 A Stability and Resilience Reserve was established to help mitigate against the risks 
outlined above. The risk to future levels of Retained Business Rates from 2020/21 
onwards has never been more uncertain.  Maintaining this reserve at the levels 
proposed in this Budget (£2m) is critical to safeguard against the significant volatility 
that could occur both as a result of the potential introduction of the new 75% 
Retained Business Rate Retention scheme as well as the existing risks surrounding 
appeals and the level of business rate growth / loss more generally.

Council Tax Amount 2020/21

5.15 For 2020/21, Council Tax will represent almost 60% of the Council's total revenue 
funding, as Government funding has reduced this has become an increasingly more 
important and dependent funding source for the Council.

5.16 Council Tax for the average Council Tax payer in Gosport (Band B) currently 
amounts to £1,346.94, of which £175.58 (13%) is the Gosport Borough Council 
element.   In response to inflationary pressures faced by Councils, the Provisional 
Local Government Finance Settlement for 2020/21 confirmed a Council Tax 
increase limit (i.e. referendum threshold) of either 2% or £5 for all shire District 



13

Councils, whichever is the higher. For Gosport Borough Council, a £5 increase is the 
higher limit.  

5.17 The proposals for the 2020/21 Budget are based on increasing the Council Tax by 
£5 representing an increase of just under 10 pence per week for the average Band 
D taxpayer in Gosport.  At present, 59% all residents pay the full amount of Council 
Tax with 41% being entitled to some form of discount, exemption or Local Council 
Tax Support. 

5.18 The Council's future forecasts for the period 2021/22 to 2023/24 have been 
estimated on the basis of a £5 increase per annum for a Band D Taxpayer. 

Council Tax Base 2020/21

5.19 The Council Tax Base (i.e. the number of Band D equivalent properties paying the 
full Council Tax) has been determined as 27,039.1 for 2020/21, having taken 
account of all estimated changes in properties, discounts and exemptions for the 
coming year.

Collection Fund Balance (Council Tax Element) 2019/20

5.20 The Collection Fund is the account into which are paid amounts collected in respect 
of Council Tax and out of which are paid the Council Tax precepts to:

 Hampshire County Council (72% share)
 Gosport Borough Council (13% share)
 Hampshire Police & Crime Commissioner (11% share)
 Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority (4% share)

In the event that actual Council Tax income receivable is different from the 
estimated income (informed by the calculation of the Council Tax Base) upon which 
the precepts are based, then a surplus or deficit will arise.

5.21 For 2019/20, it is estimated that the Collection Fund will be in deficit by £176,900, 
the Gosport Borough Council element of that amounts to £23,060, less than 1% of 
the Council Tax income we expect to receive. As part of forecasting our future tax 
base, we adjust our forecasts for losses on collection, in part to take account of 
fluctuations on income received.  We also maintain the Stability and Resilience 
reserve for any larger and more strategic fluctuations in funding levels.  

Total Council Tax Income 2020/21 & Future Years

5.22 Considering the Council Tax increase, Council Tax Base and position on the 
Collection Fund, the total Council Tax income for 2020/21 is estimated at 
£6,216,200. As Government funding reduces and costs rise with inflation, rises in 
Council Tax income are fundamental to the Council's future financial position and 
therefore the future sustainability of Council Services.  The Council's Medium Term 
Financial Forecast assumes that Council Tax Income will rise to £6,777,800 by 
2023/24 and is based on the following assumptions:

 Annual increases in the amount of Council Tax of £5 per annum for a Band D 
Tax payer from 2021/22 onwards; and



14

 Growth in the Council Tax Base of circa 2.3% over the period.

Financial Year 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
Council Tax 
£k 6,216 6,412 6,592 6,778

Total Funding 2020/21

In taking account of the factors detailed above; total funding for the Council in 
2020/21 is estimated at £10,572,640.

Revenue Budget 2020/21

The overall aim of the Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy is to match "In 
Year" spending with "In Year" income and funding over the medium term with the 
use of the Revenue Financing Reserve and the Stability and Resilience Reserve 
being used to "smooth out" the necessary savings required to meet the forecast 
budget deficit over the next 3 years.  The savings required, per annum, as detailed 
in the MTFS are £0.57m.  Our Reserves are fundamental to maintaining the 
financial resilience of the Council especially in uncertain times such as now, giving 
the Council the ability to respond to any potential "financial shocks" without resorting 
to quick and severe reductions to services.  Crucially, it is also essential that the 
Council has the financial capacity to be able to fund spend to save initiatives that 
support the delivery of the future savings necessary to ensure continued financial 
viability and delivery of good quality Council services.  Given the uncertainty 
associated with Local Government funding and the potential introduction of the 75% 
Business Rate Retention system in 2021/22, it is vital that these Reserves are 
maintained and used wisely for their intended purpose.

The proposed Budget for 2020/21 has been prepared to accommodate the savings 
identified in the MTFS last year of £0.5m as a consequence of the following:

 Further funding reductions from Government

 Inflationary costs and other cost pressures

The requirement for savings has been offset to an extent by the following:

 An increase in Council Tax of £5 per Band D property 

 Savings from the Hampshire Local Authorities pension fund no longer being 
in deficit

5.28 The key changes between the Original Budget 2019/20 and the proposed Budget 
2020/21 are as follows:



15

Expenditure 2020/21

Board and service expenditure is estimated at £10,282,110 a slight decrease of 
£165,000 from the Original Budget for the current year of £10,447,110.

Where spending has increased within the budget; these are predominantly due to a 
range of inflationary and economic pressures outside of the Council’s control, such 
as:

 Inflationary pressure (including pay inflation) - £419,000;

 Increase in ‘steady-state’ employer contribution pension costs - £22,000;

 Car parking fees not matching budgeted assumptions - £94,000;

 Reduction in waste recycling income from reduced global prices for paper and 
card material – £55,000; and

 Increase in maintenance costs for Leisure facilities - £30,000.

Despite these pressures and the financial context that the Council faces, the 
Administration is still able to propose a number of important Budget enhancements 
that, in particular, will enhance the environment of the Borough as well as supporting 
some of our key community groups.  These total just over £300,000 and include:

 Enhancing the Council’s contribution to Voluntary organisations by £35,000 to 
a total of £253,000.  £10,000 of this increase will be split pro-rata across all 
the organisations we currently support, such as the Citizens Advice Bureau 
(CAB).  The remainder, £25,000, will be used for a specific project with the 
Gosport Voluntary Association (GVA) for Befriending and Surgery Sign 
Posting;

 Enhancing the resources available to support Members via training courses 
by £5,000;

 Enhancing resources available for weed control on Borough pavements and 
footpaths by £40,000 as well as compensating for a further £30,000 reduction 
in contributions by HCC for this activity;

 Continuing our Tree Planting scheme to enhance the environment of the 
Borough, by maintaining the additional £30,000 provided for 19/20 into 20/21.  
This will help facilitate achievement of our 1,000 trees in 1000 days pledge 
alongside other pledges received across the Borough;

 Investing £25,000 for marketing material to encourage Borough residents to 
undertake more recycling as, whilst income from the sale of recycled material 
has dropped, increasing recycling rates is an important objective for the 
Borough, not least to reduce waste that goes to landfill;

 Installing additional Electric Vehicle charging points, particularly in Council 
owned car-parks by ear-marking £20,000 to be used alongside any grants the 
Council can obtain in order to encourage residents to utilise this 



16

environmentally friendly vehicle technology as it becomes more readily 
available;

 Ear-marking £110,000 for a wide range of improvements, special 
maintenance and refurbishments across the Borough, including:

o Rewilding of unused tarmac land in Lee with a wildflower area;

o Pathway replenishment from Gafirs to Gilkicker;

o Refurbishing our welcome to Gosport signage;

o Replacing old railings in Privett Park;

o Building a new path from Cherque Way café to Noahs Lake;

o Replacing lights and additional maintenance for the Millennium 
Bridge; and

o Planting a real Christmas tree in Gosport High Street.

 Procuring a range of new litter bins, for £9,000 around the Borough, including 
along the sea fronts; and

 Ensuring a revenue contribution from the General Fund to the Capital 
Programme of £486,540 to ensure strong annual funding streams for an 
ambitious Capital Programme as outlined at Section 9. This contribution 
includes £45,000 to fund Health and Wellbeing equipment in Stanley Park for 
residents to use.

Key reductions in spending and additional income include (brackets indicate a 
saving):

 Improvement in interest from Treasury Management activities – (£50,000);

 One-off Special Maintenance items not being required (e.g. specific flood 
prevention activity which, instead, is being funded via the Capital Programme) 
– (£120,000);

 Staff savings from service reviews and natural wastage as well as allowing for 
our current vacancy rate – (£296,000);

 Reallocation of costs from the General Fund to the HRA account to take 
account of management responsibilities – (£99,000);

 Range of efficiency savings, including savings made within our banking and 
cash handling contracts, Building Services partnership and reduced 
consultancy costs – (£164,000); and

 Saving from Pension Fund no longer being in deficit – (£648,000).

5.29 Looking ahead to 2021/22 and beyond, the combined impact of the Fair Funding 
Review, the 75% Business Rate Retention Scheme (including the "full reset"), loss 



17

of waste recycling income plus inflationary costs will cause a deficit between funding 
and spending and the support of Reserves will be required in order to "smooth out" 
the necessary savings over a manageable timescale. Retaining adequate Reserves 
is consistent with maintaining the continued financial health of the Council.  
Reserves are described in more detail in Section 6 of the report.  

5.30 A summary of the proposed Budget 2020/21 is set out in Appendix B and the 
Budgets for each of the Boards are included at Appendix C.

Revenue Forecasts to 2023/24

5.31 A new medium term forecast has now been completed to cover the period 2021/22 
to 2023/24 (i.e. after including the savings and cost pressures incorporated into the 
2020/21 Budget and incorporating the further financial year of 2023/24).  All of the 
financial assumptions have been comprehensively revised and a savings 
requirement for the new period has been estimated at £1.7m and is summarised 
below:

£1.7m
Deficit

Loss of 
waste 

income
£0.3m

Inflation 
including 

pay
£1.2m

Increase in 
Pension 
Costs 
£0.4m

Decrease in 
Business 

rates £0.7m

Other 
(mainly non 
recurrence 
of RCCO) 
of  £0.7m

Council Tax 
Increases
£0.4m (£5 
on Band D 

p.a.)

MRP costs 
£0.2m 

5.32 The key issues behind the 3 year deficit are the forecast funding reductions of £0.7m 
arising from the potential introduction of the Fair Funding Review and the Business 
Rate Reset which accompanies the introduction of the 75% Business Rate 
Retention Scheme, the loss of our waste recycling income and inflationary costs 
(including Pension increases) which are not fully offset by increases in funding (from 
Council Tax and Business Rates). 

5.33 The most significant assumptions in the medium term future forecasts for the period 
2021/22 to 2023/24 are described below:



18

 An underlying assumption that the impact of the Fair Funding Review in 2021/22 
and the Business Rate Reset which accompanies the introduction of the 75% 
Business Rate Retention Scheme will result in a £0.7m reduction in funding; 

 No provision has been made for transitional relief from this potential impact of 
the funding reductions, particularly since any relief may have “wound out” by the 
final year of the forecast;

 Reductions in funding for the New Homes Bonus over the whole period, 
assuming it will be completely phased out by 2023/24 (although it is likely that 
there will be some form of New Homes funding but there is no detail as to how it 
will as yet be distributed);

 An increase in the Council's pension obligations for ongoing employer 
contributions given our aging workforce as well as provision of funds to help 
smooth any additional payments required in case the pension fund moves into 
deficit position;

 A Council Tax increase of £5 increase per annum for a Band D property  for 
2021/22 to 2023/24 plus an average increase in the Council Tax Base of circa 
2% over the MTFS period;

 An underlying zero growth assumption for changes in Business Rates from 
2021/22 onwards, to reflect the uncertainty relating to appeals and mandatory 
reliefs and loss of Enterprise Zone subsidy that the Council received from 
Government; 

 Indexation uplifts on retained Business Rates of 2.0% per annum from 2021/22, 
to 2023/24; 

 An average inflationary provision covering all pay and prices amounting to 5% 
per annum over the MTFS period;

 The loss of waste recycling income from Hampshire County Council (£0.29m per 
annum from 2021/22);

 Interest rates on any new borrowing of 1.6% for 2020/21, 1.3% for 2021/22 and 
1.6% for 2022/23;

 Investment rates on any new lending assumed to be 1.41% per annum between 
2020/21 to 2022/23; and

 An assumption of providing sufficient budgets to deliver "steady state" services 
across the Council.

5.34 The proposed Fair Funding Review and 75% Business Rates retention scheme 
create a significant degree of uncertainty of the Council's future forecasts.  The Fair 
Funding Review, i.e. a "Needs Based Review", is aimed at re-distributing funding 
across Local Authorities to where it is most needed based on the cost drivers of 
services and the demand for services.  It has the potential to both withdraw any 
Business Rate growth received from 2013/14 (which for Gosport amounts to £0.7m) 
and increase the "Tariff" on Business Rates paid over to the Government too.  



19

5.35 Unless new money is awarded to Local Government in the forthcoming 
Comprehensive Spending Review, all expectations continue to be that the Business 
Rate growth that has been experienced by District Councils amounting to £1.5 billion 
nationally (and £0.7m for GBC), will be re-distributed through the Fair Funding 
review, on a "Needs Basis" which is likely to favour Upper Tier and Unitary Councils 
to meet the growing pressures in Adults and Children's Social Care.

5.36 The estimated 3 Year Savings Requirement of £1.7m is recommended to be phased 
evenly over the next 3 years (see table below), drawing on reserves where 
necessary in order to "smooth" the impact on services.  This provides for a managed 
reduction in spending, giving good opportunity for alternative income / efficiency 
initiatives to take effect and balanced with a financially responsible approach to 
achieving the necessary savings over the period. 

5.37 Depending on the Council’s ability to deliver savings, there may be a requirement to 
draw on Reserves in the MTFS years for "smoothing out" the savings requirements 
in a managed way.  

5.38 The savings strategy described above, and having proper regard for the uncertainty 
surrounding future Government Funding (i.e the Fair Funding Review), can only 
work if the Council retains the level of Reserves set out in this report.  The flexibility 
afforded by Reserves at these levels will ensure that in the event that the 3 year 
forecast improves, the Council has not prematurely made a level of savings and 
service reductions that could have been avoided and it allows more time for savings 
initiatives to take effect.  Conversely, if the forecast deteriorates, the Council will 
have made good progress towards the necessary savings and have sufficient 
Reserves to avoid significant "spikes" in Savings Requirements in any single year in 
the future.

5.39 The overall Budget Deficit over the next 3 years at £1.7m represents circa 14% of 
the Council's General Fund budget.  Against a backdrop of significant reductions in 

Financial 
Year

Revised 
Underlying

Budget
Deficit

£

In Year
Target

£

Revised
Cumulative

Saving

£
2021/22 0.544m 0.57m 0.57m

2022/23 1.008m 0.57m 1.140m
2023/24 1.713m 0.57m 1.710m



20

Government funding and associated savings over the past 8 years, this will be a 
challenge for the Council.  Nevertheless, with a proposed even profile of savings of 
£0.57m per annum for the next 3 years, pursuing the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy will provide opportunities for this to be achieved through measures to 
stimulate both the Business Rate Base and Council Tax Base, additional income 
opportunities, service reviews and further integrated working with partners. 

5.40 Further analysis of the Council's Medium Term Financial Forecasts is set out in 
Appendix B.

6 RESERVES

6.1 In general, maintaining adequate reserves is a measure of responsible financial 
management and strong financial health.  They are crucial to maintain financial 
resilience in order to be able to respond to “financial shocks” without having to revert 
to the alternative of quick and severe reductions in services.  Equally, they can be a 
vehicle to take advantage of any opportunities that may arise which are in the 
financial interests of the Council (for example, matched funding opportunities which 
could lever in additional funding for Gosport).  Importantly, as described above, they 
also enable differences between expenditure and funding levels to be “smoothed 
out” and managed in a planned way over time.  

6.2 The General Fund Working Balance is the minimum level of balances, on a risk 
basis, that the Council should not breach.  The Working Balance is now £1m.  This 
has been set at a level that is consistent with the Council's level of potential financial 
risks and enables the Council to meet unexpected demands on its resources such 
as increased inflation or demand for statutory services, therefore providing a cushion 
against uneven cash flows.  

6.3 The Revenue Financing Reserve (RFR) is the Council's primary vehicle for driving 
through savings initiatives of both a Revenue and Capital nature and remains a 
critical part of the Council's overall Medium Term Financial Strategy. The RFR is 
also used to ensure that fluctuations in annual maintenance requirements can be 
met, to underwrite any uninsured risks and meet any necessary redundancy costs. 

6.4 Following a proposed withdrawal to the RFR of £390,780 in the current year, the 
proposed Budget for 2020/21 includes a withdrawal of £196,010), bringing the total 
estimated balance on the Reserve to £3.5m.  

6.5 The Stability and Resilience Reserve (SRR) was established in 2014/15 to help 
safeguard against the significant increase in risk and volatility arising from the 
introduction of the Business Rate Retention Scheme and the Council Tax Support 
Scheme together with the uncertainties in future levels of Central Government 
support.  This reserve currently stands at £2m.

6.6 With the removal of Revenue Support Grant, Core Government funding from 
2021/22 is likely to remain relatively constant but will represent just 4% of total 
funding.  

6.7 Council Tax income carries a low to medium financial risk, it amounts to £6.2m in 
2020/21 and comprises 59% of all funding.  Risks associated with Council Tax relate 



21

mainly to the cost of the Local Council Tax Support Scheme and the level of 
exemptions and discounts awarded.  

6.8 The New Homes Bonus at £85k in its current form is a particular risk and dependent 
on the delivery of additional homes over and above 0.4% each and every year.  And 
it is uncertain how this funding stream will be reformed in the future.  

6.9 The most significant financial risk to the Council's funding is Retained Business 
Rates.  This amounts to £3.8m in 2020/21 and circa 37% of all funding.  This is 
expected to fall to 30% of all funding post the potential implementation of the 75% 
Business Rate Retention Scheme.  With the introduction of the new Business Rate 
re-valuation from April 2017 and the forthcoming 75% Business Rate Retention 
system, Business Rate Retention income has never been more uncertain. It is likely 
that £0.7m of Business Rate growth will be removed from GBC and appeals against 
the 2017 valuation is likely to be significant.  For example, historically 80% of each 
new valuation list is appealed.  Whilst a "safety net" mechanism is in place for a 
reduction in income5 of more than 7.5% (currently), this area of funding is 
particularly uncertain.

6.10 As described, the majority of Council funding is exposed to some risk but the 
Business Rate Retention Scheme and Government Funding (combined representing 
41% of the funding base) are subject to the most potential volatility.  

6.11 It is vital that the SRR is maintained at healthy levels to guard against the real and 
significant funding risks facing the Council over the medium term. The proposed 
Budget for 2020/21 set this Reserve just over £2m which represents cover of 20% of 
total annual funding.

6.12 In view of the need to continue to make savings in a smooth and managed way over 
the next 3 year period and the particular funding uncertainties, it is both financially 
responsible and prudent to maintain these reserves at the proposed levels.

7 Statement of the Section 151 Officer in Accordance with the Local 
Government Act 2003 

7.1 Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 (“the Act”) requires the Chief Financial 
Officer to report to the Council on the following matters:

 The robustness of the estimates included in the budget made for the 
purposes of setting the Council Tax; and

 The adequacy of proposed financial reserves 

7.2 Section 25 of the Act concentrates on uncertainties within the budget year rather 
than the greater uncertainties in future years. In the current economic climate, there 
continue to be uncertainties in both the current and future years i.e. beyond 2019/20. 
Particular uncertainties exist regarding the impact of how the Business Rates 
system will operate and the 75% Business Rates Retention Scheme.  The extent of 
successful appeals and mandatory reliefs which also affect Retained Business 

5 The reduction is measured against the Business Rate Baseline of £2,464,771 rather than Retained 
Business Rates of £3,674,000



22

Rates.  Additionally, the extent to which inflation on costs can be matched by 
equivalent increases in funding from Council Tax, Business Rates and Government 
grant is a key risk.
 

7.3 A minimum level of revenue reserves must be specified within the Budget. The Local 
Authority must take full account of this information when setting the Budget 
Requirement.

7.4 Should the level of reserves fall below the minimum approved Working Balance of 
£1m, either arising from an overspend in the previous year or the current year, the 
S.151 Officer has a duty to report this to the Council with recommendations as to the 
actions that should be taken to rectify the shortfall.  In the most extreme of 
circumstances, the S.151 Officer can impose a spending freeze until a balanced 
budget is approved by the Council.  

7.5 Given the scale of the forecast budget deficit of £1.7m and the significant uncertainty 
regarding Council funding, it is vital that the Council maintains its reserves at the 
levels set out in this report in order to provide financial resilience for the forthcoming 
3 year period.

(a) Robustness of the Budget

7.6 In setting the Budget, the Council should have regard to the strategic and 
operational risks facing the Council. Some of these risks reflect the current 
economic climate and the national issues surrounding local authority funding levels.

7.7 Estimates and forecasts have been prepared to include all known significant 
financial factors over the medium term in order to inform spending decisions.

7.8 Assumptions for the Budget and forecasts for future years are considered to be 
sound and based on the best available information.  These are set out in detail in 
Section 5 and use the following sources as their evidence base:

 Government funding as set out in the provisional settlement for 2020/21 and 
future assumptions informed by current consultation documents

 A "no growth" assumption for Retained Business Rates on the basis that any 
income arising from growth will be offset by both appeals and reliefs

 An assumption that the current rateable value will be reduced by 4.7% arising 
from appeals against the 2017 rating list and based on Government estimates of 
the likely national cost of appeals

 Increases in Council Tax within the likely referendum limits

 Inflation on Retained Business Rates and prices informed by inflation estimates 
from the Office for Budget Responsibility

 Prudential borrowing requirements based on approved Capital schemes

 Balances and contingencies based on a risk assessment of all known financial 
risks



23

7.9 Savings contained within the Budget are those where Board Chairmen and Senior 
Management assess the confidence level of achievement is medium and above.  
Responsibility and accountability for delivering the savings rests with Board 
Chairmen and Senior Management and progress will be monitored throughout the 
year as part of the Budget Monitoring process.

7.10 The most volatile budgets are Housing Benefits, Homelessness, Interest Payable 
and Receivable and General Maintenance.  Budget provision has been made 
available to cover these risks both directly within Service budgets as well as 
maintaining an adequate Revenue Financing Reserve.

7.11 The forecasts prepared for the forthcoming and future years are robustly based and 
illustrate the expected costs the Council will incur in order to deliver current levels of 
service.

7.12 Board Chairmen and Senior Managers will be given regular budget updates to 
ensure that action to address any potential over or underspend is taken promptly.

(b) The Adequacy of Proposed Financial Reserves

7.13 The Council's General Fund Working Balance, Revenue Financing Reserve (RFR) 
and Stability & Resilience Reserve (SRR) have been proposed at levels that are 
consistent with the Council's financial risks over the medium term.  

7.14 The Working Balance at £1m represents 10% of General Fund revenue spending, 
and is supplemented by the RFR and SSR for the Council's highest financial risks.

7.15 The RFR is appropriately set to ensure adequate financial capacity exists to support 
the cost of implementing the necessary savings required for future years.  The SRR 
has been set at 20% of annual funding and is expected to be sufficient to 
accommodate funding volatility over the next 2 to 3 years.  

7.16 The Council maintains a number of other Earmarked Reserves for specific purposes 
and known future liabilities. These include6:

 The Revenue Financing Reserve 
 The Stability and Resilience Reserve
 Homelessness Support Grant Reserve

7.17 At the proposed levels, the Council reserves are sufficient to accommodate the 
Council's financial risks and maintain the Council's overall financial health.

8 PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2020/21

8.1 The Council's Pay Policy Statement for 2020/21 is attached at Appendix F for 
approval.

6 A full list of earmarked reserves can be found at page 59 of the Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19



24

9 CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2019/20 TO 2022/23

9.1 The Capital Programme is a key mechanism for the Council to achieve its objectives 
and enhance services for Borough residents.  Officers have been reviewing existing 
projects and the potential for new projects as part of Budget preparation. The 
financial analysis in this report has compared current forecasts of expenditure 
against the capital budgets set in the February 2019 Budget.  

9.2 The current programme was agreed by Council in February 2019.  Expenditure to 
take place in this financial year has been reviewed against the Budget agreed and 
plans have been updated accordingly; including making provision for expenditure in 
future years where this is required.  The refreshed financial profile for existing 
projects is detailed at Appendix D.  Key movements are outlined below, by Board:

Existing Projects

Policy & Organisation Board

a) The NNDR system is now planned to take place in 2020/21; thereby shifting 
proposed expenditure of £144k from this financial year into 2020/21;

b) Additional IT System upgrades; will add £100k of cost into 2020/21.  This will 
address required updates for payment collection systems and also for geospatial 
software (required to support local planning and other services);

Economic Development Board

c) Intensive work has taken place to examine how the former MOD Daedalus site 
could be regenerated with particular emphasis on commercial and industrial uses 
for the site.  This work, as yet, has not provided a viable solution despite detailed 
studies involving the Council, Solent LEP, Homes England and other partners.  It 
is estimated that £100k will be spent in this financial year with a further £25k per 
annum in the next three financial years to continue feasibility work and 
engagement with relevant partners;

d) The viability of regenerating the waterfront area by the Gosport Bus and Ferry 
terminals continues to be examined. This work has been successful in outlining a 
number of options for redevelopment; including in the context of broader Town 
Centre regeneration.  The project had a total budget of £1,299k for this financial 
year, which will be utilised as follows (incorporating a minor underspend):

i. £987k to be spent in 2020/21 as a match funding contribution from the 
Council to support Town Centre regeneration activity with Hampshire 
County Council and the Solent LEP; and 

ii. £200k over the following two financial years to enable marketing activity of 
the bus depot site for further development in line with the feasibility 
studies undertaken.

e) There is a £250k budget for Heritage Action Zone (HAZ) funding.  This will be 
utilised for a D Day war memorial (£50k) in this financial year with the remainder 
for further HAZ feasibility work, as well as funding for a footbridge between the 
Bastion South banking and Millennium Promenade; and



25

f) Work to upgrade and maintain the Forton Lake bridge has been completed; with 
in-year expenditure of £280k which incorporates slippage from previous years 
due to the complexity of the works required; 

Community Board

g) Work is underway to develop the Alver Valley via the building of a café, which 
will open in Spring 2020 and which will provide income to the Council; this 
scheme will incur £500k expenditure in 2019/20 and £71k in 2020/21.  In 
addition, work is also underway to develop a Garden Centre to open in the 
following Spring, also providing material income to the Council, with expected 
costs of £159k in this financial year for detailed feasibility and project 
management;

h) Work, alongside a range of partners, is underway to develop and improve Flood 
Defences in the Borough.  This programme represents the latest assessment of 
progress and cost; the Alverstoke scheme will incur just under £100k of 
expenditure in 2019/20 and a further £422k in 2020/21.  The Forton scheme will 
incure £81k cost in 2019/20 and £497k in 2020/21. The Seafield scheme will 
expend £133k in 2019/20 with provision of £2,777k in the later years (of which 
£1,107k will be met by other partners).  The Council continues to work positively 
with its Flood Prevention partners to secure additional external funds for these 
schemes;

i) Work has also completed, in time for the 2019 summer holidays on the Lee-on-
Solent Splash Park; this is projected to incur £430k of cost in this financial year;

j) The Council receives every year from Central Government a grant to support 
residents to adapt homes for required Disabled Facilities.  Expenditure is linked 
to demand for the adaptations which is lower than the grants provided by 
Government; as such our projection for expenditure this year is £600k compared 
to £737k in the February budget;

k) Every year, the Council procures new residential properties to support demand 
for social and affordable housing in the borough. On average the Council 
procures 6 to 10 houses or dwellings per annum and we are projecting 
expenditure of £1,458k in this financial year.  After 2019/20; we will no longer 
procure properties as the Council will instead (as detailed below) begin a social 
housing building programme to add to its existing stock; and

l) There is an existing project to refurbish the Gosport Ice Rink which requires £67k 
of funds in FY 2020/21 to contribute to improvements at this important leisure 
site.

Future Projects

9.3 The capital programme for next financial year and beyond has a number of new 
proposals that reflect the priorities for Gosport and its residents, across a wide range 
of areas.  These include:



26

Economic Development Board

a) The Council was recently successful in obtaining agreement in principle from the 
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) for a grant of 
£1,800k for HAZ Town Centre projects.  Officers are currently working with 
MHCLG to definitively secure the funding and to allocate it to related projects.  
The aim of these projects is to support regeneration of culturally significant sites 
in the centre of Gosport but also, in doing so, enhancing their viability in 
supporting local economic growth. At present £1,100k of the £1,800k is required 
for capital projects relating to:

i. Development of High Street Shop frontage;
ii. Development of the former Grammar School building, working 

alongside Hampshire Cultural Trust (HCT);
iii. Royal Arms development; and 
iv. The Gosport Museum and Art Gallery.

Community Board

b) The Community Board agreed in September 2019 to propose six projects for 
inclusion into the capital programme that would improve existing play and leisure 
facilities in open spaces across the Borough, such as in Walpole Park.  These 
have been included in the proposed programme; with £53k for expenditure in this 
financial year (2019/20) and the remaining budget (£623k) in 2020/21.  A further 
£45k (in 2020/21) will be utilised for Health and Wellbeing equipment in Stanley 
Park;

c) Officers are examining how to make the existing grounds maintenance services, 
currently run by Sodexo, more efficient and effective.  This includes 
consideration of bringing these services back in-house; potentially to include 
undertaking a broader range of services than currently offered by Sodexo and 
thereby enabling revenue savings.  To enable this option, if this decision is 
taken, £634k of capital funds has been earmarked for the procurement of 
relevant equipment and machinery;

d) Gosport requires a new cemetery to provide additional capacity in the Borough; 
importantly continuing to ensure that residents in the Borough have the choice to 
be buried in the Borough in the future if that is their wish.  The scheme is in its 
early stages but we have provisioned £580k for the new cemetery;

e) Following the successful opening of the Lee-on-Solent Splash Park, a new 
project has been added to the capital programme to refurbish the Stokes Bay 
splash park; at a projected cost of £250k.  This will enable operational resilience 
of the site;

f) The existing capital programme includes provision for three flood defence 
schemes at Seafield, Forton and Alverstoke.  There is a requirement for a fourth 
scheme to enhance existing flood defences at Stokes Bay, which have been 
severely damaged in recent storms and are in danger of collapse.  The Stokes 
Bay road and local area would require extensive remedial action in the event of 
severe flooding; as such the Council is in discussions with Hampshire County 
Council (HCC), the Environment Agency and our Flood Prevention partners to 
identify funding sources alongside Council resources.  At present, until detailed 



27

feasibility studies have been completed, we have earmarked £500k for this work 
to be partially funded by our Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) funds; and

g) The Council is keen to increase the availability of social and affordable housing 
in the Borough; particularly to address our current need for 1 and 2 bed 
properties and also properties that are adapted for residents with disabilities.  
The Council has identified a large number of Council owned sites that, over the 
next three years, could to our existing stock.  Work is underway to develop a 
housing project to enable this house building programme and we have 
earmarked £7,600k over the next three years to enable a building programme.  
This will be financed via our existing HRA reserves, HRA revenue contributions 
and also Right to Buy receipts. Officers are in discussion with Homes England 
and others to seek access to Central Government grants for this important work.

9.4 The revised programme facilitates a further £8m of expenditure (total programme 
cost of £39m compared to £31m in February 2019).  This additional expenditure will 
be predominantly funded by:

a) Increasing borrowing by just over £1.3m to finance schemes that provide for 
reduced costs in the General Fund and / or enhanced income (such as the new 
cemetery and the equipment required for Grounds Maintenance);

b) Utilising Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) funds of £0.6m; 

c) Other grants and contributions increasing by £0.4m, in particular the HAZ grant 
from MHCLG (partly offset by reducing use of our Disabled Facilities grant);

d) To fund our social housing building programme; from transfers into the HRA 
capital programme from HRA revenue contribution and reserves totalling £5m; 
and

e) Also using a further £0.6m of HRA reserves to part fund the Seafield flood 
protection scheme.

9.5 There can be a direct impact on revenue budgets arising from the Capital 
Programme both positive and negative.  All revenue implications arising from the 
Capital Programme have been taken into account in the proposed Budget 2020/21 
and the forecasts for future years.  

9.6 In the current climate, it is important that the Council directs its available capital 
resources in a balanced way towards both essential service provision as well as 
regeneration activities and invest to save schemes.  Investing in regeneration and 
schemes that stimulate employment is likely to improve overall prosperity within the 
Borough, reducing the need for Council services which better enables savings to be 
made.  Additionally, increased employment has a positive financial impact on the 
Council's funding from Business Rates which will support the Council's future 
viability and the sustainability of high quality services to residents.

9.7 The amount of capital expenditure funded through borrowing continues to be strictly 
controlled since it must be demonstrated that the revenue consequences are 
affordable in line with the Prudential Code, in practice this means that borrowing can 
only be used for "Invest to Save" schemes where the saving is identifiable and can 
be removed from the Council's Revenue Budget. 



28

10 CONCLUSION

10.1 The proposed Budget 2020/21 of £10,282,110 is balanced, has been prepared on 
the basis of a council tax increase of £5.  It is also consistent with the need to 
balance spending with income and funding over the medium term.

10.2 The Council's future forecasts require that savings of £1.7m, either through reduced 
costs and / or additional income will be required over the next 3 years.  It is 
proposed that these savings be phased at £0.57m per annum from 2021/22 to 
2023/24 inclusive in order to provide for a broadly evenly managed programme to be 
implemented over the period. There are opportunities for this to be achieved by 
pursuing the Council's MTFS designed to stimulate the tax base (Council Tax and 
Business Rates), income generation opportunities, service reviews and continued 
joint working with partners.

10.3 Significant risks to the Council's future funding still remain over the next 3 years, 
particularly relating to the future operation of the Business Rates system and the 
75% Business Rate Retention Scheme to be potentially implemented in 2021/22 
with the continuing risks of Business Rate appeals.   A Comprehensive Spending 
Review is likely to take place this summer which will hopefully provide greater 
certainty for financial planning.  The Council's forecast of a 3 year deficit of £1.7m is 
a central (or "base case") assumption which could realistically change by +/- £0.3m 
and is a key reason why the Council's Reserves need to be retained at adequate 
levels.

10.4 The proposed Budget for 2020/21 is financially balanced, robustly based and 
provides sufficient cover for anticipated and potential financial risks within the year.  
Furthermore, with Reserves at this level, the overall financial health of the Council is 
currently sound providing a good degree of resilience against an uncertain future. 

Financial Implications: All of the financial implications associated with the 
recommendations are described within the body of 
the report.

Legal Implications: The Council has to set a balanced budget and is also 
under an obligation to carry out its functions 
effectively, efficiently and economically

Service Improvement 
Plan implications:

The budget submissions reflect both service 
improvement plans and the corporate plan.

Corporate Plan:
Risk Assessment:

The budget submissions reflect both service 
improvement plans and the corporate plan. The 
report includes an assessment of the risks in the 
Council’s budget and forward projections as 
described in Section 12.

Background papers: Budget Book
Budget working papers
Capital Programme 2019/20 to 2021/22



29

Appendices/Enclosures: A. General Fund Budget 2020/21
B. General Fund Forecast to 2023/24
C. Summary of Service Board Budgets 2020/21
D. Capital Programme 2019/20 to 2022/23
E. Prudential Indicators
F. Pay Policy 2020/21



30

Appendix A

ORIGINAL REVISED ESTIMATE
2019/20 2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000 £'000

GENERAL FUND BUDGET

COMMUNITY BOARD 5,608 5,905 5,983

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD 959 1,015 966

POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD 3,880 3,682 3,333

TOTAL  NET  EXPENDITURE 10,447 10,602 10,282

REVENUE CONTRIBUTION TO CAPITAL 0 74 487

TRANSFER TO/(FROM) RESERVES
GENERAL FUND WORKING BALANCE 110 110 0
REVENUE FINANCING RESERVE (160) (391) (196)
STABILITY AND RESILIANCE RESERVE 66 32 1

BUDGET TOTAL 10,463 10,427 10,574

FINANCED BY

COUNCIL TAX (6,135) (6,135) (6,216)

GOVERNMENT GRANTS (655) (654) (457)

BUSINESS RATES (3,675) (3,640) (3,900)

FUNDING TOTAL (10,465) (10,429) (10,573)

BALANCES

GENERAL FUND WORKING BALANCES
B/FWD 890 890 1,000 
CHANGE 110 110 0 
C/FWD 1,000 1,000 1,000 

REVENUE FINANCING RESERVE
B/FWD 4,104 4,104 3,713 
CHANGE (160) (391) (196)
C/FWD 3,944 3,713 3,517 

STABILITY AND RESILIENCE RESERVE
B/FWD 2,028 2,028 2,060 
CHANGE 66 32 1 
C/FWD 2,094 2,060 2,061 

GENERAL FUND BUDGET

SUMMARY OF REVISED 2019/20 AND ESTIMATE 2020/21



Appendix B

GENERAL FUND PROJECTION TO 2023/24 
2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

£'000 £'000 £'000

A 2020/21 BASE BUDGET 10,033 10,033 10,033

B BUDGET INCREASES / (DECREASES)
PENSIONS 22 44 367
INFLATION           371 796 1,229
MRP 35 127 198
INTEREST 70 111 110
ELECTIONS (53) 52 45
LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 46 (59) (39)
INSURANCE (75) (76) (77)
PROPERTY INCOME (19) (24) (24)
FEES AND CHARGES (30) (36) (36)
WASTE RECYCLING 290 293 296

657 1,228 2,069

C PROJECTED BUDGET TOTALS (A+B) 10,690 11,261 12,102

D FUNDING
COUNCIL TAX (SEE BELOW) (6,413) (6,593) (6,778)
GOVERNMENT GRANTS (SEE BELOW) (431) (376) (362)
BUSINESS RATES (SEE BELOW) (3,302) (3,284) (3,249)
CONTRIBUTION TO / (FROM) RESERVES 0 0 0

(10,146) (10,253) (10,389)

E BUDGET DEFICIT (C+D) 544 1,008 1,713

COUNCIL TAX 
COUNCIL TAX BASE 27,202.1 27,385.1 27,580.1
COUNCIL TAX - BAND D £235.75 £240.75 £245.75
COUNCIL TAX INCOME (6,413) (6,593) (6,778)

GOVERNMENT GRANTS
REVENUE SUPPORT GRANT 0 0 0
NEW HOMES BONUS (69) (14) 0
BENEFITS ADMINISTRATION GRANT (362) (362) (362)
GOVERNMENT GRANTS (431) (376) (362)

Savings to meet budget requirement Revised In Year Revised
Underlying Target Cumulative

Deficit Saving
YEAR 1 (2020/21) 544 570 570
YEAR 2 (2021/22) 1,008 570 1,140
YEAR 3 (2022/23) 1,713 570 1,710

BUSINESS RATES
NNDR1 (6,637) (6,975) (7,169)
COLLECTION FUND (SURPLUS) / DEFICIT 0 0 0
EZ (374) (138) 0
TARIFF 4,871 4,968 5,068
S.31 GRANTS (1,042) (1,062) (1,084)
RETURNED BRRS SURPLUS (190) (190) (190)
LEVY 70 113 126
BUSINESS RATES (3,302) (3,284) (3,249)

0 0 0



Appendix C

OVERVIEW OF GENERAL FUND BOARD REVENUE BUDGETS 2020/21

1. All members have been issued with a draft budget book for 2020/21 that while primarily 
containing the Council’s General Fund (GF) budgets by Board and Service also contains 
the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) budgets within Community Board and a summary 
of the Capital Programme by scheme. This Appendix provides an overview of the GF 
budgets

2. Each of the three Board budgets comprise a number of services, each service in turn 
comprises of a number of managerial ‘cost centres’ which facilitate the management and 
delivery of services by budget holders and managers

3. Board budgets may be presented by the individual services (e.g. Parking, Waste etc.) as 
in the budget book and may also be presented by the type of service expense that are 
incurred (e.g. Premises, Transport etc.). These types of service expense are set down 
nationally for local authorities to follow.

4. The tables below show the each of the Council’s spending Boards, firstly by their services 
as contained in the budget book and secondly by the type of expense.



APPENDIX C cont.

Orig Revised Original
Budget Budget Estimate
19/20 19/20 20/21 Org Rev Orig

. to Rev to Est to Est
TOTAL 5,607,610 5,904,530 5,983,180 296,920 78,650 375,570
LEISURE & CULTURE 2,192,950 2,332,200 2,274,190 139,250 (58,010) 81,240
WASTE 1,354,690 1,400,180 1,510,110 45,490 109,930 155,420
STREETSCENE 359,310 453,410 592,810 94,100 139,400 233,500
COMMUNITY SAFETY 369,410 294,120 301,500 (75,290) 7,380 (67,910)
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 520,160 467,260 446,230 (52,900) (21,030) (73,930)
MISC ENVIRONMENTAL & TRANSPORT 515,810 623,970 536,760 108,160 (87,210) 20,950
CEMETERY (30,780) (19,350) (19,310) 11,430 40 11,470
HOME ADAPTATION GRANTS 7,540 13,070 12,910 5,530 (160) 5,370
PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING 71,420 78,150 77,170 6,730 (980) 5,750
HOMELESSNESS 341,650 350,570 355,350 8,920 4,780 13,700
OTHER GENERAL FUND HOUSING (94,550) (89,050) (104,540) 5,500 (15,490) (9,990)

Orig Revised Original
Budget Budget Estimate
19/20 19/20 20/21 Org Rev Orig

. to Rev to Est to Est
TOTAL 5,607,610 5,904,530 5,983,180 296,920 78,650 375,570
EXPENDITURE 10,112,350 10,245,270 10,313,240 132,920 67,970 200,890
EMPLOYEES 26,120 25,560 26,130 (560) 570 10
PREMISES 691,470 964,580 781,580 273,110 (183,000) 90,110
TRANSPORT 9,660 9,720 9,720 60 - 60
SUPPLIES & SERVICES 1,688,990 1,748,460 1,749,650 59,470 1,190 60,660
THIRD PARTY PAYMENTS 4,236,600 4,232,140 4,325,150 (4,460) 93,010 88,550
TRANSFER PAYMENTS 202,000 236,410 236,410 34,410 - 34,410
SUPPORT SERVICES 2,342,500 2,112,900 2,269,100 (229,600) 156,200 (73,400)
CAPITAL/FINANCING 915,010 915,500 915,500 490 - 490
INCOME (4,504,740) (4,340,740) (4,330,060) 164,000 10,680 174,680
FEES & CHARGES (3,666,470) (3,499,380) (3,486,720) 167,090 12,660 179,750
NON FEES & CHARGES (838,270) (841,360) (843,340) (3,090) (1,980) (5,070)

COMMUNITY BOARD - BY SERVICE
Variance

COMMUNITY BOARD BY TYPE OF 
EXPENSES

Variance

 



APPENDIX C cont.

Orig Revised Original
Budget Budget Estimate
19/20 19/20 20/21 Org Rev Orig

. to Rev to Est to Est
TOTAL 959,210 1,015,120 966,040 55,910 (49,080) 6,830
ECONOMIC PROSPERITY 215,070 272,020 264,840 56,950 (7,180) 49,770
MARKET (17,630) (11,640) (8,540) 5,990 3,100 9,090
TOWN HARBOUR FORESHORE 216,560 217,470 218,970 910 1,500 2,410
EVENTS 83,230 56,440 63,250 (26,790) 6,810 (19,980)
PROPERTIES 179,590 179,450 137,870 (140) (41,580) (41,720)
MARKETING AND TOURISM 178,390 169,880 196,250 (8,510) 26,370 17,860
LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK 104,000 131,500 93,400 27,500 (38,100) (10,600)

Orig Revised Original
Budget Budget Estimate
19/20 19/20 20/21 Org Rev Orig

. to Rev to Est to Est
TOTAL 959,210 1,015,120 966,040 55,910 (49,080) 6,830
EXPENDITURE 1,199,270 1,282,110 1,231,090 82,840 (51,020) 31,820
EMPLOYEES - 500 600 500 100 600
PREMISES 176,880 204,350 188,190 27,470 (16,160) 11,310
TRANSPORT 700 700 700 - - -
SUPPLIES & SERVICES 337,120 467,350 348,200 130,230 (119,150) 11,080
THIRD PARTY PAYMENTS 57,730 74,810 76,400 17,080 1,590 18,670
TRANSFER PAYMENTS - - - - - -
SUPPORT SERVICES 412,450 324,100 406,700 (88,350) 82,600 (5,750)
CAPITAL/FINANCING 214,390 210,300 210,300 (4,090) - (4,090)
INCOME (240,060) (266,990) (265,050) (26,930) 1,940 (24,990)
FEES & CHARGES (163,170) (152,990) (179,460) 10,180 (26,470) (16,290)
NON FEES & CHARGES (76,890) (114,000) (85,590) (37,110) 28,410 (8,700)

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD 
BY TYPE OF EXPENSES

Variance

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD 
BY SERVICE

Variance



APPENDIX C cont.

Orig Revised Original
Budget Budget Estimate
19/20 19/20 20/21 Org Rev Orig

. to Rev to Est to Est
TOTAL 3,880,290 3,683,470 3,332,890 (196,820) (350,580) (547,400)
REGISTRATION OF ELECTORS 242,090 244,810 233,310 2,720 (11,500) (8,780)
LOCAL LAND CHARGES 23,730 22,860 26,310 (870) 3,450 2,580
HOUSING BENEFITS 754,580 580,300 724,500 (174,280) 144,200 (30,080)
LOCAL TAXATION 283,010 299,410 332,450 16,400 33,040 49,440
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 870,500 852,190 968,850 (18,310) 116,660 98,350
LICENSING & REGISTRATION 42,100 38,580 35,960 (3,520) (2,620) (6,140)
ASSISTANCE TO VOLUNTARY ORGS 218,170 218,170 253,170 - 35,000 35,000
CORPORATE & CIVIC EXPENSES 1,087,000 1,155,490 1,112,700 68,490 (42,790) 25,700
MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES 1,065,070 1,070,640 466,770 5,570 (603,870) (598,300)
OTHER CORPORATE AREAS (705,960) (798,980) (821,130) (93,020) (22,150) (115,170)

Orig Revised Original
Budget Budget Estimate
19/20 19/20 20/21 Org Rev Orig

. to Rev to Est to Est
TOTAL 3,880,290 3,683,470 3,332,890 (196,820) (350,580) (547,400)
EXPENDITURE 33,572,390 29,151,650 28,760,610 (4,420,740) (391,040) (4,811,780)
EMPLOYEES 874,620 931,590 298,500 56,970 (633,090) (576,120)
PREMISES 1,350 9,480 9,550 8,130 70 8,200
TRANSPORT 5,640 6,900 6,840 1,260 (60) 1,200
SUPPLIES & SERVICES 941,690 890,400 733,650 (51,290) (156,750) (208,040)
THIRD PARTY PAYMENTS 304,000 306,890 293,490 2,890 (13,400) (10,510)
TRANSFER PAYMENTS 26,031,680 21,839,100 21,983,400 (4,192,580) 144,300 (4,048,280)
SUPPORT SERVICES 4,085,770 4,024,290 4,201,480 (61,480) 177,190 115,710
CAPITAL/FINANCING 1,327,640 1,143,000 1,233,700 (184,640) 90,700 (93,940)
INCOME (29,692,100) (25,468,180) (25,427,720) 4,223,920 40,460 4,264,380
FEES & CHARGES (479,210) (490,610) (474,750) (11,400) 15,860 4,460
NON FEES & CHARGES (29,212,890) (24,977,570) (24,952,970) 4,235,320 24,600 4,259,920

POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD 
BY SERVICE

Variance

POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD 
BY TYPE OF EXPENSES

Variance



Appendix D
CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2019/20 TO 2022/23
COMMUNITY BOARD - HOUSING (HRA)

  Project Project Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate Project costs funded by GBC

Item SCHEME total (where costs to 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
No  appropriate) 31/03/2019         
  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
            
1 IMPROVEMENTS TO HOUSING STOCK - - 3,300 4,000 3,300 3,300 3,300 4,000 3,300 3,300
2 PURCHASE OF PROPERTIES - - 1,458    1,458    
 NEW BUILD 7,630   1,000 2,540 4,090  1,000 2,540 4,090

            
 Board Total   4,758 5,000 5,840 7,390 4,758 5,000 5,840 7,390
            

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2019/20 TO 2022/23
COMMUNITY BOARD - HOUSING (GENERAL 
FUND)

  Project Project Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate Project costs funded by GBC

Item SCHEME total (where costs to 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
No  appropriate) 31/03/2019         
  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
            
1 DISABLED FACILITIES - - 600 600 600 600     
            

            
 Board Total   600 600 600 600     
            



CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2019/20 TO 2022/23
COMMUNITY BOARD - NON HOUSING

  Project Project Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate Project costs funded by GBC

Item SCHEME total (where costs to 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
No  appropriate) 31/03/2019         
  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
            
1 ALVER VALLEY COUNTRY PARK 1,636 1,065 500 71   279 71   
2 GRANGE FARM GATEWAY 310  159 64 47 40 159 64 47 40
4 FORTON COASTAL FLOOD & EROSION RISK 

MANAGEMENT SCHEME
683 105 81 497       

5 ALVERSTOKE COASTAL FLOOD & EROSION RISK 
MANAGEMENT SCHEME

632 117 93 422       

6 SEAFIELD COASTAL FLOOD & EROSION RISK 
MANAGEMENT SCHEME

3,057 147 133 5 1,457 1,315   878 792

7 HILL HEAD TO PORTSMOUTH HARBOUR 
ENTRANCE BEACH MANAGEMENT PLAN

92 90 2        

8 CAR PARK RESURFACING & UPGRADING - - 138    138    
9 PROVIDE LIGHTING TO PATHWAYS WITHIN 

LEISURE PARKS, GARDENS & OPEN SPACES
247 35  212    50   

10 PUBLIC CONVENIENCES REFURBISHMENT 462 346 116    116    
11 PLAYGROUNDS - IMPROVEMENTS TO EXISTING 

FACILITIES
175 77 46 52   46 52   

12 ESSENTIAL PAVING IMPROVEMENTS & 
UPGRADES

105 5  100    100   

13 STOKES BAY - WET & DRY PLAY AREA 399 374 25    25    
14 STANLEY PARK - PHASED REFURBISHMENT 72 48 24    24    
15 RENEW INTERPRETATION BOARDS ACROSS THE 

BOROUGH
31 7 24    24    

16 ICE RINK REFURBISHMENT & IMPROVEMENT 105 38  67    67   
17 COCKLE POND - WATER CIRCULATION SCHEME 100   100    100   
18 COCKLE POND - FOOTWAY REPAIRS 180   100 80   100 80  
19 COMMUNITY SPACE MANOR WAY 145 54  91    91   
20 PARHAM ROAD - FLOOD MEASURES 25   25    25   
21 STOKES BAY ROAD, EAST AND WEST CAR PARKS 

- DRAINAGE UPGRADE
40  40    40    



  Project Project Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate Project costs funded by GBC

Item SCHEME total (where costs to 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
No  appropriate) 31/03/2019         
  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
            

22 CAR PARK TICKET MACHINES - PHASED UPGRADE 
OF ALL MACHINES

221 139 49 33   49 33   

23 LEESLAND ROAD PLAY AREA - REFURBISHMENT 81   81    81   
24 ALLOTMENTS - MANAGEMENT AND ERADICATION 

OF JAPANESE KNOTWEED
65 10 55    55    

25 LEE-ON- SOLENT SPLASH POOL 648 218 430    430    
26 STOKES BAY HOME PARK - UPPER SITE STORE 

SHED REPLACEMENT
84   84    84   

27 BROOKERS FIELD - ROOF REPLACEMENT 40   40    40   
28 TUKES AVENUE OPEN SPACE - PLAY ZONE 120   120       
29 STOKES BAY - GYM EQUIPMENT 45  18 18 9      
30 NOBES AVENUE OPEN SPACE - NEW PAVILLION 350   350       
31 WALPOLE PARK - INCLUSIVE PLAY ZONE 135   135       
32 GRANGE FARM - OFFICE REFURBISHMENT 35  35        
33 SPLASH PARK - STOKES BAY 250    250    250  
34 PLAY AREA - KINGS ROAD 100    100    100  
35 STOKES BAY SEAWALL 500   250 250   50 250  
36 BRIDGEMARY BOWLING GREEN 15   15    15   
37 FORTON BOWLING GREEN 10   10    10   
38 ELMORE LAKE - WATER RETENTION WORKS 70   70    70   
39 PROVISION OF A NEW CEMETERY 580   65 65 450  65 65 450
40 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE SERVICE - PURCHASE OF 

EQUIPMENT AND MACHINERY
634   460  174  460  174

41 LEISURE CENTRE CHANGING PLACES FACILITIES 50   50    50   
            

            
 Board Total   1,968 3,587 2,258 1,979 1,385 1,678 1,670 1,456
            



CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2019/20 TO 2022/23
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD

  Project Project Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate Project costs funded by GBC

Item SCHEME total (where costs to 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
No  appropriate) 31/03/2019         
  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
            
1 WATERFRONT REGENERATION 1,485 198 100 987 100 100 100 987 100 100
2 ALVERBANK HOTEL - EXTERNAL REPAIRS & 

REDECORATION
70 22 48    48    

3 FORTON LAKE OPENING BRIDGE - RENEWAL OF 
MOTORS, GEARS, SPROCKETS AND CHAINS & 
ELECTRICAL UPGRADE

406 126 280    280    

4 DAEDALUS REGENERATION 543 367 101 25 25 25 101 25 25 25
5 CHRISTMAS LIGHTS 25  25    25    
6 HERITAGE ACTION ZONE (FEASIBILITY 

STUDIES/MATCH FUNDING)
250  50 200   50 200   

7 GOSPORT MUSEUM & GALLERY (CAPITAL GRANT) 100   30 70      
8 HAZ TOWN CENTRE PROJECTS 1,000   200 400 400     

            
 Board Total   604 1,442 595 525 604 1,212 125 125
            



CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2019/20 TO 2022/23
POLICY & ORGANISATION BOARD

  Project Project Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate Project costs funded by GBC

Item SCHEME total (where costs to 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
No  appropriate) 31/03/2019         
  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
            
1 CCTV - REPLACEMENT & UPGRADES - -  15 15 15  15 15 15
2 IT - PC REPLACEMENT PROGRAMME - - 30  5 5 30  5 5
3 IT - SERVER REPLACEMENT - - 65 40 40 40 65 40 40 40
4 IT - SYSTEM UPGRADES - - 39 160 40 40 39 160 40 40
5 TOWN HALL MAJOR REPAIRS - ELECTRICS - - 18 10 10 10 18 10 10 10
6 TOWN HALL MAJOR REPAIRS - INTERNAL 

DECORATIONS
- - 30 15 15 15 30 15 15 15

7 TOWN HALL MAJOR REPAIRS - HEALTH & SAFETY - - 19 10 10 10 19 10 10 10
8 TOWN HALL MAJOR REPAIRS - ADAPTIONS - - 27 15 15 15 27 15 15 15
9 FINANCE SYSTEM UPGRADE - - 15  65  15  65  

10 IT - GENERAL DATA PROTECTION REGULATION 
(GDPR) UPGRADES

- - 7 10   7 10   

11 REPLACEMENT OF NNDR SYSTEM 144 -  144    144   
12 DIGITAL STRATEGY (CHANNELSHIFT) 148 13 33 102   33 102   
13 DESKTOP UPGRADE 80 - 80    80    
            

            
 Board Total   363 521 215 150 363 521 215 150
            



  Project Project Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate Project costs funded by GBC

Item SCHEME total (where costs to 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
No  appropriate) 31/03/2019         
  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
            
 Total Capital Programme   8,293 11,150 9,508 10,644 7,110 8,411 7,850 9,121
            

SUMMARY FINANCING STATEMENT

   2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
   £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £'000
        
EXTERNAL RESOURCES       
SPECIFIC CAPITAL GRANTS - GF  600 830 1,070 1,000 3,500
DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS - OPEN SPACES - GF  221 402   623
DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS - CIL  53 583 9  645
OTHER GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS - GF  309 924 579 523 2,335
       
LOCAL RESOURCES       
DEPRECIATION - HRA  3,018 3,018 3,018 3,018 12,072
REVENUE CONTRIBUTION - HRA  282 982 282 1,609 3,155
RESERVES - HRA  1,458 1,000 2,540 2,763 7,761
RESERVES - HRA (TO GF PROGRAMME)  115 115 993 892 2,115
REVENUE CONTRIBUTION - CAPITAL  74 500   574
REVENUE RESERVE FOR CAPITAL  810 161 90 475 1,536
CAPITAL RECEIPTS - GF  55 200   255
CAPITAL FUNDING REQUIREMENT - GF  1,298 2,435 927 364 5,024
       

TOTAL FUNDING   8,293 11,150 9,508 10,644 39,595



Appendix E
Prudential Indicators

PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Actual Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

General Fund Services 2,130.0 3,535.0 6,150.0 3,668.0 3,254.0
HRA 3,687.0 4,758.0 5,000.0 5,840.0 7,390.0
Total 5,817.0 8,293.0 11,150.0 9,508.0 10,644.0

Capital Expenditure

Capital Financing 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Actual Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

External Resources 1,154.0 1,183.0 2,739.0 1,658.0 1,523.0
Local Resources (excl. borrowing) 4,663.0 5,812.0 5,976.0 6,923.0 8,757.0
Borrowing 0.0 1,298.0 2,435.0 927.0 364.0

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Actual Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

CFR - Non Housing 19,918.0 21,216.0 23,468.0 23,730.0 23,357.0
CFR - Housing 61,789.0 61,789.0 61,789.0 61,789.0 61,789.0
Total CFR 81,707.0 83,005.0 85,257.0 85,519.0 85,146.0
Net movement in CFR 0.0 1,298.0 2,252.0 262.0 (373.0)
Movement in CFR is represented by
Net financing need for the year 0.0 1,298.0 2,435.0 927.0 364.0
* Less MRP/VRP/other movements 0.0 0.0 (183.0) (665.0) (737.0)
Movement in CFR 0.0 1,298.0 2,252.0 262.0 (373.0)

Capital Financing Requirement

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Actual Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

External Debt 73,500.0 76,000.0 80,000.0 83,000.0 83,000.0
Other Long Term Liabilities 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Gross Debt at 31 March 73,500.0 76,000.0 80,000.0 83,000.0 83,000.0
CFR 81,707.0 83,005.0 85,257.0 85,519.0 85,146.0
Under / (over) borrowing 8,207.0 7,005.0 5,257.0 2,519.0 2,146.0

Portfolio Position

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
82.1 86.1 89.1 89.1

Operational boundary

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
89.8 95.3 97.7 98.0

Authorised limit



Appendix F
GOSPORT BOROUGH COUNCIL

PAY POLICY STATEMENT
2020/21

1. Purpose

This statement is produced in accordance with Section 38(1) of the Localism Act 2011, and sets 
out the Council’s policies relating to the pay of its workforce for the financial year 2020/21, and in 
particular:

 the remuneration of its Chief Officers/highest paid employees
 the remuneration of its “lowest paid employees”
 the relationship between the remuneration of its Chief Officers and those who are not Chief 

Officers.

2. Shared working arrangements

With effect from 1 October 2016 an arrangement was implemented with Portsmouth City Council to 
share management and leadership arrangements with both councils retaining their clear identities 
as individual councils. Under this arrangement Gosport Borough Council pays a contribution to 
Portsmouth City Council, the figure for 2020/21 is £160,000 plus. As a consequence there is no 
longer a Chief Executive as Head of Paid Service or Borough Treasurer employed directly by 
Gosport Borough Council. This arrangement was also extended further to other posts including the 
Housing Services Manager, Head of Payroll and Head of Human Resources.  

3. Definitions

For the purpose of this pay policy statement, the following definitions apply.

3.1 Pay, in addition to salary, includes any charges, fees, allowances, benefits in kind, 
increases in/enhancements to pension entitlements, and termination payments.

3.2 Chief Officer, prior to 1 October 2016, referred to the following roles within the Council:
 Chief Executive, as Head of Paid Service,  
 Borough Solicitor and Deputy Chief Executive (who is also the Council’s Monitoring 

Officer), 
 Borough Treasurer,  
 Housing Services Manager 

In addition, in accordance with the definition set out in the Localism Act and the Government’s 
statutory guidance, this term for this purpose also refers to those officers who report directly to the 
statutory or non-statutory officers, i.e. the following Section Heads:

 Head of Policy and Community Safety
 Head of IT
 Head of Finance 
 Head of Local Taxation
 Head of Internal Audit
 Head of Housing
 Property Services Manager
 Housing Needs and Advice Manager
 Neighbourhood Operations Manager
 Borough Solicitor & Monitoring Officer
 Head of Electoral Services & Emergency Planning
 Head of Customer Services and Civics
 Senior Democratic Services Officer
 Assistant to the Chief Executive & Head of Planning and Regeneration 



 Development Manager
 Planning Policy Manager
 Conservation Manager
 Economic Development & Regeneration Manager
 Head of Human Resources
 Head of Payroll
 Head of Streetscene
 Head of Housing Benefits, Procurement and Insurance

3.3 Lowest paid employees refers to those employees employed at the lowest grade level 
(Grade 1) of the Council’s pay framework. This definition has been adopted because this is the 
lowest pay level in the Council, excluding Apprentices.

3.4 Employees who are not Chief Officers refers to all employees who are not covered by 
the Chief Officer group indicated at 3.2.

3.5 Highest paid employee will refer to the highest paid individual in Gosport Borough Council 
following the introduction of the shared working arrangement from 1 October 2016. This reflects 
the individual not responsible for directing the organisation but who receives the highest 
remuneration, due to the specialist skills or expertise held.

4. Pay framework and remuneration levels

4.1 General Approach

The Council recognises the need to exercise the greatest care in managing scarce public 
resources. The level of remuneration is a very important factor in both recruitment and retention of 
high quality employees dedicated to fulfilling the Council’s business objectives and delivering 
services to the public, but this has to be balanced by ensuring remuneration is not, nor seen to be, 
unnecessarily excessive.  Each council faces its own unique challenges and retains flexibility to 
cope with various circumstances.  

Gosport Borough Council is aware that its pay levels for the Chief Executive and statutory and non-
statutory Chief Officers have been low in comparison with the other authorities in the region, and 
nationally.  The situation is kept under regular review.
The Government considers that large salary packages for new appointments, which should be 
considered by full Council, are those above the threshold of £100,000.  In accordance with the 
revised guidance issued in February 2013, a lower threshold of £95,000 is used for this Council.   

4.2 Responsibility for decisions on remuneration

Statutory and non-statutory Chief Officers of this Council are covered by the Joint National Council 
for Local Authorities’ Conditions of Service for Chief Executives and Chief Officers; the JNC terms 
and conditions are incorporated in contracts of employment.  

Any corporate changes to pay or grading for these officers are considered by the Council’s Policy 
and Organisation Board.

Section Heads as listed at 3.2 and employees who are not Chief Officers are covered by the NJC 
for Local Authorities’ Services Conditions of Service.  The level of pay is determined in accordance 
with national pay scales.   Any changes to the formally agreed terms or conditions for all staff are 
considered by the Council’s Policy and Organisation Board.

4.3 Salary Grades and Grading Structure

The Council’s grading structure for Section Heads and all employees who are not Chief Officers 
consists of one spot point salary and 14 grades – grades within the pay scales are allocated to 
posts through the national job evaluation scheme, thus ensuring fairness and equality in the 



application of pay.  The allocation of a spot salary or grade depends on the nature and complexity 
of the job and the consequent need for a learning curve, and progression within grades is normally 
by annual increments, subject to satisfactory performance.  

Section Heads listed at 3.2, who report directly to statutory and non-statutory Chief Officers also 
listed in that paragraph, are responsible for a particular function, with some employees at a lower 
level (e.g. secretarial) also reporting direct to statutory or non-statutory Chief Officers.  Grades for 
Section Heads vary from grade 9 to grade 14 within the structure (attached), depending on the 
level of duties and responsibilities of each post and as evaluated in accordance with the national 
scheme.  

Grade Salary with effect from 1 April 2019 (subject to change 
once the 2020 pay award is agreed)

1 £17,364 - £17,711
2 £17,711 - £18,426
3 £18,795 - £19,171
4 £19,554 - £21,166
5 £21,589 - £23,836
6 £24,799 - £26,999
7 £27,905 - £31,371
8 £32,029 - £36,876
9 £37,849 - £41,675

10 £42,683 - £45,591
11 £46,549 - £49,425
12 £50,410 - £53,493
13 £54,562 - £59,622
14 £61,411 - £67,104

The lowest paid employees within the authority, i.e. those whose posts have been evaluated at the 
lowest grade, which is grade 1. Apprentices are paid outside of the pay grades based on the 
Authority's Apprenticeship rate.

The highest paid employee post 1 October 2016 is a Section Head (£37,849 to £67,104). 
Additional supplements are applicable for any employees managing other employees from other 
local authorities, see section 8 below. The comparison between the lowest paid and the highest 
paid is 3.9:1.

The highest paid salary, at the top of the grade is, 2.6 times the median average salary (£25,804) 
of the whole workforce. This is considered to be a fair and reasonable pay multiple, striking an 
appropriate balance which recognises the need to adequately recompense the different levels of 
duties and responsibilities. The reduction in the pay multiple is reflective of the removal of several 
senior posts within the Council and the introduction of shared working practices.

Increases in pay are made in accordance with national pay negotiations; there are separate 
negotiations for statutory and non-statutory Chief Officers. Section Heads pay will be increased 
with any pay increase agreed nationally in line with national negotiations.

4.4 Remuneration – level and elements

In considering pay, the Council takes into account market rates, individual performance and the 
need for equality and consistency in the way grades are applied.

5.0 Chief Officers

Statutory and non-statutory Chief Officers are not covered by the Council’s job evaluation scheme 
and do not therefore receive any increase in grade where duties and responsibilities increase.  



Given the significant reduction in the size of the Council’s Management Team over recent years, 
there have been considerable increases in duties and responsibilities for all these officers.

Following the implementation of the shared working arrangement from 1 October 2016 changes in 
pay for Chief Executive or Chief Officers are no longer applicable.

6.0 Other Officers

The salaries of Section Heads and other employees who are not Chief Officers are in accordance 
with the national tables, with increases applied following national pay negotiations.  

The only other pay increases occur where employees are progressing contractually through a 
grade, or where a job is re-evaluated to recognise substantial additional duties/responsibilities.  
The majority of the Council’s staff are on the top of their grade and have not therefore received 
incremental progression.

7.0 Grading Structure and Progression

The Council’s grades consist of incremental points, other than a few spot point salaries.  The use 
of a grade recognises and allows for employees to gain knowledge and expertise in the job.  
Appointments are made on merit and on the appropriate point of the grade, taking into account the 
level of skills and knowledge of the successful applicant. The decision is made by the Appointment 
Panel; the salary applied on appointment is subject to regular monitoring, and formally reviewed 
through the Equal Pay Audit.

All the Council’s employees are subject to the same performance management process. Whilst 
there is no formal performance related pay for any of the Council’s officers, increments can be 
withheld where performance is unsatisfactory, and enhanced incremental progression or one-off 
honorarium payments can also apply to recognise and reward exceptional performance. The 
scheme covering merit increments/honoraria provides clear guidance relating to the circumstances 
in which such payments can be made, and the size of the payment, which must be commensurate 
with the work being rewarded.  Such awards can only be approved by the Chief Executive, 
following corporate consideration, and they are centrally monitored for fairness and consistency.  

8.0 Additions to Salary

The responsibility of Returning Officer attracts an additional payment once every two years on 
completion of the work, this being the frequency of local elections.  The payment is made in 
accordance with the Hampshire scale of fees, and is made to whichever officer undertakes that 
responsibility.

There are other supplements applied to the salaries of Section Heads; for instance where a 
Section Head requires a practising certificate or professional membership by law in order to fulfil 
their contractual duties, and where a Section Head is managing the functions across more than 
one Council; in the latter case, a 15% supplement is applied for managing the function (and staff 
within it) in one additional council, and 25% where this applies to two or more councils. 
Supplements are also provided for additional duties on top of an existing Section Head role; such 
as a 15% supplement for the Head of Planning and Regeneration who is also Assistant to the 
Chief Executive.  The only other additional payments applying to Section Heads or other 
employees are those recognising work out of normal hours, overtime or stand-by, in accordance 
with National and Local Conditions of Service.

All officers are entitled to claim an allowance for attendance at evening committee meetings, in 
accordance with the Council’s formal Local Agreement, which depends on the amount of time 
involved. All officers who are nominated as “Essential” or “Casual” car users can apply for a loan 
from the Council to purchase a vehicle, the interest rate currently being 2.5%, in accordance with 
the formal Local Agreement.  Car user designations are reviewed annually to consider whether 



there is sufficient justification to continue the allowance.  All officers of the Council have the option 
to join the Hampshire County Council pension scheme, which is a contributory scheme with 
varying rates dependent on salary level.

The following elements of remuneration are determined by corporate policies or 
arrangements which apply to all permanent employees of the Council, regardless of their 
pay level, status or grading within the Council:

Market Supplements
A Market Supplement payment may be made if there is a clear business need, 
supported by effective market data, where a post is difficult to recruit to or to retain key 
members of staff, in addition to the normal reward package.  
The supplement payment will be made in strict accordance with the Recruitment and 
Retention Policy and will be reviewed biennially.  The full Recruitment and Retention 
Policy will be provided on request.  

.  
The Council does not make any bonus payments.

9.0 Payments on Termination of Employment

There are no additional payments made on termination of employment, other than in situations of 
redundancy or early retirement.  The provisions relating to such payments are set out in the 
Council’s Statement on Early Retirement and Discretionary Payments, and the Redundancy Policy, 
which are approved by Policy and Organisation Board.  Were there to be any severance packages 
beyond the threshold of £95,000, they would be subject to approval by the Council.

The provisions relating to flexible retirement, whereby an officer with sufficient service and of the 
appropriate age can request to take immediate payment of pension but remain in employment on 
less hours or in a lower graded role, are also included in the Statement referred to.  Where any 
additional payments are required in accordance with pension provisions, these applications are 
subject to approval by Policy and Organisation Board.  The provisions are exercised where 
appropriate savings can be made whilst still retaining the necessary knowledge and experience.

Early payments of pension on compassionate grounds are considered by Policy and Organisation 
Board and approved in very exceptional circumstances only.

Early payments of pension on medical grounds are considered in accordance with the 
requirements of the Pension Regulations, with advice from an independent Occupational Health 
Physician.

10. Re-employment of Officers

Where an officer has been made redundant or taken early retirement, staff will not normally be re-
employed after retirement, although in certain circumstance it could be mutually beneficial for 
casual work to be undertaken where it is available.  This involves work of a casual call-in nature, 
with no guarantee of work being offered and no obligation to agree to the request, for example to 
provide cover for an absent employee.  The rate of pay would depend on the work being 
undertaken.

A former employee cannot re-join the organisation following a redundancy, in any capacity 
including as a contractor, consultant, a permanent or temporary member of staff or a casual worker 
within 12 months of their termination date. Before agreeing to any such termination, a full search is 
always made for any possible suitable alternatives to avoid the situation arising, but there are times 
when redundancies/early retirements cannot be avoided.  



The Council will in such cases, as in any recruitment exercise, take the necessary action to ensure 
that the any future appointments are made on merit, selecting the most suitable person for the 
relevant post.  Any necessary adjustments to pension (or payments made) would be made in 
accordance with the relevant Regulations.

11. Publication of Information

The Council publishes information relating to senior employees (those earning £58,200 and above 
as defined by the Government’s transparency agenda), number of staff whose remuneration was 
at least £50,000, the organisation structure and grading structure, vacant posts, the pay multiple, 
and a range of equality data, on its website.
12. Review

This statement is reviewed on an annual basis, as required by legislation, and approved by full 
Council.

Associated Documents

The following documents also relate to pay, grading and retirement provisions:

Grading Structure
Statement on Early Retirement and Discretionary Payments
Redundancy Policy
Guidance on the Award of Merit Increments and Honoraria
People Management Strategy
Hampshire Election Fees 2019/20



 

 

DRAFT BUDGET 2020/21

Printed on 24/01/2020 at 15:09



Printed on 24/01/2020 at 15:09



 

ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET
 2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

£ £ £

 GENERAL FUND BUDGET

COMMUNITY BOARD 5,607,610      5,904,530      5,983,180      
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD 959,210         1,015,120      966,040         

POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD 3,880,290      3,683,470      3,332,890      

TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE 10,447,110    10,603,120    10,282,110    

REVENUE CONTRIBUTION TO CAPITAL -                     74,180           486,540         

TRANSFER TO/(FROM) RESERVES
GENERAL FUND WORKING BALANCE 110,000         110,000         -                     
REVENUE FINANCING RESERVE (159,880)        (357,720)        (196,010)        
STABILITY AND RESILIANCE RESERVE 67,440           -                     -                     

 BUDGET TOTAL 10,464,670    10,429,580    10,572,640    

 FINANCED BY

COUNCIL TAX (6,135,360)     (6,135,360)     (6,216,200)     

GOVERNMENT GRANTS (654,720)        (654,010)        (456,570)        

BUSINESS RATES RETENTION (3,674,590)     (3,640,210)     (3,899,870)     

(10,464,670)   (10,429,580)   (10,572,640)   

GENERAL FUND BUDGET

SUMMARY 2019/2020 REVISED, ESTIMATE 2020/2021

1



ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET

2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021 Page
£ £ £

Leisure & Culture 2,192,950       2,332,200       2,274,190       5 

Waste 1,354,690       1,400,180       1,510,110       5 

Streetscene 359,310          453,410          592,810          7 

Community Safety 369,410          294,120          301,500          9 

Environmental Services 520,160          467,260          446,230          9 

Misc Environmental & Transportation 515,810          623,970          536,760          11 

Cemetery (30,780)          (19,350)          (19,310)          11 

Home Adaptation Grants 7,540              13,070            12,910            13 

Private Sector Housing 71,420            78,150            77,170            13 

Homelessness 341,650          350,570          355,350          13 

Other General Fund Housing (94,550)          (89,050)          (104,540)        13 
Board Total 5,607,610       5,904,530       5,983,180       

Economic Prosperity 215,070          272,020          264,840          19 

Market (17,630)          (11,640)          (8,540)            19 

Town Harbour Foreshore 216,560          217,470          218,970          19 

Events 83,230            56,440            63,250            19 

Properties 179,590          179,450          137,870          21 

Marketing and Tourism 178,390          169,880          196,250          21 

Local Plan 104,000          131,500          93,400            21 
Board Total 959,210          1,015,120       966,040          

Registration of Electors 242,090          244,810          233,310          25 

Local Land Charges 23,730            22,860            26,310            25 

Housing Benefits 754,580          580,300          724,500          25 

Local Taxation 283,010          299,410          332,450          27 

Development Services 870,500          852,190          968,850          27 

Licensing & Registration 42,100            38,580            35,960            29 

Assistance to Voluntary Organisations 218,170          218,170          253,170          29 

Corporate & Civic Expenses 1,087,000       1,155,490       1,112,700       31 

Miscellaneous Services 1,065,070       1,070,640       466,770          33 

Other Corporate Areas (705,960)        (798,980)        (821,130)        33 
Board Total 3,880,290       3,683,470       3,332,890       

GRAND TOTAL OF ALL BOARDS 10,447,110     10,603,120     10,282,110     

POLICY  AND  ORGANISATION BOARD

SUMMARY  OF  REVENUE  ESTIMATES 2020/2021

COMMUNITY BOARD

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD

2



COMMUNITY BOARD

ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET Page
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

£ £ £
SERVICE

Leisure & Culture 2,192,950       2,332,200       2,274,190       5 

Waste 1,354,690       1,400,180       1,510,110       5 

Streetscene 359,310          453,410          592,810          7 

Community Safety 369,410          294,120          301,500          9 

Environmental Services 520,160          467,260          446,230          9 

Misc Environmental & Transportation 515,810          623,970          536,760          11 

Cemetery (30,780)          (19,350)          (19,310)          11

Home Adaptation Grants 7,540              13,070            12,910            13 

Private Sector Housing 71,420            78,150            77,170            13 

Homelessness 341,650          350,570          355,350          13 

Other General Fund Housing (94,550)          (89,050)          (104,540)        13 

Board Total 5,607,610       5,904,530       5,983,180       

SUMMARY  OF  REVENUE  ESTIMATES 2020/2021

3



9                    

LEISURE & CULTURE ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

£ £ £

Open Spaces 1,233,020       1,324,920       1,263,730       
Outdoor Sports 286,360          304,560          311,570          
Leisure Centre (see breakdown below) 311,090          313,780          312,590          
Splash Parks (see breakdown below) 90,390            120,300          110,500          
Countryside Management 139,640          137,450          140,890          
Museum 62,920            69,640            69,940            
Allotments 69,530            61,550            64,970            
Net Expenditure 2,192,950       2,332,200       2,274,190       

Leisure Centre

Running costs 50,000            14,580            14,580            
Administration Recharges 13,700            13,000            13,300            
Capital Finance (Depreciation) 403,690          403,700          403,700          
Income from profit share (70,000)          (30,000)          (30,000)          
Income from management charge (86,300)          (87,500)          (88,990)          

311,090          313,780          312,590          

Splash Parks

Running costs 51,060            69,100            69,600            
Administration Recharges 4,200              16,100            5,800              
Capital Finance (Depreciation) 35,130            35,100            35,100            

90,390            120,300          110,500          

WASTE

Gosport Splash Parks has been designed and provided by Gosport Borough Council as a free outside play facility 
with traditional all year round play equipment and water features which are open in the Summer only.  

A service is also provided for unwanted domestic items (for which a charge is made).  All waste arising in the 
Borough that is not recycled is transported to the Energy Recovery Facility at Portsmouth. 

COMMUNITY BOARD

The Leisure Centre opened in December 2012, facilities include a 25m swimming pool, gym, eight five-a-side and 
one seven-a-side synthetic football pitches, along with a multi-purpose sports hall.  In January 2018, a new gym 
extension opened with the Council receiving, instead of paying, a management fee from this date.

The Council operates recycling collection centres for glass, clothes, shoes and textiles through a number of sites 
across the Borough.  A scheme for the kerbside collection of mixed dry recyclable materials is operated throughout 
the Borough. A new garden waste scheme was introduced in February 2018, allowing Gosport residents can sign 
up and get a 240-litre wheelie bin for their green waste. 

4



4                     6                     7                     
ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

£ £ £
LEISURE & CULTURE

Employees 5,440              5,440              5,530              
Premises 338,790          487,290          358,790          
Transport 7,690              7,760              7,770              
Supplies and Services 186,480          233,900          202,130          
Third Party Payments 1,307,900       1,286,600       1,324,370       
Administration Recharges 474,100          427,700          453,100          
Capital Finance 528,270          567,200          567,200          

2,848,670       3,015,890       2,918,890       

Income
- Fees & Charges (126,410)        (107,120)        (99,970)          
- Rents, Lettings & Wayleaves (338,170)        (363,880)        (356,320)        
- Other (191,140)        (212,690)        (188,410)        

(655,720)        (683,690)        (644,700)        

NET EXPENDITURE 2,192,950       2,332,200       2,274,190       

WASTE

Supplies and Services 30,030            34,570            64,450            
Third Party Payments 1,415,890       1,437,110       1,475,960       
Administration Recharges 227,800          200,400          236,500          
Capital Finance 17,560            17,600            17,600            

1,691,280       1,689,680       1,794,510       

Income (336,590)        (289,500)        (284,400)        

NET EXPENDITURE 1,354,690       1,400,180       1,510,110       
#REF! #REF! #REF!

COMMUNITY BOARD

5



6                    8                    9                    

STREETSCENE

CAR PARKS

OTHER

ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

Expenditure comprises £ £ £

Abandoned/Unwanted Vehicles 58,110            54,910            60,610            
Dog Control 65,880            63,280            62,190            
Public Conveniences 235,790          201,550          195,440          
Street Cleansing 403,300          394,430          421,030          
Flower Bed, Shrubbery & High Street Maintenance 299,730          296,180          350,440          
Enforcement Services 62,630            59,300            64,300            

1,125,440       1,069,650       1,154,010       

Income comprises

Dog Control (2,000)            (1,000)            (1,000)            
Public Conveniences (450)               (360)               (360)               
Flower Bed, Shrubbery & High Street Maintenance (118,930)        (94,760)          (92,630)          
Enforcement of Fixed Penalties (15,400)          (2,590)            (2,500)            

(136,780)        (98,710)          (96,490)          

Net Expenditure 988,660          970,940          1,057,520       

Solent.

The Council has responsibility for enforcing legislation and local byelaws regarding dogs and abandoned vehicles

There are currently 2,239 off-street and foreshore parking spaces provided within Gosport and Lee on the

COMMUNITY BOARD

6



3                     5                     6                     
ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

£ £ £
STREETSCENE

CAR PARKS 
Premises 92,600            92,270            114,450          
Supplies and Services 61,120            63,740            68,910            
Third Party Payments 38,020            38,460            39,530            
Administration Recharges 275,400          265,300          289,300          
Capital Finance 8,120              13,100            13,100            

475,260          472,870          525,290          

Income
- Car Park Fees (920,130)        (826,000)        (826,000)        
- Car Park Permits (113,470)        (104,900)        (104,900)        
- Parking Fines (70,000)          (58,100)          (58,100)          
- Advertising and Other Income (1,010)            (1,400)            (1,000)            

(1,104,610)     (990,400)        (990,000)        

NET INCOME (629,350)        (517,530)        (464,710)        

OTHER

Premises 53,250            56,100            90,450            
Supplies and Services 13,540            15,490            15,530            
Third Party Payments 620,120          627,160          643,730          
Administration Recharges 285,700          260,800          294,200          
Capital Finance 152,830          110,100          110,100          

1,125,440       1,069,650       1,154,010       

Income (136,780)        (98,710)          (96,490)          

NET EXPENDITURE 988,660          970,940          1,057,520       

NET EXPENDITURE 359,310          453,410          592,810          

COMMUNITY BOARD

7



COMMUNITY SAFETY

k j
ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

£ £ £

CCTV 215,870          212,430          210,410          
Community Safety Priorities 4,190              3,420              3,380              
Administration Recharges 229,900          159,500          175,700          
Capital Finance 20,450            16,500            16,500            

470,410          391,850          405,990          

CCTV Partner Contributions (101,000)        (97,730)          (104,490)        

Net Expenditure 369,410          294,120          301,500          

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

Environmental Health Services - Commercial

Food, Safety and Hygiene 127,380          126,860          124,570          
Public Health 23,850            14,550            14,450            
Health & Safety 69,950            69,550            68,280            

Net Expenditure 221,180          210,960          207,300          

Pollution Control 138,630          137,830          135,400          
Rodent and Pest Control 72,550            71,530            70,130            
Gypsy and Traveller Services 16,300            16,100            17,500            
Health Initiatives 71,500            30,840            15,900            

Net Expenditure 298,980          256,300          238,930          

COMMUNITY BOARD

The Community Safety Section works together with the Gosport Community Safety Partnership to co-ordinate the 
development and implementation of a Strategy to reduce crime and disorder across the Borough and develops 
innovative and effective initiatives in support of the strategy objectives.

Environmental Health Services - Pollution & Environment

8



ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

£ £ £
COMMUNITY SAFETY

Premises 9,340              9,870              9,270              
Transport 1,970              1,960              1,950              
Supplies and Services 66,940            68,320            64,220            
Third Party Payments 141,810          135,700          138,350          
Administration Recharges 229,900          159,500          175,700          
Capital Finance 20,450            16,500            16,500            

470,410          391,850          405,990          

Income (101,000)        (97,730)          (104,490)        

NET EXPENDITURE 369,410          294,120          301,500          

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

Supplies and Services 14,200            5,000              5,000              
Third Party Payments 186,880          186,860          182,500          
Administration Recharges 20,100            19,100            19,800            

NET  EXPENDITURE 221,180          210,960          207,300          

Supplies and Services 5,900              9,440              2,800              
Third Party Payments 199,990          199,990          195,360          
Administration Recharges 103,700          58,000            51,900            

309,590          267,430          250,060          

Income (10,610)          (11,130)          (11,130)          

NET  EXPENDITURE 298,980          256,300          238,930          

NET EXPENDITURE 520,160          467,260          446,230          

Environmental Health Services - Pollution & Environment

Environmental Health Services - Commercial

COMMUNITY BOARD

9



ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

£ £ £
MISC ENVIRONMENTAL & TRANSPORTATION

Pontoons (Gosport Ferry & Hardway Walkashore) (48,690)          (52,250)          (52,240)          
Environmental Maintenance & Improvements 32,090            32,650            34,230            
Street Name Plates - Maintenance 17,100            16,220            13,920            
Christmas Entertainment, Decorations & Lighting 20,800            24,100            33,800            
Forton Lake Bridge 22,350            15,220            19,300            
Coastal Services 134,550          252,610          148,390          
Coast Protection 230,980          233,170          234,810          
Tenanted Buildings 55,680            52,640            52,340            
Event road management 50,950            49,610            52,210            

Net Expenditure 515,810          623,970          536,760          

CEMETERY

COMMUNITY BOARD

Burial authorities may provide and maintain cemeteries whether in or outside their area under Section 214(2) of the 
Local Government Act 1972. 

Article 15 (1) of the Local cemeteries Order 1977 empowers a burial Authority to charge fees as they think proper 
for or in connection with burials within their Cemetery and for the grant of a right to place a tombstone or other 
memorial and for additional inscriptions.

10



ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

£ £ £
MISC ENVIRONMENTAL & TRANSPORTATION

Premises 154,870          276,100          166,900          
Supplies and Services 19,810            15,960            19,930            
Third Party Payments 111,130          97,030            98,750            
Administration Recharges 131,700          133,200          149,500          
Capital Finance 187,780          191,000          191,000          

605,290          713,290          626,080          
Income
 - Fees & Charges (27,260)          (27,300)          (27,300)          
 - Rents (60,920)          (60,920)          (60,920)          
 - Other (1,300)            (1,100)            (1,100)            

(89,480)          (89,320)          (89,320)          

NET EXPENDITURE 515,810          623,970          536,760          

CEMETERY

Premises 22,250            23,780            23,090            
Supplies and Services 10,260            9,790              4,780              
Third Party Payments 138,260          145,080          150,020          
Administration Recharges 70,100            61,000            66,800            

240,870          239,650          244,690          
Income
- Fees and Charges (111,650)        (99,000)          (99,000)          
- Portchester Crematorium Joint Board (160,000)        (160,000)        (165,000)        

(271,650)        (259,000)        (264,000)        

NET EXPENDITURE (30,780)          (19,350)          (19,310)          

COMMUNITY BOARD

11



HOME ADAPTATION GRANTS

PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING

HOMELESSNESS

These budgets can be significantly influenced by external factors and will be closely monitored particularly to 
identify any variations arising from the impact of benefit changes to tenants.  The accommodation strategy has been 
reviewed to minimise the impact on Council funding.

The expenditure relates to inspection of premises to assess whether they meet the Decent Homes Standard, 
structural defects, enforcing standards for overcrowding and houses in multiple occupation, and remedying 
conditions which might constitute a nuisance or danger to health. Statutory notices to remedy defects and 
unsatisfactory conditions are served when necessary.

The Council provides a range of home improvement grants, subject to budget availability. Mandatory grants are 
paid towards eligible disabled adaptations. All other grants are dependant upon Council policy which is reviewed 
annually.

The promotion of domestic energy efficiency improvements in order to meet statutory targets. The service includes 
the provision of direct financial assistance but relies primarily upon education and awareness raising to bring about 
changes in public attitude and behaviour.

This category also includes Housing Associations. The Council has also financially assisted a number of local 
Housing Associations in the construction or improvement of houses and has, in return, been allowed to nominate a 
proportion of the tenants.  This assistance is expected to increase significantly through the provision of Local 
Authority Housing Association Grant, although this will have no effect on the revenue budget.

The Council has been successful in targeting resources towards the prevention of homelessness helping to reduce 
the number of homelessness acceptances and the resulting accommodation costs incurred. An example of this is a 
significant reduction in Bed and Breakfast costs which has been achieved partly through investment in both Barclay 
House and Agnew Family Centre as a more cost effective provision of temporary accommodation for most 
households. 

COMMUNITY BOARD

12



4                     6                     7                     
ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

£ £ £
HOME ADAPTATION GRANTS

Supplies and Services -                     5,530              5,530              
Third Party Payments 6,840              6,840              6,680              
Administration Recharges 700                 700                 700                 

NET EXPENDITURE 7,540              13,070            12,910            

PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING

Employees 11,850            11,850            12,150            
Supplies and Services 400                 300                 300                 
Third Party Payments 66,670            66,670            65,120            
Administration Recharges 6,900              6,400              6,600              

85,820            85,220            84,170            

Income (14,400)          (7,070)            (7,000)            

NET EXPENDITURE 71,420            78,150            77,170            

HOMELESSNESS

Supplies and Services 1,279,350       1,285,900       1,295,550       
Transfer Payments 202,000          236,410          236,410          
Administration Recharges 506,100          517,500          521,500          

1,987,450       2,039,810       2,053,460       

Income (1,645,800)     (1,689,240)     (1,698,110)     

NET EXPENDITURE 341,650          350,570          355,350          

STOKES BAY MOBILE HOME PARK

Premises 20,970            19,210            18,640            
Supplies and Services 960                 520                 520                 
Third Party Payments 3,090              4,640              4,780              
Administration Recharges 18,530            11,530            11,940            

43,550            35,900            35,880            

Income (138,100)        (124,950)        (140,420)        

NET INCOME (94,550)          (89,050)          (104,540)        

COMMUNITY BOARD

13



COMMUNITY BOARD

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) records expenditure and income relating to council houses 
and the provision of services to tenants.

Provisions governing the operation of the HRA were contained in the Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989. This defined what transactions should be recorded in the HRA and enabled the 
government to directly influence the finances of local authority housing through the housing subsidy
system.

The 'self financing' system started in April 2012 allowing authorities to retain future rental receipts,
this replaces the old subsidy system. 

Gosport Borough Council paid £57.09m to exit the system and a thirty year business plan has been
produced to show how this will be repaid.

The estimated average number of dwellings  in 2020/21 is 3097.

The HRA has two revenue reserves the 'HRA working balance' and the 'Major Repairs, New Build and
Loan Repayments Reserve' the latter was approved at Community Board on 4th February 2013.
 
The Council has a policy to purchase additional properties for affordable rent.

14



ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

£000 £000 £000
HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

Expenditure

Repairs & Maintenance 4,524              4,715              4,754              
Supervision  & Management 3,926              4,246              4,177              
Rents ,Rates,Taxes and Other Charges 331                 312                 239                 
Depreciation,Impairment and Revaluation 3,992              3,293              3,688              
Debt Management Costs 42                   42                   42                   

Total Expenditure 12,815            12,608            12,900            

Income

Dwelling Rents (14,017)          (14,042)          (14,305)          
Non Dwelling Rents (265)               (295)               (295)               
Charges For Services and Facilities (437)               (376)               (373)               

Total Income (14,719)          (14,713)          (14,973)          

Net Cost Of Services (1,904)            (2,105)            (2,073)            

Interest Payable & Similar Charges 1,900              1,897              1,900              
Interest & Investment Income (50)                 (53)                 (52)                 

NET HRA SURPLUS FOR YEAR (54)                 (261)               (225)               

HRA BALANCE
Balance B/fwd 991                 991                 991                 
Transfer (to) or from HRA
Balance C/Fwd 991                 991                 991                 

NEW BUILD RESERVE
Balance B/Fwd (3,258)            (3,312)            (3,573)            
Transfer (to) or from HRA (54)                 (261)               (225)               
Balance C/Fwd (3,312)            (3,573)            (3,798)            

COMMUNITY BOARD

15



16



ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET Page
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

£ £ £
SERVICE

Economic Prosperity 215,070          272,020          264,840          19 

Market (17,630)          (11,640)          (8,540)            19 

Town Harbour Foreshore 216,560          217,470          218,970          19 

Events 83,230            56,440            63,250            19 

Properties 179,590          179,450          137,870          21 

Marketing and Tourism 178,390          169,880          196,250          21 

Local Plan 104,000          131,500          93,400            21 
 
Board Total 959,210          1,015,120       966,040          

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD

SUMMARY  OF  REVENUE  ESTIMATES 2020/2021

17



ECONOMIC PROSPERITY

ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

£ £ £

Economic Development Initiatives 30,520            24,050            37,550            
Town Centre & Retail Post -                     46,800            8,300              
Regeneration Projects 30,000            91,000            35,000            
Administration Recharges 156,750          135,900          187,200          

217,270          297,750          268,050          

Grants / Donations & Sponsorships (2,200)            (25,730)          (3,210)            
(2,200)            (25,730)          (3,210)            

Net Expenditure 215,070          272,020          264,840          

MARKET

The Council operates a town market on Tuesdays and Saturdays

TOWN HARBOUR FORESHORE

EVENTS

The Economic Prosperity Section has a focus on job creation and retention, including enterprise support, skills
development, business engagement and facilitation of economic investment and development in the Borough. A
number of services are delivered directly by the Section and others through staff leading or contributing to local and
sub-regional partnerships.

The foreshore covers the area from the ramparts (Haslar Bridge) along the front to the Camper & Nicholson 
boundary including the Millennium walkway/the Esplanade, Falkland Garden & the Tidal Clock

Includes Christmas Events, Gosport Employment and Skills Fair and partnership initiatives with arts, museums and 
library services.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD

18



4                     6                     7                     
ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

£ £ £
ECONOMIC PROSPERITY

Supplies and Services 30,520            70,850            45,850            
Regeneration Projects 30,000            91,000            35,000            
Administration Recharges 156,750          135,900          187,200          

217,270          297,750          268,050          

9 Income (2,200)            (25,730)          (3,210)            

NET EXPENDITURE 215,070          272,020          264,840          

MARKET

Premises 1,000              1,190              1,000              
Supplies and Services 10,000            10,460            10,460            
Third Party Payments 15,570            15,710            15,800            
Administration Recharges 800                 700                 700                 

27,370            28,060            27,960            

Income (45,000)          (39,700)          (36,500)          

NET INCOME (17,630)          (11,640)          (8,540)            

TOWN HARBOUR FORESHORE

Premises 3,100              2,500              3,250              
Supplies and Services 3,650              4,400              3,650              
Third Party Payments 42,160            42,870            44,370            
Administration Recharges 700                 700                 700                 
Capital Finance 166,950          167,000          167,000          

NET EXPENDITURE 216,560          217,470          218,970          

EVENTS

Employees -                     500                 600                 
Supplies and Services 26,730            20,140            20,550            
Third Party Payments -                     15,000            15,000            
Administration Recharges 61,500            20,800            27,100            

88,230            56,440            63,250            

Income (5,000)            -                     -                     

NET EXPENDITURE 83,230            56,440            63,250            

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD

19



ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

£ £ £
PROPERTIES

Investment Properties Managed 18,440            12,780            (19,250)          
Wilmott Lane Depot 137,060          142,830          136,480          
Leisure Operational Properties 24,090            23,840            20,640            
Net Expenditure 179,590          179,450          137,870          

MARKETING AND TOURISM

LOCAL PLAN

The Council has adopted a local plan for the Borough, the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 (Oct 2015). The 
Local Plan sets out the Council’s proposals for the development and use of land from 2011 – 2029, and forms the 
basis for dealing with planning applications. The Council has now agreed to proceed with a revised Local Plan 
covering the period to 2036.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD

Marketing and Tourism will retain its primary focus on promotional activity in the areas of economic development 
and tourism.  The budget will fund the marketing of the Borough’s inward investment and development 
opportunities, tourism destination marketing in collaboration with partners, in addition to a variety of other marketing 
initiatives.

20



4                     6                     7                     
ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

£ £ £
PROPERTIES

Premises 170,860          198,690          181,940          
Supplies and Services 52,160            61,350            61,090            
Third Party Payments -                     1,230              1,230              
Administration Recharges 87,600            67,400            66,600            
Capital Finance 47,440            43,300            43,300            

358,060          371,970          354,160          

Income (178,470)        (192,520)        (216,290)        

NET EXPENDITURE 179,590          179,450          137,870          

MARKETING AND TOURISM

Premises 1,920              1,970              2,000              
Transport 700                 700                 700                 
Supplies & Services 80,060            77,650            78,200            
Administration Recharges 105,100          98,600            124,400          

187,780          178,920          205,300          

Income (9,390)            (9,040)            (9,050)            

NET EXPENDITURE 178,390          169,880          196,250          

LOCAL PLAN

Supplies & Services 104,000          131,500          93,400            

NET EXPENDITURE 104,000          131,500          93,400            

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD

21



22



ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET Page
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

£ £ £
SERVICE

Registration of Electors 242,090          244,810          233,310          25 

Local Land Charges 23,730            22,860            26,310            25 

Housing Benefits 754,580          580,300          724,500          25 

Local Taxation 283,010          299,410          332,450          27 

Development Services 870,500          852,190          968,850          27 

Licensing & Registration 42,100            38,580            35,960            29 
 
Assistance to Voluntary Organisations 218,170          218,170          253,170          29 

Corporate & Civic Expenses 1,087,000       1,155,490       1,112,700       31 

Miscellaneous Services 1,065,070       1,070,640       466,770          33 

Other Corporate Areas (705,960)        (798,980)        (821,130)        33 

Board Total 3,880,290 3,683,470 3,332,890 

POLICY  AND  ORGANISATION BOARD

SUMMARY  OF  REVENUE  ESTIMATES 2020/2021

23



REGISTRATION OF ELECTORS

LOCAL LAND CHARGES

HOUSING BENEFITS

ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

£ £ £
Housing Benefits 580,500         450,600         561,600         
Local Council Tax Support 174,080         129,700         162,900         
Net Expenditure 754,580         580,300         724,500         

"To provide an effective, secure and customer focused Benefits Service that supports the Council's vision, helps 
to achieve the strategic priorities and meets the Council's Service values."

The award of Housing and Council Tax Support is a financial lifeline for many people with lower incomes.  The 
Benefits Section provides a service for the calculation of an award of entitlement within a legislative framework 
provided by the Government.  The Benefits are intended to assist people on Income Support or otherwise low 
income, with their housing costs and/or Council Tax bills.  Entitlement is calculated using an applicants income 
and capital using  a complex calculation process.

POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD

This is a statutory service which deals with over 1,000 searches of the Land Charges Register each year and also 
the registration and discharge of local land charges.

One of the Council's statutory functions relates to the annual compilation and publication of the Register of 
Electors. Administration and management is also carried out on all types of elections in accordance with the 
relevant statutory requirements.

24



4 6 7
ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

£ £ £
REGISTRATION OF ELECTORS

Employees 23,400           23,400           23,400           
Supplies and Services 26,770           39,020           39,020           
Administration Recharges 206,000         201,600         190,100         

256,170         264,020         252,520         

9 Income (14,080)          (19,210)          (19,210)          

NET EXPENDITURE 242,090         244,810         233,310         

LOCAL LAND CHARGES

Third Party Payments 30,830           32,460           31,610           
Administration Recharges 69,900           67,400           71,700           

100,730         99,860           103,310         

Income (77,000)          (77,000)          (77,000)          

NET INCOME 23,730           22,860           26,310           

HOUSING BENEFITS

Discretionary Housing Payment 200,400         -                     -                     
Rent Allowances 17,949,880    14,453,700    14,532,800    
Rent Rebates 7,168,600      6,521,300      6,586,500      
Non HRA Rent Rebates 913,200         864,100         864,100         
Administration Recharges 976,900         866,600         931,400         

27,208,980    22,705,700    22,914,800    

Income
- Discretionary Housing Payment (200,400)        (153,000)        (153,000)        
- DWP Grant - Rent Allowances (18,206,400)   (14,616,000)   (14,616,000)   
- DWP Grant - Rent Rebates (7,134,400)     (6,492,300)     (6,557,200)     
- DWP Grant - Non HRA Rent Rebates (913,200)        (864,100)        (864,100)        

(26,454,400)   (22,125,400)   (22,190,300)   

NET EXPENDITURE 754,580         580,300         724,500         

POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD

25



LOCAL TAXATION

ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

£ £ £
Local Tax Collection 231,100         252,350         276,000         
National Non Domestic Rates 51,910           47,060           56,450           
Net Expenditure 283,010         299,410         332,450         

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

£ £ £
Development Control 395,930         369,090         462,150         
Building Control 86,670           86,480           81,320           
Planning Policy 261,300         238,420         278,780         
Conservation & Design 126,600         158,200         146,600         
Net Expenditure 870,500         852,190         968,850         

Conservation and Design has a key role to play in safeguarding the built and natural heritage of the Borough.

Planning Policy section is responsible for the preparation and review of the statutory Development Plan for the 
Borough.

The Local Taxation section is responsible for the collection of local taxes, from residents and businesses, to help 
finance services provided by Gosport Borough Council, Hampshire County Council, the Hampshire Police and 
Crime Commissioner and Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority.

Development Control is a process that regulates the development and use of land.  It is a statutory service that 
is governed by law and operates within a complex framework of government guidance, policies and advice set out 
in the County Council's Structure Plan and the Gosport Borough Local Plan.  The service also involves 
consideration by the Council of planning applications and applications for advertisement consent.  Fees are 
charged for processing planning applications.

Building Control is a partnership with Fareham Borough Council and Portsmouth City Council to provide 
independent specialist surveying service, examining drawings and calculations and supervising building works 
during construction.  Fees are charged for this service that is provided to the public, designers, architects, other 
development professionals and to the building industry.

POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD

26



ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

£ £ £
LOCAL TAXATION

Supplies & Services 15,750           8,910             12,350           
Administration Recharges 694,300         684,800         712,200         

710,050         693,710         724,550         

Income
- Court Costs (347,000)        (317,000)        (317,000)        
- Administration Grant (80,040)          (77,300)          (75,100)          

(427,040)        (394,300)        (392,100)        

NET EXPENDITURE 283,010         299,410         332,450         

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

Supplies & Services 33,000           131,320         31,380           
Third Party Payments 98,550           99,870           91,770           
Administration Recharges 982,550         960,000         1,084,500      

1,114,100      1,191,190      1,207,650      

Income (243,600)        (339,000)        (238,800)        

NET EXPENDITURE 870,500         852,190         968,850         

POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD

27



LICENSING & REGISTRATION

ASSISTANCE TO VOLUNTARY ORGANISATIONS

ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

£ £ £
Grants:
- Citizens Advice Gosport 103,890         103,890         108,670         
- Gosport Victim Support 3,760             3,760             3,930             
- Gosport Voluntary Action 71,370           71,370           99,650           
- Dial-a-ride 27,370           27,370           28,630           
- Age Concern 1,400             1,400             1,470             
- Solent Sea Rescue 2,330             2,330             2,440             
- Gosporteers 930                930                980                
- Relate 5,920             5,920             6,200             
Administration Recharges 1,200             1,200             1,200             
Net Expenditure 218,170         218,170         253,170         

This heading includes grants to a number of local voluntary organisations detailed below.

This heading includes the licensing of hackney carriages, private hire vehicles, alcohol licenses for individuals and 
premises, pet shops, street trading, and various other licences including the issue of permits for machines for 
amusement with prizes and the registration of food premises, late night food premises, acupuncturists, ear-
piercers, hairdressers etc.

POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD

28



ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

£ £ £

LICENSING & REGISTRATION

Third Party Payments 160,680         160,680         156,960         
Administration Recharges 26,300           25,200           26,300           

186,980         185,880         183,260         

Income (144,880)        (147,300)        (147,300)        

NET EXPENDITURE 42,100           38,580           35,960           

ASSISTANCE TO VOLUNTARY ORGANISATIONS

4 Supplies & Services 216,970         216,970         251,970         
7 Admin Recharges 1,200             1,200             1,200             

NET EXPENDITURE 218,170         218,170         253,170         

POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD

29



CORPORATE AND CIVIC EXPENSES

ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

Mayoral Expenses £ £ £

Mayor's Allowance 10,220           10,220           7,330             
Deputy Mayor's Allowance 2,280             2,280             2,340             
National Insurance ERS payments 290                250                210                
Premises 350                350                350                
Transport 5,540             5,780             5,490             
Supplies and Services 1,260             930                4,000             
Mayor Making 5,250             5,250             5,250             
Administration Recharges 63,000           56,300           58,000           
Income -                     -                     -                     

88,190           81,360           82,970           

Civic Events

Royan Twinning 100                140                140                
Civic Events including the D-Day 75th anniversary 31,670           33,420           7,180             
Administration Recharges 63,200           58,100           58,800           

94,970           91,660           66,120           

Members and Election Expenses

Members Allowances 255,770         256,870         262,000         
Members Travelling Expenses 100                700                600                
Other Expenses 8,110             7,610             12,500           
Administration Recharges 92,400           91,200           94,700           
Election Expenses # 500                118,090         106,750         
Election Income -                     (100,030)        (50,100)          

356,880         374,440         426,450         

# The costs and income for County, Parliamentary and Police elections and the referendum are fully
   reimbursed with the remaining net cost being the cost to the Council of it's local elections.

POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD

The 'costs of democracy' plus expenses associated with the Mayoralty and formal Civic Events Corporate and 
Civic Expenses include certain central costs which comprise the 'Corporate and Democratic Core' - these are not 
support costs and are not charged to direct services. They are the cost of activities which local authorities engage 
in because they are elected multi-purpose authorities, including the provision of an infrastructure for service 
provision, information for public accountability and all aspects of members' activities. In line with professional 
guidance they are identified as a separate budget heading.

30



ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

£ £ £
CORPORATE AND CIVIC EXPENSES

Third Party Payments 6,840             6,840             6,680             
Administration Recharges
- Financial Services 242,610         261,540         257,800         
- Legal Services 184,640         167,440         163,350         
- Chief Executives Unit 11,060           10,900           11,200           
- Housing Services (130)               41,800           42,090           
- HRA Attributable Element (85,000)          (86,190)          (167,160)        

360,020         402,330         313,960         

Mayoral Expenses
Employees 290                250                210                
Premises 350                350                350                
Transport 5,540             5,780             5,490             
Supplies & Services 19,010           18,680           18,920           
Admin Recharges 63,000           56,300           58,000           
Income -                     -                     -                     

88,190           81,360           82,970           

Civic Events
Employees 3,300             9,140             3,960             
Premises 600                1,120             600                
Supplies and Services 52,990           64,240           2,840             
Administration Recharges 63,200           58,100           58,800           
Income (25,120)          (40,940)          (80)                 

94,970           91,660           66,120           

Members and Election Expenses
Employees 3,380             65,330           69,900           
Premises -                     7,610             8,200             
Transport 100                1,120             1,350             
Supplies & Services 260,500         301,410         294,600         
Admin Recharges 92,900           99,000           102,500         
Income -                     (100,030)        (50,100)          

356,880         374,440         426,450         

Council and Board Meetings
Transport
Supplies and Services 400                400                400                
Administration Recharges 186,540         205,300         222,800         

186,940         205,700         223,200         

NET EXPENDITURE 1,087,000      1,155,490      1,112,700      

POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD

31



MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES 2                    4                    5                    
ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

Other Expenses comprises £ £ £

Dangerous Structures 9,930             8,340             6,880             
Union Duties 280                130                80                  
General Insurances & Building Condition Consultants 8,660             6,390             6,360             
Employee costs, savings, efficiencies and vacancies (15,000)          -                     -                     
Salary sacrifice NI savings (11,200)          (15,000)          (12,000)          
Pension Costs for Discontinued Services 165,200         149,400         160,800         
Pension Costs - Fixed Element payable to administering authority 624,480         624,480         -                     
Firewardens & First Aid Allowances etc 5,000             5,500             5,600             
Corporate Training -                     -                     -                     
Compact Events 1,200             1,200             1,200             
Coastline Expenditure (excluding Admin) 25,240           22,210           22,700           
Other Corporate Expenses 21,160           14,490           (4,450)            

834,950         817,140         187,170         

OTHER CORPORATE AREAS

Other Corporate Areas includes the following Non-Financing items:

Audit Fees 23,280           22,700           24,500           
Capital Administration 128,900         140,100         118,800         
Subscriptions 8,710             8,710             8,710             
Safety Committee 9,210             9,010             8,890             

170,100         180,520         160,900         

Other Corporate Areas includes the following Financing items:
Capital Finance - Depreciation Reversal (1,368,660)     (1,402,300)     (1,402,300)     
External Interest Payable 2,085,300      2,007,300      2,063,000      
External Interest Receivable (173,500)        (101,850)        (187,250)        
Capital Finance - Minimum  Revenue Provision / Appropriations 611,000         538,000         573,000         
Treasury Management 86,700           89,200           83,800           
Hra Item 8 Transfer (1,892,930)     (1,886,250)     (1,890,480)     
Interest Receivable Under Finance Leases (223,970)        (223,600)        (221,800)        
Interest Paid Under Finance Leases -                     -                     -                     

(876,060)        (979,500)        (982,030)        

(705,960)        (798,980)        (821,130)        

POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD

32



ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

£ £ £

MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES

Other Expenses (breakdown opposite) 834,950         817,140         187,170         
Administration Recharges 245,700         266,800         292,900         

1,080,650      1,083,940      480,070         

Income (15,580)          (13,300)          (13,300)          

NET EXPENDITURE 1,065,070      1,070,640      466,770         

OTHER CORPORATE AREAS

Employees 50,700           50,300           25,300           
Supplies and Services 82,000           82,920           77,600           
Administration Recharges 124,100         136,500         141,800         
Capital Finance (757,660)        (864,300)        (829,300)        
Financing Income and Expenditure (205,100)        (204,400)        (236,530)        

NET  INCOME (705,960)        (798,980)        (821,130)        

POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD

33



34



ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET Page
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

£ £ £
TOTAL EXPENSES BY SERVICE UNIT

Chief Executive's Unit 180,260 187,110 192,800 37
Legal, Democratic & Planning Service 5,609,770 5,181,950 5,545,690 37
Financial Services 3,074,200 2,946,150 3,005,010 39
Housing Services 3,915,390 4,117,160 4,112,590 39

12,779,620 12,432,370 12,856,090 

TOTAL EXPENSES BY TYPE

Employees 9,066,130       8,789,220       9,220,050       
Premises 230,640          228,160          226,030          
Transport 122,230          108,070          105,720          
Supplies & Services 1,025,500       1,026,660       1,003,410       
Third Party Payments 52,510            51,560            50,000            
Administration Recharges 2,043,350       2,000,100       2,022,280       
Capital Finance 239,260          228,600          228,600          

12,779,620 12,432,370 12,856,090 

ANAYSIS OF INCOME AND RECHARGES 

Income
- Fees and Charges and External Funding (505,210)        (322,490)        (186,670)        

Recharges
General Fund - Community (2,342,500)     (2,112,900)     (2,269,100)     
                       - Economic Development (412,450)        (324,100)        (406,700)        
                       - Policy and Organisation (4,170,770)     (4,110,480)     (4,368,640)     
Housing Revenue Account (3,305,340)     (3,562,300)     (3,602,700)     
Recharges between Business Units (1,290,380)     (1,220,030)     (1,225,680)     
Recharges within Business Unit (752,970)        (780,070)        (796,600)        

Total Recharges from Service Units (12,779,620)   (12,432,370)   (12,856,090)   

SUMMARY  OF  REVENUE  ESTIMATES 2020/2021

SERVICE UNIT ACCOUNTS

35



ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

£ £ £
CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S UNIT

Chief Executive Section 111,920        112,220         114,760         
Emergency Planning 68,340          74,890           78,040           
Total Gross Expenditure 180,260        187,110         192,800         

Less recharges within the business unit -                    -                     -                     

Total Expenditure 180,260        187,110         192,800         

LEGAL, DEMOCRATIC AND PLANNING SERVICE

Development Services Administration 147,800        139,800         185,720         
Conservation & Design 81,000          129,920         135,460         
Development Control 468,120        435,600         496,640         
Planning Policy 281,110        274,880         318,720         
Transport & Traffic Section 57,360          58,160           58,940           
Economic Prosperity 311,910        251,170         351,960         
Corporate Policy Section 212,940        178,340         200,550         
Community Safety 170,770        111,830         108,140         
Personnel 145,930        141,580         142,100         
Personnel Corporate Budget 12,840          47,940           5,500             
Building Control Partnership Account 313,400        91,790           24,810           
Environmental Health 70,400          65,600           68,000           
Civic Support 188,310        183,640         191,890         
I T Services 932,800        945,060         998,990         
Cashiers and Reception 308,360        309,890         295,970         
Telephones 20,070          14,180           8,710             
I T Services Co-location 44,500          41,000           41,500           
Borough Solicitor & Deputy Chief Executive Section 55,550          55,750           16,400           
Democratic Services 111,770        100,600         117,910         
Electoral Registration 211,270        211,260         200,290         
Customer Services & Administration 187,140        159,930         185,630         
Duty Client Contact Officer 10,810          13,810           13,350           
Waste Management 199,640        160,140         216,090         
Landscape Management 466,510        441,930         467,430         
Enforcement 403,930        394,900         428,580         
Land Charges Team 45,110          39,620           41,000           
Legal Services 150,420        183,630         225,410         
Total Gross Expenditure 5,609,770     5,181,950      5,545,690      

Less recharges within the business unit (428,220)       (449,870)        (478,800)        

Total Expenditure 5,181,550     4,732,080      5,066,890      

SERVICE UNIT ACCOUNTS

36



4                    6                   7                   
ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

£ £ £
CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S UNIT

Employees 109,890         109,850        112,650        
Transport 300                100               300               
Supplies and Services 31,170           37,060          36,150          
Administration Recharges 38,900           40,100          43,700          

180,260         187,110        192,800        

Income
- Fees and Charges and External Funding (6,000)            (8,010)           (6,000)           

Recharges 174,260         179,100        186,800        
General Fund - Community -                     -                    -                    
                       - Economic Development -                     -                    -                    
                       - Policy and Organisation (115,660)        (120,200)       (126,500)       
Housing Revenue Account (38,600)          (38,700)         (39,600)         
Recharges between Business Units (20,000)          (20,200)         (20,700)         
Recharges within Business Unit -                     -                    -                    

(180,260)        (187,110)       (192,800)       

NET EXPENDITURE -                     -                    -                    

LEGAL, DEMOCRATIC AND PLANNING SERVICE

Employees 4,006,520      3,577,480     3,954,120     
Premises 6,700             8,090            5,090            
Transport 54,440           47,820          45,440          
Supplies and Services 516,030         546,890        512,940        
Third Party Payments 45,000           44,400          42,000          
Administration Recharges 800,720         787,570        816,400        
Capital Finance 180,360         169,700        169,700        

5,609,770      5,181,950     5,545,690     

Income
- Fees and Charges and External Funding (337,530)        (160,210)       (91,660)         

Recharges 5,272,240      5,021,740     5,454,030     
General Fund - Community (1,662,600)     (1,459,300)    (1,608,800)    
                       - Economic Development (279,150)        (219,200)       (300,600)       
                       - Policy and Organisation (2,005,590)     (1,987,240)    (2,153,250)    
Housing Revenue Account (223,400)        (222,800)       (222,000)       
Recharges between Business Units (673,280)        (683,330)       (690,580)       
Recharges within Business Unit (428,220)        (449,870)       (478,800)       

(5,609,770)     (5,181,950)    (5,545,690)    

NET EXPENDITURE -                     -                    -                    

SERVICE UNIT ACCOUNTS

37



ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

£ £ £
FINANCIAL SERVICES

Internal Audit 176,260        197,950         137,770         
Reprographics 258,450        242,500         235,580         
Central Purchasing 116,820        118,300         106,990         
Town Hall 144,610        92,440           92,750           
Financial Services Management 50,600          50,600           51,860           
Accountancy 689,420        694,540         733,080         
Payroll & Admin 109,940        112,080         115,160         
Housing Benefit 976,080        900,270         968,600         
Council Tax 552,020        537,470         563,220         
Total Gross Expenditure 3,074,200     2,946,150      3,005,010      

Less recharges within the business unit (173,550)       (201,500)        (188,100)        

Total Expenditure 2,900,650     2,744,650      2,816,910      

HOUSING SERVICES

Housing Management 264,420        264,280         267,210         
Estate Management 1,439,650     1,554,790      1,606,640      
Allocations & Advice 1,137,360     1,231,990      1,174,740      
At Your Service 7,500            20,910           20,400           
Tlc Development 7,600            7,920             7,920             
Housing Strategic Services 45,430          45,430           46,070           
Choice Based Lettings 710               8,240             8,240             
Technical Services 625,870        617,030         613,410         
Property Services -                    -                     -                     
Corporate Cleaning 54,520          41,810           42,200           
Town Hall Landlord 332,330        324,760         325,760         
Total Gross Expenditure 3,915,390     4,117,160      4,112,590      

Less recharges within the business unit (151,200)       (128,700)        (129,700)        

Total Expenditure 3,764,190     3,988,460      3,982,890      

SERVICE UNIT ACCOUNTS

38



ORIGINAL REVISED BUDGET
2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021

£ £ £
FINANCIAL SERVICES

Employees 2,052,440      1,961,750     2,018,420     
Premises 1,710             1,710            1,550            
Transport 17,270           13,000          9,630            
Supplies and Services 282,940         272,550        289,040        
Third Party Payments 6,950             6,590            7,470            
Administration Recharges 707,150         684,850        673,200        
Capital Finance 5,740             5,700            5,700            

3,074,200      2,946,150     3,005,010     

Income
- Fees and Charges and External Funding (72,540)          (30,910)         (21,910)         

Recharges 3,001,660      2,915,240     2,983,100     
General Fund - Community (160,300)        (154,800)       (154,700)       
                       - Economic Development (67,100)          (60,700)         (61,300)         
                       - Policy and Organisation (1,996,310)     (1,890,840)    (1,976,000)    
Housing Revenue Account (249,900)        (265,200)       (263,500)       
Recharges between Business Units (354,500)        (342,200)       (339,500)       
Recharges within Business Unit (173,550)        (201,500)       (188,100)       

(3,074,200)     (2,946,150)    (3,005,010)    

NET EXPENDITURE -                     -                    -                    

HOUSING SERVICES

Employees 2,897,280      3,140,140     3,134,860     
Premises 222,230         218,360        219,390        
Transport 50,220           47,150          50,350          
Supplies and Services 195,360         170,160        165,280        
Third Party Payments 560                570               530               
Administration Recharges 496,580         487,580        488,980        
Capital Finance 53,160           53,200          53,200          

3,915,390      4,117,160     4,112,590     

Income
- Fees and Charges and External Funding (89,140)          (123,360)       (67,100)         

Recharges 3,826,250      3,993,800     4,045,490     
General Fund - Community (519,600)        (498,800)       (505,600)       
                       - Economic Development (66,200)          (44,200)         (44,800)         
                       - Policy and Organisation (53,210)          (112,200)       (112,890)       
Housing Revenue Account (2,793,440)     (3,035,600)    (3,077,600)    
Recharges between Business Units (242,600)        (174,300)       (174,900)       
Recharges within Business Unit (151,200)        (128,700)       (129,700)       

(3,915,390)     (4,117,160)    (4,112,590)    

NET EXPENDITURE -                     -                    -                    

SERVICE UNIT ACCOUNTS

39



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This document was created with the Win2PDF “print to PDF” printer available at 
http://www.win2pdf.com 

This version of Win2PDF 10 is for evaluation and non-commercial use only. 

This page will not be added after purchasing Win2PDF. 

http://www.win2pdf.com/purchase/ 

 

 



Board/Committee: FULL COUNCIL
Date of Meeting: 05 February 2020
Title: Public Space Protection Order (Control of Dogs)
Author: Borough Solicitor & Monitoring Officer
Status: FOR DECISION

Purpose

To extend the Borough of Gosport Public Spaces Protection Dog Control Order 
2017 (“PSPDCO”) which will be automatically revoked with effect from 23:59 
hours on 31 April 2020.

Recommendation

That:
 Full Council approve the draft amended PSPDCO attached at Appendix 

A (“Draft PSPDCO”);

 The Borough Solicitor be given delegated authority to carry out a 
consultation exercise as referred to in this report; and 

 The Community Board shall at its next programmed meeting on 04 March 
2020 have regard to any representations made in response to the 
consultation and decide whether to approve the draft PSPDCO with or 
without modification.

1 Background

1.1 On 08 March 2017 following a statutory consultation exercise, the 
Council made the existing PSPDCO.  

1.2 The PSPDCO applies to any land within the Borough of Gosport, 
which is open to the air on at least one side and to which the public 
have access with or without payment (the “Land”) as defined in the 
Schedules attached to the PSPDCO.

1.3 The PSPDCO having been in force for almost three years has had a 
positive impact on the locality.

1.4 The PSPDCO is due to expire at 23:59 hours on 31 April 2020 unless 
extended and the power to extend the order is as defined in s60 of 
the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014.

1.5 The Council may extend the PSPDCO if satisfied on reasonable 
grounds that doing so is necessary to prevent the occurrence or 
recurrence after that time of the activities identified in the order, or, 

Agenda Item 10



an increase in the frequency or seriousness of those activities after 
that time.

1.6 Before extending the PSPDCO the Council is required to consult with 
stakeholders as per section 72(3) of the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime 
and Policing Act 2014 – this includes publishing the text of a 
proposed variation and publishing the proposal for an extension and 
variation. The council must also publish information about the order 
in accordance with regulations made by the Secretary of State - this 
includes publishing the order as extended and varied on its website. 

1.7 After the consultation period has expired, the Community Board 
would then have regard to any representations received and decide 
whether to extend the draft PSPDCO with or without modification.

1.8 Once made, the PSPDCO must be publicised in accordance with the 
relevant regulations.  The PSPDCO will then be in force for a further 
three years.

2 Report

2.1 It is proposed, that the Council extend the current PSPDCO with the 
same requirements and prohibitions as the existing PSPDCO.

3 Risk Assessment

3.1 Failure of the Council to extend the PSPDCO may result in a 
resumption in the activities that had a detrimental effect on the quality of 
life of those in the locality such as inconvenience to the public and a 
risk to the health of children by contact with dog faeces or injury through 
a dog attack.  

3.2 Extending the PSPDCO, including the provision whereby a direction 
may be given to keep dogs on leads, is important in enabling the 
Council to manage ground nesting bird populations (for example 
skylarks)  in the Alver Valley and accords with funding received from 
Natural England for this purpose.

3.3 After 23:00hrs on 31st April 2020 the current PSPDCO will no longer 
exist and there will therefore be nothing to address and manage the 
identified risks to the public.  The PSPDCO as amended shall be 
extended so as to come into effect at 12:00hrs on 01st May 2020 and 
shall continue until 23:59hrs on 31st April 2023 unless further varied, 
extended or discharged.

4 Conclusion

4.1Before the PSPDCO can be extended the Council is require to 
undertake a consultation exercise.   



4.2The Full Council is being asked to approve the draft PSPDCO at 
Appendix A for the purposes of the consultation and the carrying out 
of a consultation exercise. 

4.3 If approved Full Council is being asked to transfer the matter back to 
the Community Board.

4.4The Community Board will then at its next programmed meeting have 
regard to any representations received in response to the 
consultation when deciding whether the PSPDCO should be 
extended as drafted. 

Financial Services 
comments:

None

Legal Services comments: Contained in the report
Crime and Disorder: Contravention of a requirement or a prohibition 

of a PSPO without reasonable excuse a criminal 
offence; unless an exemption applies. The 
Council will have regard to its Generic 
Enforcement Polity in deciding whether to 
prosecute for the offence.

Equality and Diversity: An Equality Impact Assessment Screening 
Form has been completed and is enclosed as 
Appendix B

Service Improvement Plan 
implications:

The Council is required to have a Licensing 
Policy.

Corporate Plan: Extending the PSPDCO for the control of dogs 
is fully consistent with and will continue to make 
a significant contribution to the corporate plan 
for the promotion of health and wellbeing and 
community safety.

Risk Assessment: Contained in the report
Background papers:
Appendices/Enclosures:

Appendix ‘A’ Draft PSPDCO
Appendix ‘B’ Equality Impact Assessment 

Report author/ Lead 
Officer:

Azmi Quraishe, Senior Solicitor and Deputy 
Monitoring Officer 



APPENDIX A

“DRAFT PSPDCO”

The Borough of Gosport Public Spaces Protection Dog Control Order 2017 (“PSPDCO”)

Gosport Borough Council (the “Authority”) hereby makes the following order for the Control 
of Dogs in its area pursuant to Section 59 Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014.

This Public Spaces Protection Dog Control Order 2017(the “PSPDCO”) is extended and 
varied as below so that the varied terms of the PSPDCO come into force on 01st May 2020 
and shall be in force for a period of 3 years.

1. General provisions

1.1 “Authorised Officer” means any officer of the Authority authorised by the Chief Executive 
for the purposes of this PSPDCO.

1.2 “Public Place” means any place in the administrative area of the Authority to which the 
public or a section of the public has access, on payment or otherwise, as of right by virtue of 
express or implied permission.

1.3 A person who habitually has a dog in his possession shall be taken to be in   charge 
of the dog at any time unless at that time some other person is in charge of the dog.

2. Penalty

2.1 A person who fails to comply with any obligation or prohibition  imposed by this order 
is guilty of a criminal offence by virtue of section 67(1) of the Anti-social Behaviour Crime and 
Policing Act 2014 and liable on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding level 3 
(£1,000.00) on the standard scale.

3. Fouling

3.1 If a dog defecates at any time in any Public Place a person who is in charge of the dog 
at the time must remove the faeces forthwith unless

(a)    he has a reasonable excuse for failing to do so; or

(b)    the owner, occupier or other person or authority having control of the Public 
Place has consented (generally or specifically) to his failing to do so.

3.2 Placing the faeces in a receptacle which is provided for purpose, or for the disposal 
of waste, shall be sufficient removal from the Public Place 

3.3 Being aware of the defecation or not having a device for or suitable means to 
removing the faeces shall not be a reasonable excuse for failing to remove it.



4.  Means to pick up 

4.1 A person in charge of a dog on any Public Place must have with him an appropriate 
means to pick up dog faeces deposited by that dog unless 

(a) he has reasonable excuse for failing to do so; or 

(b) the owner, occupier or other person or authority having control of the land has 
consented (generally or specifically) to his failing to do so. 

4.2 The obligation is complied with if, after a request from an Authorised Officer, the 
person in charge of the dog produces an appropriate means to pick up dog faeces.

5 Dogs on Lead by Direction

5.1 An Authorised Officer may in any Public Place other than those specified in 
Schedules 1 and 2 of this Order (which dogs are excluded from or must be kept on a lead 
in any event) direct a person in charge of a dog to keep the dog on a lead if such restraint 
is in the opinion of the Officer necessary to prevent nuisance to other persons or worry to 
animals.   

5.2 A person issued with a direction under 5.1 must comply unless

 (a) he has a reasonable excuse for doing so; or

 (b)  the owner, occupier or other person or authority having control of the Public 
Place has consented (generally or specifically) to his doing so.

6.       Maximum of Four Dogs

6.1 A person shall not at any time take more than four dogs onto any Public Place (other 
than those specified in Schedule 2 of this Order from which dogs are excluded in any 
event)

6.2 A person must comply with the requirements in 6.1 unless

(a)    he has a reasonable excuse for doing so; or

(b)    the owner, occupier or other person or authority having control of the public 
place has consented (generally or specifically) to his doing so.

7. Dogs on Leads

7.1 A person in charge of a dog in any Public Place specified in Schedule 1 to this 
Order must keep the dog on a lead unless

(a)    he has a reasonable excuse for failing to do so; or



(b)    the owner, occupier or other person or authority having control of the place 
has consented (generally or specifically) to his failing to do so

8. Exclusion of Dogs 

8.1 A person in charge of a dog must not take it into or keep it in any Public Place 
specified in Schedule 2 to this Order unless

(a)    he has a reasonable excuse for failing to do so; or

(b)    the owner, occupier or other person or authority having control of the Public Place 
has consented (generally or specifically) to his failing to do so.

9.  Exemptions

9.1    The requirements or prohibitions of this order shall not apply to any person who is 
registered as a blind person in a register compiled under section 29 of the National 
Assistance Act 1948 or has a disability affecting their mobility, manual dexterity or ability 
to lift, carry or move everyday objects and who relies upon a dog trained by a prescribed 
charity for assistances.

EXECUTED AS A DEED BY AFFIXING THE COMMON SEAL OF GOSPORT BOROUGH 
COUNCIL IN THE PRESENCE OF:



SCHEDULE ONE

PARAGRAPH 7 DOGS ON LEADS

This Order applies to the following Public Places in the Borough of Gosport

1. Any cemetery or churchyard 

2. Any allotment 

3. Along the perimeter of any sports pitch whilst an organised event is taking 
place.

4. Car Parks



SCHEDULE TWO

Paragraph 8 EXCLUSION OF DOGS

This Order applies to the following Public Places in the Borough of Gosport

1. Between 1 May and 30 September inclusive in any year the following beach areas:

i). Any area of beach between the promenade and Low Water Mark of Medium Tides 
and contained between the points enclosed with notional lines extending from the 
easternmost part of the Swimming Baths to the easternmost end of that part of the 
promenade known as “The Esplanade” at Lee-on-the Solent which is shown hatched 
in black on the accompanying map marked “Map Number 1”.

ii). Any area of beach between the promenade and Low Water Mark of Medium Tides 
and contained between the points enclosed with notional lines extending from the 
westernmost part of the Sailing Club slipway to the easternmost point of the GAFIRS 
slipway at Stokes Bay in Hampshire which said area is hatched in black on the 
accompanying map marked  “Map Number 2”.

2. Any Bowling Green

3. Any enclosed area designated solely for the purpose of children’s play on which 
there is fixed play equipment or apparatus installed. 

4. Any Sports pitch whilst in use for an organised event.
   

5. Any area within ‘The Wild Grounds’ of the Alver Valley that is:

 i). designated as a Site for Special Scientific Interest (“SSSI”)
or;
 ii). where Gosport Borough Council keep animals.







EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT
Screening Assessment Form 

Name of policy___/strategy___/function__ being assessed. Please  what it is. 
Public Space Protection Order (Control of Dogs)

1. Is this policy, strategy or function new ___ or an existing___ one? Please  what it is.

1a.  Briefly describe the reasons for developing or reviewing this?
Eg: change in legislation or requirements, results of consultation, part of a regular review cycle, etc.

The Council introduced in 2017 Public Spaces Protection Dog Control Order 2017 applicable to any land open to the public in the 
Borough Dog PSPO.  The Dog PSPO relates to the following: 

 the prohibition of dog fouling (applies Borough wide)
 the exclusion of dogs from specified land open to the public,
 the requirement for dogs to be on a lead on specified land open to the public and
 the maximum  number of  dogs a person can bring onto any land at any one time is set at four. (applies Borough wide)

It is criminal offence to contravene a requirement or prohibition of the Dog PSPO, without reasonable excuse or the consent of the 
landowner.   A person who is registered blind or has a mobility disability requiring an assistance dog is exempt from the prohibitions in 
relation to dog fouling and the exclusion of dogs.

The Dog PSPO will expire on 31st April 2020 unless extended. 

The Council is proposing (subject to consultation) to extend the current PSPO with the same requirements as the whilst amending the 
formatting. 



2a. Describe the main aim or purpose of this item? Who will it benefit? Why is it needed?

The aim is to address the harm and nuisance that can be caused by dogs in public places by enforcing the prohibitions and 
requirements of the PSPO in order that:  

 owners will clean up after their dogs in public places,

 children can play safely in play areas and beach areas without fear of being bitten by a dog or coming into contact with dog 
faeces.

 dogs do not cause a nuisance to persons participating in organised events on sport pitches and 

 dogs do not harm flora and fauna in land designated SSSI or where the Council keeps animals.

3a. The Public Sector Equality Duty is part of the Equality Act 2010. The Duty requires the Council to have due regard to the 
following three aims:  

 eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation;
 advance equal opportunities between people from different groups
 foster good relations between people from different groups.  

Having due regard means considering how this policy, strategy or function has or will advance equal opportunities for each of 
the protected groups below.   

Persons who are registered blind or have a disability affecting their mobility and rely on a dog trained for such purposes are exempt from 
the PSPO prohibitions in relation to dog fouling and dogs to be on leads.



It does not always follow that where there is sufficient evidence that a PSPO has been contravened, the Council will prosecute. The 
Council must have regard to its enforcement policy in deciding whether it is in the public interest to do so, which involves taking into 
account the personal circumstances of the offender.

It is considered that the requirements and prohibitions of the PSPO are proportionate to the potential harm and nuisance they seek to 
address but there are still considerable public places for dog exercise on and off lead.

The Council will take into account the views of the public and stakeholders when deciding whether to extend the draft PSPO.

3b  Identify how this item demonstrates due regard to the three aims above  for each of the protected groups below. 
 (For marriage and civil partnership, legislation requires  you only need to demonstrate how you would eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment 
and victimisation)
Protected 
characteristic

This item demonstrates due regard 
by:
Describe how it furthers equal 
opportunities. You can cite examples 
of  any disadvantage this item 
removes or minimises,  how it meets 
the specific needs of any groups, how 
it encourages participation, promotes 
understanding or integration between 
groups    

Describe any negative 
impact or potentially 
negative impact of this 
item for any group.  For 
any negative impact 
identified, describe actions 
already taken to address it. 
Any planned actions must 
be identified in section 4. 

List data sources/ evidence used to 
assess impact and whether this item 
furthers the aims of the Equality 
Duty. Insert links to data used where 
possible

Age None
Disability Persons who are registered blind or 

have a mobility disability requiring a 
trained dog are exempt from certain 
requirements or prohibitions of a 
PSPO.

None has been identified for 
any protected characteristic 
since implementation. 

Consultation feedback will 
be reviewed for any 

The PSPDCO having been in force for 
almost three years has had a positive 
impact on the locality.



Gender reassignment
None

Marriage and Civil 
Partnership

None

Pregnancy 
and Maternity

None

Race (ethnic or  
national origin, 
colour, nationality)

None

Religion or Belief 
(and lack of belief)

None

Sex None
Sexual Orientation None

potential adverse impact on 
any of these.

3c. Are there any other groups in addition to those above which could be impacted (e.g. socially or financially excluded) by 
this item?
P  ___yes   ___ no



5. Do you have any additional comments? If so, please add.
NONE
6. Date of screening 27.01.2020 Officer(s) completing assessment Azmi 

Quraishe
Section Date Approved 

7. Name of Section Head: Paul Grant Date review completed.
8. Date submitted to Board/Full Council Date review completed 
EDSG Recommendation:

 This assessment form is incomplete and requires additional information for its review by EDSG.
_________________________________________________________________________________

4. Please Identify any further actions you will take resulting from this assessment. 

Action Officer Responsible Completion date
Public Consultation process and Timeline
Full Council 05.02.2020 -  For approval to consult on 
draft PSPOs and extention.

4 week consultation period  - inviting any comments 
on the proposed prohibitions / requirements.    
Means of consultation -Newspaper advert, website 
publication, social media posts- notices sent to Police and 
other stakeholders, notice deposited at reception.
We will consider whether a variety of accessible formats 
for the public consultation is necessary or required.  
Dogs –  Consultation notices sent to Kennel club, canine 
charities, notices displayed in A Valley, S Bay etc 

Community Board 04.03.2020 – Has regard to any 
reps from the consultation and decides whether to    
approve the Draft PSPO with or without modification 

Azmi Quraishe



This assessment has been successfully reviewed  with the following outcome:

      No major change – The assessment of this policy/strategy/function shows no potential for discrimination and the aims of
         the Equality Duty have been met.

            Adjust the policy/strategy or function – This item will meet the aims of the Equality Duty if actions identified in Sections 3 and 4 
to remove barriers or to better advance equality are implemented.

      Continue the policy/strategy/function – There is some potential for adverse impact or missed opportunities to promote equality, 
          but no unlawful discrimination has been identified. Ensure effective equality monitoring is in place to regularly assess the actual  
          impact on different groups  

      Stop and Rethink – Adverse equality impacts have been identified/ may not be justified and have not been sufficiently mitigated.  
         Unlawful discrimination could be taking place. Do not adopt or continue until a full equality investigation has been completed.     



                                                                               Page 1 of 3 SL 06/01/2020

Board/Committee: Full Council
Date of Meeting: 5 February 2020
Title: Local Council Tax Support scheme for Gosport
Author: Head of Benefits, Procurement and Insurance
Status: FOR DECISION

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to inform Members of the proposal not to 
change the Local Council Tax Support scheme (LCTS) for Gosport for 
the forthcoming 2020-2021 financial year. 

Recommendations

That Council approve the Local Council Tax Support Scheme (LCTS) for 
Gosport at Appendix 1 of this report for working age customers and notes 
the statutory scheme for Pension Age customers. Statutory changes to 
the Pension Age scheme are administered by Ministry for Housing 
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) and this year only contain 
minor changes, these are yet to be released by MHCLG and will be 
forwarded to Members as part of the updated scheme when received.

1 Background

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

On the 23 January 2012 Council approved the Local Council Tax 
Support scheme for Gosport for the 2013/14 financial year 
following the abolition of the national scheme for Council Tax 
Benefit. 

It remained largely unchanged until 30 January 2017 when Council 
approved changes to the scheme for the 2017/18 financial year. In 
addition Council approved the Exceptional Hardship Policy 
introduced from the 2017/18 financial year. 

Legislation requires that the scheme is approved by full Council 
for each year. 

The following table outlines the funding position of the current 
scheme

Agenda Item 11



                                                                               Page 2 of 3 SL 06/01/2020

Local Council Tax Support Scheme
£ %

Estimated cost 2019/20 3,843,100
Costs met by:
Gosport Borough Council 501,140 13.04%
Hampshire County Council 2,744,742 71.42%
Police & Crime Commissioners 446,953 11.63%
Hampshire Fire & Rescue Authority 150,265 3.91%

2.

2.1

2.2

2.3

3

3.1 

Report

There are no proposed changes to the 2020/21 LCTS working age 
scheme with the current scheme at Appendix 1 maintaining the 
following protections for vulnerable customers: 

 The continuation of income disregards for Disability benefits, 
Child benefit and maintenance payments.

 The continuation of the full income disregard for War Widows 
and War disablement pension.

 The continuation of “extended payments” or benefit “run-ons” 
when a Customer starts work or increases their hours in work.

 “fast track” claims to expedite re-claims after a short period of 
temporary work reducing the requirement for extended 
verification.

In addition the Exceptional Hardship Policy introduced from the 
2017/18 financial year recognised that in a small amount of cases 
additional support may be needed when an LCTS customer is 
suffering “extreme hardship”. A separate Policy was approved by 
Council for this purpose.

Staff from both the Benefit and Council Tax Sections are trained to 
deal with potential hardship cases and offer an application form at 
all points of the recovery process.

Financial implication

There are no financial implications arising if the scheme remains 
unchanged.

 4 Risk Assessment

  4.1 To mitigate any challenges to the Council over the amended 
2017/18 LCTS scheme, an initial Equality Impact risk assessment 
was undertaken followed by a full Equalities Impact Assessment, 
which considered all factors of the scheme and the responses to 
the Consultation undertaken at the time.  



                                                                               Page 3 of 3 SL 06/01/2020

Financial Services 
comments:

As detailed in the report.

Legal Services 
comments:

Contained in the Report.

Crime and Disorder: None
Equality and Diversity: As detailed in the report.
Service Improvement Plan 
implications:

None

Corporate Plan: None
Risk Assessment: See Paragraph 4
Background papers: Full Council report  23.1.2012

Full Council report 18.12.2013
Full Council report 28.1.2015
Full Council report 30.1.2017
Full Council report 13.12.2017
Local Tax Support Scheme 2013/14 and 
2014/15, 2015/16, 2016/17, 2017/18 and 
2018/19
(http://www.gosport.gov.uk/assets/lcts)

Appendices/Enclosures: Appendix 1 Local Council Tax Support 
Scheme 2020/21

Report author/ Lead 
Officer:

Stephanie Lucking

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/assets/lcts


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 To confirm the Minutes of Meetings of the Council held on 18th December 2019 (copy herewith)
	Minutes

	6 NOTICE OF MOTION
	7 Consideration of recommendations by Boards of the Council:
	P and O Part 1
	2 Capital Strategy Report 202021
	2 Investment-Strategy-202021
	3 Treasury Management Report 202021

	8 To receive the following Part II minutes of the Boards of the Council:
	9 Medium Term Financial Strategy and Budget (Revenue and Capital) 2020/2021
	Budget Book 2020-21

	10 Public Space Protection Order (Control of Dogs)
	EIA - PSPO Dogs

	11 Local Council Tax Support Scheme for Gosport

